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To Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present to
you the annual results of China Rare Earth Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

During 2012, the Government of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") actively promoted the consolidation of large rare earth
enterprises. By formulating “12th Five-Year Development Plan for
New Materials” and issuing the white paper entitled “Situation and
Policies of China’s Rare Earth Industry”, the Government stated its
aims to optimise the production and sales in the country’s rare earth
industry in order to facilitate the healthy and steady development of
the entire industry. The Chinese Government has also strengthened
environmental protection inspection, raised entry barriers of the rare
earth sector, introduced special invoice, quota and strengthened
customs regulations to eliminate substandard enterprises in the
industry. All these measures have gradually improved the production
standards and export situation in the nation.
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Meanwhile, the sluggish global economy has reduced the
application of rare earth in end products. Weak downstream
demand and the decrease in speculation following the drop in
rare earth prices have resulted in price fluctuations and presented
challenges to the market. During the year, major rare earth
enterprises announced production suspension in order to stabilise
product prices, leading to a price rebound from their trough in the
beginning of the fourth quarter in 2012, but these measures were
unable to reverse the situation. Rare earth enterprises in the PRC
recorded a notable decrease in profit and rare earth separation
enterprises have also recorded industry-wide losses during the year.

For the Group’s refractory materials business, the slower growth
in the property market in the PRC has dampened the demand for
construction materials. This trend, along with the keen market
competition has posed intense pressure on refractory materials
enterprises. However, the Group was able to alleviate the impact
of the weaken construction industry through enhancing production
technologies and adjusting product portfolio according to market
demand.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the Group's
turnover was HK$2,101,918,000, a reduction of approximately
5% compared to HK$2,213,354,000 in 2011. The turnover from
rare earth products decreased by around 8% to approximately
HK$1,626,524,000 compared to HK$1,765,808,000 last year,
accounting for about 77% of the Group’s total turnover.
The refractory materials business brought in approximately
HK$475,394,000, up by about 6% when compared to
HK$447,546,000 in last year and accounting for about 23% of the
Group's total.

Following the rapid growth of the rare earth market in 2011, the
Group's cost of inventories was relatively high in the beginning of
the year under review. However, the rare earth market fluctuated
during the year and the prices of products continued to drop,
resulting in an operating loss for the Group. Together with the
net write down of about HK$370 million for inventories for the
rare earth business, the Group recorded a gross loss of around
HK$442,925,000 compared with a gross profit of approximately
HK$1,053,432,000 in 2011. Gross profit margin was also reduced
from +48% last year to -21%. Taking into account of other sales
and management expenses, and loss attributable to joint venture

7
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projects, the Group recorded a net loss of HK$699,519,000 in
2012 (2011: net profit of HK$555,459,000). The loss per share was
HK40.64 cents (2011: earnings per share of HK31.30 cents).

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Rare earth business

During the year, the Group sold approximately 2,800 tonnes
of rare earth oxides, up by about 40% compared with that in
2011. However, the persistently low product price has offset the
increase in sales volume. Overall turnover of the rare earth business
decreased slightly by approximately 8% from HK$1,765,808,000
last year to HK$1,626,524,000. As production costs remained high
and the Group had to make provisions for inventory, the rare earth
business segment recorded a loss of about HK$631,754,000.

The relatively sluggish domestic and overseas consumption market
has slowed down the demand for rare earth oxides from the
electronics, automobile and other industries. The contracted demand
from Japan and the US, the world’s second and third largest rare
earth consumers respectively, has also directly hit the rare earth
enterprises in the PRC. The price of rare earth, slid substantially
during the year, which registered a notable drop in annualised
terms. Average selling prices of various rare earth oxides have
declined by 20% to 70% when compared with 2011. Among which,
the prices of praseodymium oxide, neodymium oxide and samarium
oxide decreased by about 25%; prices of cerium oxide, gadolinium
oxide and dysprosium oxide declined by 30%; prices of lanthanum
oxide, europium oxide, terbium oxide and yttrium-europium
coprecipitates dropped by about 50% to 60%; while that of yttrium
oxide plunged about 70%.

As for raw material supplies, the Government’s efforts in regulating
upstream industries to have stricter control on the extraction of
rare earth mines have added uncertainty to the supply of rare earth
raw materials. As a result, the prices of different rare earth mineral
dropped only by about 15% to 25% against last year despite the
substantially greater reduction in the price of rare earth oxide
products.
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The Government's efforts in reforming the rare earth industry
has resulted in an unstable market supply of raw materials and
uneven quality of mineral sources, which, in turn, have affected the
production yield of the extraction of rare earth oxides and increased
the average cost. The Chinese Government has also strengthened
the implementation of production limits for rare earth enterprises
and the Group has adjusted its production volume in line with the
policies. During the year, production volume of the Group's rare
earth oxides dropped by about 5%
compared with last year. This has
led to the increase in unit costs
shared from costs such as labour
cost and depreciation. Despite the
weak conditions of the industry,
the Group recorded a growth of
about 40% in sales volume of rare
earth oxides compared with last
year. The growth was due to the
solid partnership with its long-
term customers established by
the Group. To fill the gap between reduced production volume
and increased sales volume, the Group purchased certain finished
products in the market, which resulted in a higher trading volume
than in the previous years.

For rare earth metals, the Group has adjusted its product mix during
the year to cope with changes in the market. The Group produced
mainly neodymium metals and praseodymium-neodymium alloys last
year but during the course of the year, the Group shifted to more
lanthanum metals and neodymium metals. The average selling price
of lanthanum metals sold during the year was more than 80% lower
than that of the praseodymium-neodymium alloy sold last year.
Therefore, though the Group has sold almost 300 tonnes of rare
earth metals during the year, i.e., more than three times than that of
last year, the sales amount increased by less than 30%. During the
year, with the persistently high price of rare earth raw materials, this
business recorded a loss after deducting costs including amortisation
of intangible assets. As the business environment had deteriorated
compared with the time when acquisition of the business was made
in 2008, the Group made full impairment on the goodwill at over
HK$20 million and impairment on the intangible assets at over
HK$30 million during the year based on the management’s prudent
projection about the future market.

9
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The Group's rare earth business has turned to loss from profit
because of a number of important factors: i) the selling price of
products continued to drop to the extent of exceeding the decrease
in material costs; ii) the decline in production volume and production
yield has pushed up the average costs, and also due to the effect of
a higher value of inventory at the beginning of the year comparing
with last year. The inventory value at the beginning of 2011 was
much lower than that of 2012; therefore the cost of sales in 2011
was comparatively lower. However, at the beginning of 2012, after
the boom in rare earth market,
the inventory cost surged,
which caused significantly
higher costs to be recorded
in 2012. On the other hand,
the Group’s inventories were
carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Since
the market price of rare earth
continued to drop during the
year, the Group made a net
/ write down of about HK$370
million for raw materials, work in progress and finished goods of
rare earth business at the end of the year. This had directly added
to the cost of sales, and was also one of the causes for the loss
recorded in the year.

Geographically, the PRC remained the world’s largest rare earth
consumer. For exports, most of the overseas customers preferred
to take a wait-and-see attitude towards the fluctuation in the PRC
rare earth market and hesitated to confirm bulk orders during the
year. Thus, most of the PRC rare earth enterprises did not fully utilise
their export quota assigned by the Government in 2012, which was
reflected in the total exports of rare earth products being far less
than the total export quota for the full year. Nevertheless, the Group
has taken advantage of its Hong Kong arm and used virtually its
entire assigned export quota. During the year, the domestic sales
of rare earth products accounted for about 78% of the segment
turnover, with Europe, its key export market, occupied 10%, and
Japan and the US accounted for about 8% and 3% respectively.
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Refractory Materials Business

The total turnover of the Group's refractory materials business
slightly increased by around 6% from HK$447,546,000 in 2011
to HK$475,394,000. Gross profit margin, however, decreased to
around 17%.

As the PRC economy remained weak in 2012, some of glass, iron
and steel manufacturers cut their production, and the volume and
amount of the orders for refractory materials also consequently
decreased when compared with last year. The Group sold about
40,000 tonnes of ordinary refractory materials and high temperature
ceramics products, a drop of about 15% when compared with last
year. Turnover was similar to that of the previous year, declined
by less than 5%. The change in the average selling price of the
key products was also not significant. For example, the price of
magnesia-alumina spinel bricks and alumina-graphite bricks rose
by about 10% to 15% against last year while the price of fused
magnesium chrome bricks and unshaped refractory materials
decreased by about 5%. As for high temperature ceramics, the price
of the Sialon product series remained flat when compared
with last year. However, the increase in the average cost
of the products resulting from the reduction of production
volume, and the rising cost of some raw materials, for
example, a year-on-year 70% surge in the price of silicon
carbide, have adversely affected the profit. Gross profit

margin was around 13%.

Regarding the magnesium grain business, the Group sold
a total of about 68,000 tonnes of fused magnesium grain
and high purity magnesium grain, up by about 15% against
last year. As a result of the slightly increased average selling
price and that the growth rate in sales volume of fused magnesium
grain, which was selling at higher prices than high purity magnesium
grain, was relatively higher, turnover of the magnesium grain
business rose by about 30% when compared to last year. Gross
profit margin remained at around 20%.
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By market segment, the total turnover of the whole refractory
materials business was similar to that of last year, with around 72%
for the domestic market in the PRC and around 28% for export.

Joint Venture Projects

Subsequent to the completion of Phase | of the production facility of
OSRAM (China) Fluorescent Materials Co., Ltd., a joint venture set
up with OSRAM GmbH, and the commencement of trial production
in July 2011, around 200 tonnes of fluorescent materials was sold in
the year. This quantity exceeded that of the previous year but was
still below the designed annual capacity of 1,000 tonnes. Testing
and modulation of production workflow were basically completed
in the year. As time is required for customers to conduct testing on
the company’s samples before acceptance, the sales volume for the
year was not significant and the facility
is still operating at a loss. After current
and prospective customers gradually
complete the testing, this facility is
expected to achieve break-even in 2013.

In addition, the Group has set up
another joint venture, Yixing AGC
Ceramics Co., Ltd., with Asahi Glass
Ceramics Co., Ltd. from Japan to
produce shaped and sintered refractory
materials to be used for the cement
industry. Trial production has been
conducted on Phase | of the production line after its completion
in April 2012. This company produced about 6,000 tonnes of
products during the year which were sold to Japan. As the company
only started operation this year, certain finished products required
repeated adjustments to meet the stringent requirements of
Japanese customers, and the subsequently higher production cost
has resulted in a loss. After its staff becomes familiar with the
workflow and the yield is further optimised, it will begin to generate
profit for the Group. The stricter product quality and production
specification of Japanese customers may help in optimising
workflow, improving R&D capability and product technological level,
as well as strengthening the operations in mass production.
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PROSPECTS

The rare earth industry remained unstable in 2012 with wide
fluctuations in price, so as a result the entire industry recorded
substantial losses. The Group has observed the situation and
initiated various improvements in concert in order to build a solid

foundation for long-term stable growth.

The Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC has imposed the
strictest control on the upstream rare earth business. National
restrictions on rare earth mining rights and annual capacity of
smelters have prolonged the scarce supply of materials in the
upstream operations. In addition, since the country initiated
the designation of rare earth as strategic reserves in 2010, the
materials have attracted much more attention. As domestic rare
earth production continues to consolidate and the market demand
is likely to rebound, the management remains optimistic that the
strategic reserve designation will promote healthy development of
the industry in the long run.

However, it remains uncertain when global economic growth
will resume. The external environment will continue to affect
the downstream demand for rare earth. The export of rare earth
depends to a large extent on the recovery pace of the European
and US economies. The Group expects that the price of rare earth
oxides will not make substantial improvement in the short term.
Regarding material costs, the price is expected to reflect the control
on upstream extraction and supervision of production volume by
the Government. Although the external environment is fraught
with challenges, the Group believes that advanced core technology
and reliable product quality remain the keys for domestic rare
earth companies to strengthen their competitive position and
maintain profitability. As such, the Group continues to enhance R&D
capability and improve production workflow, with an aim to
keep its product quality and technology in its operations up
to international standards.
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On top of a more favourable atmosphere in the market and
the ongoing implementation of national policies, the Group
continues with ongoing efforts to improve its operations and
management, while exploring new business opportunities. As its
self-developed rare earth polishing powder technology has become
more sophisticated and there is a strong demand for quality rare
earth polishing powder in the PRC, the Group has decided to
invest around RMB120 million to reconstruct a polishing powder
production line. The project is expected to complete a trial run in
June or July 2013, and it is designed to produce 1,000 tonnes a year
once in full production.

In light of China’s increasing industrialisation and urbanisation, the
Group believes that the demand for refractory materials will return
to a steady and continuous growth. The Group will further improve
the product quality and technological capability, with an aim to
maintain the leading position within the industry.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has continued to maintain prudent capital arrangements,
and has sufficient cash on hand. As at 31 December 2012, the
Group had cash and bank deposits valued at approximately
HK$1,289,325,000, of which RMB42,600,000 was pledged to a
domestic bank to secure a RMB40,000,000 short-term loan for a
subsidiary in the PRC. The Group had a balance of net current assets
valued at approximately HK$2,685,166,000, with the total liabilities
to total assets ratio reduced to around 6%.

Except for the deposits pledged as aforesaid, the Group had no
other charge on assets, nor has it held any financial derivative
products. Except for the interest rate differential in bank deposits
with the aforementioned bank loans, it was not exposed to material
interest rate risk. Regarding foreign exchange, most of the Group’s
assets, liabilities and transactions are denominated in Renminbi, and
the rest are in US dollars or Hong Kong dollars. During the year, the
exchange rates of the Renminbi, US dollar and Hong Kong dollar
was stable.

During the year, two subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC provided
corporate guarantees to two local banks to facilitate the two
joint ventures to obtain loan financing. As at 31 December 2012,
the two joint ventures had drawn loans of RMB50,000,000
and RMB33,281,000 from the banks respectively based on the
guarantees.
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During the year, OSRAM (China) Fluorescent Materials Co. Ltd., a
joint venture of the Group, was in dispute with a contractor about
the quality and settlement of its plant constructed. The contractor
raised a litigation to claim for the remaining contract fee unpaid in
relation to the plant constructed at about HK$33,912,000. OSRAM
(China) Fluorescent Materials Co. Ltd. raised a counterclaim for
contract fee paid at HK$60,739,000 for the poor construction
quality that cannot meet the relevant construction standards.
Currently the litigations have not come to decisions yet.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 1,100 including experienced professionals and
university graduates. The Group provided a comprehensive staff
remuneration and welfare system, including a share option scheme,
to motivate staff to contribute their best efforts. During the year,
the Group spent approximately HK$60,687,000 on staff costs
including directors’ emoluments. It has also provided regular on-the-
job training to employees to assist them in maintaining professional
standards.

CONCLUSION

The Group will strive to improve its performance to reward the
support of shareholders and staff by strengthening its position in
the industry and its operations capability. The management will also
lead the Group to raise its status within the industry and complete
a turnaround as soon as possible. To do so, the management will
carefully and prudently plan and execute its strategy, adjust its
approach as the market changes, overcome the difficulties ahead,
and strive its utmost to create a brighter future.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express the most sincere
gratitude for the support of our business partners, shareholders,
investors and staff.

Jiang Quanlong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 20
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Quanlong, aged 60, is a founding member and the
chairman of the Group. Mr. Jiang is responsible for the formulation
of the Group’s overall business development policies. Mr. Jiang is
recognised as a senior economist by Jiangsu Provincial Personnel
Department. Mr. Jiang has over 30 years of experience in the rare
earth and refractory materials industries. Prior to the founding of
the Group, Mr. Jiang had been a factory manager of a refractory
materials production plant and a sales manager of a glass and
ceramics manufacturing company. Besides, Mr. Jiang is also the
chairman and an executive director of Pan Asia Environmental
Protection Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and the sole director of YY
Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Jiang is the husband of Ms. Qian Yuanying, the deputy chairman of
the Group.

Ms. Qian Yuanying, aged 53, is a founding member and the
deputy chairman of the Group. Ms. Qian is also the chief executive
officer of the Group. Ms. Qian is responsible for the overall
management of the Group and has particular responsibility for the
marketing aspect of the Group’s business. Ms. Qian is recognised
as a senior economist by Jiangsu Provincial Personnel Department,
and she is also qualified as a Chinese Career Manager. Ms. Qian has
over 20 years of experience in the rare earth and refractory materials
industries. Prior to the founding of the Group, Ms. Qian was a high
school teacher. Ms. Qian is the wife of Mr. Jiang Quanlong, the

chairman of the Group.

Mr. Jiang Cainan, aged 54, joined the Group in 1986 and was
appointed as an executive director in 2005. Mr. Jiang is also the
general manager of Yixing Xinwei Leeshing Refractory Materials
Company Limited and is responsible for the operation and sales
of refractory materials business. Mr. Jiang has over 30 years of

experience in the refractory materials industry.



B EsrsRERASEN

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

BUFHTES

BEERE 485 WZZEZ—FNMALEE -
RARNRBFENTES - HEEHFRBEE
REASBIHEREELNMEEBLEU LR
EABEESELEN - BREAEATEEE
BRAB (EBRHREBRER I BR AR L
M ZEIERHRATES - FELER_TTLFR
AE_ZZNAFENANMAEEEERRES (TM)
BRAREHFESMPEEARTIIGRIED © £
ZH  EBEAR - EE-F+ A -TTLEF
TAEAEBESEERARAER  WEESAH
FHEARMEBAONA - BLEFESRTB LHES
LE ) F R o

EERE 61F R_TZTEMFEMALREE B
ARRBIIFNTES - R EEREME S
MHRIBRSAMNEXENER  CEEGTHH
KB 8RR B 4R T2 -

TRV ERE 77 R -_ENMALREEH:
RARRBBIUFNTEE - FEEEERNREX
2 - IgeRYELSE BARILERTERIE
ITREMERRAABRIEAZSRERER -
ITEER-ANELEE-NNARFRPERH
MLt RS NMEEREXREREXAARER
—HANAFE_TERERERERNAER
BemtERARBREZFAER - TXEAR
—hWN\EFE_FENFLERELTER L
BeBRE EBEF BIZRESFIUEKL
RREZHHLEEEXEZEQIMAZE - THRER
—ETNFRZERTERLIZGREEE - It
S ERENBZDRAREBER AR (ERH
REBBAXZAARDELW) 2 BILIFNT
B=-

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Chunhua, aged 48, joined the Group in 2001 as an
independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Huang
obtained a Ph.D degree in Marketing and a Master degree in
Business Administration from University of Strathclyde and a
Bachelor degree in Economics from Wuhan University. Currently Mr.
Huang is the deputy chairman and an executive director of Hybrid
Kinetic Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. For the period from May 2007
to April 2009, Mr. Huang was a director and China equity market
strategist of BNP Paribas Securities (Asia) Limited. Prior to that he
was the deputy chairman of Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited between
November 2002 and October 2007 and an analyst of various
securities companies. Mr. Huang has extensive knowledge and

experience in financial market.

Mr. Jin Zhong, aged 61, joined the Group in 2004 as an
independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Jin
graduated from the Faculty of Material Engineering of Wuhan Steel
College, specializing in refractory studies. Mr. Jin was previously the
deputy chief engineer of the head factory of Guiyang City Refractory

Materials Factory.

Mr. Wang Guozhen, aged 77, joined the Group in 2012 as an
independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Wang
graduated from Tianjin University, majoring in Physical chemistry
of metals. Currently Mr. Wang is a senior expert consultant in rare
earth projects of China Enfi Engineering Corporation. For the period
from 1987 to 1994, Mr. Wang was a member of the Experts Group
of the Rare Earth Leading Group of the State Council, the People’s
Republic of China and the head of its industry group. From 1994 to
2006, Mr. Wang was a member of the Group of Rare Earth Experts
of the National Development and Reform Commission and the
head of its industry group. Mr. Wang also worked at the Chinese
Society of Rare Earths (the “CSRE") consecutively as a director, a
standing director, an expert in its rare earth experts group and a
senior member of its Rare Earth Related Environmental Protection
and Labor Hygiene Professional Committee from 1980 to 2009. In
2009, Mr. Wang was appointed as honorary executive of the CSRE.
Besides, Mr. Wang is also an independent non-executive director
of Pan Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited, the shares of
which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Lap Tak, aged 43, joined the Group in 1999. Mr. Law
is the financial controller and company secretary of the Company.
Mr. Law graduated in Hong Kong and obtained a Bachelor degree
in Business Administration. Mr. Law is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Law
was an audit manager in an international accounting firm in Hong

Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jiang Xin, aged 28, joined the Group in 2008 and was
appointed as the general manager of the Company in 2012.
Mr. Jiang is responsible for the marketing aspect of the Group’s
business. Mr. Jiang obtained a Bachelor degree in Arts majoring
in International Business, Finance and Economics from University
of Manchester and a Bachelor degree in Arts majoring in Business
Studies from University of Wales. Mr. Jiang is a son of Mr. Jiang
Quanlong, the chairman of the Group and Ms. Qian Yuanying, the
deputy chairman of the Group.

Mr. Jiang Hongjun, aged 54, joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Jiang
is the deputy general manager of the Company and is responsible
for the daily administrative affairs of the Group. Mr. Jiang has over

30 years of experience in administrative management.

Mr. Yu Zhengming, aged 77, joined the Group in 1999. Mr. Yu
is the chief engineer and technical consultant of Yixing Xinwei
Leeshing Rare Earth Company Limited. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Yu was the factory general manager and chief engineer of a
renowned rare earth factory. Mr. Yu is an expert in rare earth and

non-ferrous metals industries.

Mr. Xu Jianwen, aged 44, joined the Group in 1988. Mr. Xu is the
general manager of Yixing Xinwei Leeshing Rare Earth Company
Limited and is responsible for the operation of rare earth business.
Mr. Xu has over 20 years of experience in production management

in the rare earth industry.
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Mr. Wang Jianping, aged 51, joined the Group in 2004. Mr. Wang
is the general manager of Wuxi Xinwei High Temperature Ceramics
Company Limited and is responsible for the operation of the high
temperature ceramics business. Mr. Wang has over 15 years of

experience in administrative management and sales.

Mr. Zhang Huilin, aged 60, joined the Group in 1988. Mr. Zhang
is the general manager of Haicheng City Suhai Magnesium Ore
Company Limited and Hai Cheng Xinwei Leeshing Magnesium
Resources Company Limited and is responsible for the operation of
magnesium grains business. Mr. Zhang has extensive management

experience in raw material supply and sales of refractory materials.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to attending good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Company has adopted its own code
of corporate governance based on the principles and code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

For the year ended 31 December 2012, in the opinion of the Board
of Directors (the “Board”), the Company has complied with the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules from 1 January 2012 until its amendment and
replacement by the CG Code on 1 April 2012 save for the Code
Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code.

Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that the independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors should attend
general meetings of the Company. Due to other prior business
engagements, all independent non-executive directors were not able
to attend the annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company
held on 8 June 2012.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (the “Company’s
Code") regarding securities transactions by directors on terms no
less exacting than the required standards set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry, the Company confirms that all directors have
complied with the required standards as stated in the Model Code
and the Company’s Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2012.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Company is governed by the Board which is responsible for
directing and supervising its affairs and oversight of the Group's
businesses, strategic decision and performance. Execution of
the Board’s decisions and daily operations are delegated to the

management.
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The composition of the Board during the year and the attendance of

the Board meetings are as follows:

HEEEBE

Attendance/No. of meetings

HITES

Executive director
BRE(FE)

Jiang Quanlong (Chairman)

BILR (B LERTHARE)

6/6

6/6

Qian Yuanying (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

B

Jiang Cainan

BYFHTES

Independent non-executive director

Huang Chunhua

&

Jin Zhong

ITEE (R-_T——FN\A—REZT)
Wang Guozhen (appointed on 1 August 2012)
Zah(R-—T——FN\B—BED

Liu Yujiu (resigned on 1 August 2012)

BREEAEDBELRAZLIZLXR -BERESE
S BEERERMAUBREREMCEREE -

ESHIIRGEEXRRE
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BEAMEZCEERNECHARBRERR R
B EREFELHE  UEGRELEERER
AZEBREE W2 MBERE ETRA

BERREERABITZEERER -

5

%
%N
]

WERE ARBNEEELHAEFTRESE
EEREFRER -

6/6

6/6

6/6

V6 (RHEZERBTT —REZ)

1/6 (1 meeting was held after his appointment)
5/6 (MEBHEREITT AREH)

5/6 (5 meetings were held prior to his resignation)

Mr. Jiang Quanlong is the husband of Ms. Qian Yuanying. Save as
disclosed, there are no family or other material relationship among

Board members.

TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director will receive comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing

Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to directors whenever

necessary.
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During the year, a seminar on update of the Listing Rules
amendments was arranged for all directors at the Company's
headquarter. Except Mr. Huang Chunhua, directors by the time,
namely, Mr. Jiang Quanlong, Ms. Qian Yuanying, Mr. Jiang Cainan,
Mr. Jin Zhong and Mr. Liu Yujiu, attended the seminar. Although
Mr. Huang Chunhua has not attended the seminar, he has studied

the reference materials on his own.

PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS
Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee

meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of the Company
and to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and
each director also have separate and independent access to the

senior management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for

directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly

convened Board meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Although Mr. Jiang Quanlong, the Chairman of the Board, is the
husband of Ms. Qian Yuanying, the Chief Executive Officer, their
roles and responsibilities are separated. The Chairman is responsible
for the formulation of the Group’s overall business development
policies while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the

overall management of the Group's business.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are highly
skilled professionals with expertise and experience in the field of
financial management and businesses related to the Group. They
advise the Company on strategy development and enable the
Board to maintain high standards of compliance of financial and
other mandatory reporting requirements and provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the Company as a whole. Each of the independent non-
executive directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of two years. The Company has received
written confirmations from all independent non-executive directors
concerning their independence. The Board considers that all of them

are independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and are available to

shareholders upon request.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance with the Model Code, and the compliance with the CG

Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The principal functions of the Audit Committee are to assist
the Board in reviewing the relationship with the auditor of the
Company, the financial information, the financial reporting system

and internal control procedures.

The composition of the Audit Committee during the year and the

attendance of the Committee meetings are as follows:

K& HE BEHUE
Member Attendance/No. of meetings
BYFHITES

Independent non-executive director
T2 (RN \A—BEZERER)

Wang Guozhen (appointed as Chairman on 1 August 2012)

Huang Chunhua

&8

Jin Zhong
BRN(RZT—=FN\A—HET)
Liu Yujiu (resigned on 1 August 2012)

BHL BERZBERNTARRNRMAZE
AEREREH RS RER  ABEERPERR
EH BERATESRERKBOHST &
BTARARZHHAREFERE -
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1B3(REBZEREBERITT —REH)
1/3 (1 meeting was held after his appointment)
3/3

3/3

2B3(REBHERBITTMREH)

2/3 (2 meetings were held prior to his resignation)

During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters, including
the review of the interim and annual results of the Company with
the assistance of the auditor without the presence of the executive

directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of directors and senior management,

and to review their specific remuneration packages.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year

and the attendance of the Committee meetings are as follows:

K& HE BEHUE
Member Attendance/No. of meetings
BITESE

Executive director

BREMRZZ-—Z_F=ZA-T=AFTER)

Jiang Quanlong (resigned as Chairman on 23 March 2012)

BUFHTES

Independent non-executive director

BEEE(R-_ZT-—_F=ZA-+=BEZERERF)

12 (REBEMRITT —REH)

1/2 (1 meeting was held prior to his resignation)

2/2

Huang Chunhua (appointed as Chairman on 23 March 2012)

G

Jin Zhong

ITEZ (R_ZE——F\A—BEZ{T)
Wang Guozhen (appointed on 1 August 2012)
Blah (W —Z——F)\A—BET)

Liu Yujiu (resigned on 1 August 2012)

EREL FHEEERNTHMRERYNES
ZHMAA LT RS -

REZES

REZBEZIZRHEARHESS ZAK - H
ERBREERANZEZEBERF RNEES
REEREREE MFARBUFATESZE

TUEFREER -

2/2

R(REEZERBOTT—REZE)
1/2 (1 meeting was held after his appointment)
12(REBERNRITT —REE)

1/2 (1 meeting was held prior to his resignation)

During the meetings, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy and recommended the remuneration packages

of directors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee are to
review the Board composition, develop and formulate relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors, make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of directors, and assess the independence of independent

non-executive directors.
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During the year, in order to enhance the Company's corporate
governance practices, a Nomination Committee was established on
23 March 2012. The composition of the Nomination Committee
during the year and the attendance of the Committee meetings are

as follows:

RE HE EEHE
Member Attendance/No. of meetings
BYFHITES

Independent non-executive director
SERZT—ZF=A=Z+=REZERER)

Jin Zhong (appointed as Chairman on 23 March 2012)
BEE

Huang Chunhua

ITEE2 (R=_T——FNA—BEZT)

Wang Guozhen (appointed on 1 August 2012)
ARN(RZZ—ZFN\A—BEET)

Liu Yujiu (resigned on 1 August 2012)
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O (REBHERM L BETEH)

0/1 (no meeting was held prior to his resignation)

During the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the Board

composition of the Company.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s Articles of Association specify that every director
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and the director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the next following general meeting of the Company.
Mr. Jiang Quanlong and Mr. Jin Zhong will retire by rotation
according to Article 108(A) and (B) whereas Mr. Wang Guozhen,
who was appointed on 1 August 2012, shall hold office until the
forthcoming AGM according to Article 112. All of them, being

eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration in respect of statutory audit
services (including interim review) provided by the auditor of the
Company was HK$3,475,000. There was no other non-audit service

provided by the auditor.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES ON THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
It is the directors’ responsibility for the preparation of financial

statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and the results and cash flows for each financial period.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors have to ensure
that appropriate accounting policies are adopted. The financial

statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about the reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 41 to 43 of the annual

report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate
system of internal controls of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness. The Board has delegated to the management the
implementation and evaluation of the system of internal controls.
With the assistance of an external advisor, the Group has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
control and reported the key findings to the Audit Committee.
The review covers major and material controls in areas of financial,

operational and compliance and risk management functions.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

General Meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, or in their
absence, their duly appointed delegates are available to answer
questions at the shareholders’ meetings. Auditor of the Company is
also invited to attend the Company’s AGM and is available to assist
the directors in addressing queries from shareholders relating to
the conduct of the audit and the preparation and contents of the
Independent Auditor's Report. Separate resolutions are proposed
at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the

election of individual directors.
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Notice of AGM together with related papers are sent to the
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting,
setting out details of each proposed resolution, voting procedures
and other relevant information. All votes of shareholders at the
general meeting will be decided by poll. The Chairman will demand
that all resolutions put to the vote at the AGM will be taken by
poll and will explain such rights and procedures during the AGM
before voting on the resolutions. An independent scrutineer will
be appointed to count the votes and the poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after the
AGM.

Shareholders of the Company can make a requisition to convene
an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") pursuant to Article 64
of the Company’s Articles of Association. The procedures for the

shareholders to convene an EGM are as follows:

1. One or more shareholders (“Requisitionist”) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings shall have the right, by written notice, to
require an EGM to be called by the directors for the transaction

of any business specified in such requisition.
2. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the directors or
the company secretary of the Company at all of the following

addresses:

Principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong

Address:  15/F, Club Lusitano, 16 Ice House Street, Central,
Hong Kong
Email: info@creh.com.hk

Attention: Company Secretary

Head office of the Company
Address: Dingshu, Yixing, Jiangsu Province, the People’s
Republic of China

Attention: Company Secretary
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Registered office of the Company
Address: Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

Attention: Company Secretary

The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of

such requisition.

If the directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting within
21 days of such deposit, the Requisitionist himself may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
Requisitionist as a result of the failure of the directors shall be

reimbursed to the Requisitionist by the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to direct enquiries to the

Company

For matters in relation to the Board, shareholders can contact the

Company at the following:

Address: 15/F, Club Lusitano, 16 Ice House Street, Central,
Hong Kong

Email: info@creh.com.hk

Tel: (852) 2869 6283

Fax: (852) 2136 0030

Attention: Company Secretary

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and

registration, change of name or address, loss of share certificates or

dividend warrants, the registered shareholders can contact:

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Address: 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2865 0990
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her proposal
("Proposal”) with his/her detailed contact information at the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 15/F, Club

Lusitano, 16 Ice House Street, Central, Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Board will be asked to include the

Proposal in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholder concerned at
the general meeting varies according to the nature of the Proposal

as follows:

(@) At least 14 days' notice in writing if the Proposal requires

approval by way of an ordinary resolution of the Company.

(b) At least 21 days' notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in an

EGM or an ordinary resolution of the Company in an AGM.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintain regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to
keep them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from

investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains
a website at www.creh.com.hk, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,

financial information and other information are posted.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of China Rare Earth
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sales of rare

earth products and refractory products.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 21 to

the financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Details of segmental information of the Group are set out in Note 16

to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on pages 44 to 45 of

the annual report.

No interim and final dividend was declared and paid to the

shareholders for the year.

Details of other appropriations are set out in Note 33 to the financial

statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution comprise the share
premium account, fair value reserve and accumulated profits. As
at 31 December 2012, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders amounted to HK$1,924,442,000.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial

years is set out on page 184 of the annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment and
construction in progress of the Group during the year are set out in

Note 18 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2012 are set out in Note 33 to the financial

statements.

BORROWINGS
Details of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December

2012 are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES
Details of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in Note

11 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report are:

Executive directors

Mr. Jiang Quanlong (Chairman)

Ms. Qian Yuanying (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Jiang Cainan

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Huang Chunhua

Mr. Jin Zhong

Mr. Wang Guozhen (appointed on 1 August 2012)
Mr. Liu Yujiu (resigned on 1 August 2012)

In accordance with Articles 108(A) and (B) of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Jiang Quanlong and Mr. Jin Zhong will retire by
rotation from the Board at the forthcoming annual general meeting

and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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1. RARGRGEZ

In accordance with Articles 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Guozhen will retire from the Board at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer

himself for re-election.

As at 31 December 2012, none of the directors has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations as recorded in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

of Listed Issuers were as follows:

1. INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

HARATB T

- ERNYE5h RBEE BREWEDL

Number of % to the issued share

Director Nature of interest/Capacity Shares capital of the Company

BREE iz i,/ SEARZER 562,492,000 33.63%
Jiang Quanlong Interest of spouse/Interest of

controlled corporation
T (AT AN 562,492,000 33.63%

Qian Yuanying

Hfit -

ZERM B BYY Holdings Limited#$ 4 » E 2
BEEATIRABYY Trustd) X 5EAYYT (PTC) Limited
e MERARBRELENLEBETRL
TREFREAHBANLNT - REFRABKIE
XVEBZ EEBETLELZLAYY TrustBR LA © B
BE 2 4 AYY Holdings Limited ) iff — & 5 -

Founder of a trust

Note:

These shares are held through YY Holdings Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is held by YYT (PTC) Limited, the trustee of YY
Trust, the discretionary object of which is a company wholly owned
by Ms. Qian Yuanying, the spouse of Mr. Jiang Quanlong, and her
sons. Ms. Qian Yuanying is a founder of YY Trust within the meaning
under Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Jiang Quanlong is the sole director of YY
Holdings Limited.
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INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
EQUITY INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(a) Microtech Resources Limited
EZARB#T
BRI 4
ERTROEIIREE WAL
% in the class of

shares in the issued

Nature of interest/ Number and share capital

Director Capacity class of issued shares of the Company

BREE EnBEEA IR ERIEER 7,000,000 70%
Jiang Quanlong Beneficial owner 7,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

BT R EaEAA AR ZREIRIEAR 193,000,0004% 30%
Qian Yuanying Beneficial owner 3,000,000 non-voting

(b) Eﬂ%ﬁ/%%i/%%i ﬁﬂﬁ’ A E"’

deferred shares

(b)  Yixing Xinwei Leeshing Rare Earth Company Limited

B EEtE 545 RAEZH DL
Director Nature of interest/Capacity % equity interest
R EEARZER 5%
Jiang Quanlong Interest of controlled corporation

Wt - Note:

ZERGNBEBEENHERERA R
BoZPBECXMBRELEEFIO%E
& BTMI0%ESHEFRA BELER
RHEEEREERRA -
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The equity interest is held by Yixing Xinwei Group Co., Ltd., a
PRC domestic enterprise 90% owned by Mr. Jiang Quanlong,
with the remaining 10% owned by his son. Mr. Jiang is also the
legal representative of the enterprise.
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(c) YY Holdings Limited
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Nature of interest/

(c)  YY Holdings Limited
EZABE BT
R 2R 4
HRMESE
% in the class of

ERITROBAIREE

shares in the issued

Number and share capital

Director Capacity class of issued shares of the Company
i I EFEZRILA Epalaualis 100%

Qian Yuanying Founder of a trust

FETH EFEZ LA

Qian Yuanying Founder of a trust

FEREE

Jiang Quanlong

EERB R

6B CEEYNCIWA: ¥

Jiang Quanlong

Hrat -

YY Holdings Limited®¥) 2 S 2 81T AR YY
Trust®) & 5EAYYT (PTC) LimitedEF A »
HYBZABERELENEBRETR LT
REFR2EBHEENRAT - LEHLBE G
EXVEZ EEBILR LT AYY Trustépk 3L
A o BRELEBYYT (PTC) Limited#) i —
Ex-

Br i EN R FF A=+ —
H REIEHFRBEGRD]E3526MFE
ZEEMARE - SERARESRNITHAE
HNE B A TRARE] REBE R R 2R
7~ RN REFFE MR R E TR

ERSE -

Interest of controlled corporation

Interest of controlled corporation

1 ordinary share

18 55 1% 1725,000% 100%

25,000 preference shares

TEB MR 100%

1 ordinary share

18 45 1% 1725,000% 100%

25,000 preference shares

Note:

The entire issued share capital of YY Holdings Limited is held
by YYT (PTC) Limited, the trustee of YY Trust, the discretionary
object of which is a company wholly owned by Ms. Qian
Yuanying, the spouse of Mr. Jiang Quanlong, and her sons. Ms.
Qian Yuanying is a founder of YY Trust within the meaning under
Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Jiang Quanlong is the sole director of
YYT (PTC) Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of
the directors or chief executive of the Company and their
associates had or was deemed to have any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the
register kept under Section 352 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 4 June 2004, the shareholders of the Company approved the
termination of the share option scheme adopted on 14 October
1999 (the “Old Scheme") and the adoption of a replacement share
option scheme (the “New Scheme"”) for the purpose of coping with
the amendments introduced to Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
Upon the termination of the Old Scheme, no further options would
be offered pursuant to the Old Scheme but the Old Scheme would
in all other respects remain in force to the extent necessary to give
effect to the exercise of the outstanding options granted under it
prior to its termination, and such outstanding options will continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the provisions of the
Old Scheme.

The major terms of the New Scheme are as follows:

1. The purpose of the New Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or

rewards for their contribution to the Group.

2. The eligible participants included any employee (whether full-
time or part-time, including any executive director), any non-
executive director, any shareholder, any supplier and any
customer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest, and any party having contribution to the development

and growth of the Group.

3. Under the New Scheme, the total number of shares available
for issue is 98,695,305 which represents approximately 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of

adoption of the New Scheme.

4. The maximum entitlement of each participant under the New
Scheme in any 12-month period should not exceed 1% of the

issued share capital of the Company for the time being.

5. The exercisable period of an option granted may be
determined by the directors and which should not end later

than 10 years after the date of offer.
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6. Any offer for the grant of an option may be accepted by
the participant within 21 days from the date of offer with a
consideration of HK$1 paid.

7. The exercise price may be determined by the directors provided

that it should not be less than the highest of:

the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date

of offer;

ii.  the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of

offer; and
ii. ~ the nominal value of a share of the Company.

8. The New Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from 18 June 2004, the date on which the New Scheme was

adopted.

During the year, there was no option outstanding under the Old
Scheme, and there was no option granted, exercised, cancelled or

lapsed under the New Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement,
which enables any of the directors or chief executive of the
Company or their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS
So far as is known to the directors, as at 31 December 2012,

the interests and short positions of shareholders, other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company, in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:

1. YY Holdings Limited, the entire issued share capital of which
is held by YYT (PTC) Limited, was holding 562,492,000 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 33.63% of the

issued share capital of the Company as beneficial owner.

2. YYT (PTC) Limited was deemed to be interested in 562,492,000
shares of the Company held by YY Holdings Limited the entire
issued share capital of which is held by YYT (PTC) Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no other party, other than the directors or
chief executive of the Company, had notified the Company that he
had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register kept under Section 336
of the SFO as at 31 December 2012.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year, the Group leased two office premises from Mr.
Jiang Quanlong for use as its sales and marketing office. During the
year, the total operating lease rentals paid in respect of these leases

amounted to approximately HK$888,000.

During the year, the Group paid approximately HK$65,000 as
a compensation to Wuxi Pan-Asia Environmental Protection
Technologies Limited (“Wuxi Pan-Asia”), a related company in which
Ms. Qian Yuanying and Mr. Jiang Quanlong were deemed to have

beneficial interests, for the use as office premises.

During the year, one of the jointly controlled entities of the Group
disposed certain prepaid lease payments on land under operating
leases to Wuxi Pan-Asia at a total consideration of approximately
HK$2,075,000.
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Save as disclosed above and in Note 36 to the financial statements,
no director had a beneficial interest, either direct or indirect, in
any contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party at the year-end date or at any time during

the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group was

entered into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
There has been no purchase, sale or redemption of any of the

Company'’s listed securities by the Group during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable to

the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales
- the largest customer 9%
— five largest customers combined 35%
Purchases
— the largest supplier 23%
— five largest suppliers combined 63%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders which
to the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital has any interest in the share capital

of any of the five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association and the Cayman Islands
Companies Law in relation to the issue of new shares by the

Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules during the

year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
audited by CCIF CPA Limited (“CCIF”). CCIF will retire as the auditor
of the Company upon expiration of its current term of office at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, because of business
combination, will not offer itself for re-appointment. The Board
resolved to propose the appointment of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited, a combined firm formed by CCIF and PCP CPA Limited
consequent upon their merger, as the new auditor of the Company
to fill the vacancy arising from the retirement of CCIF and to hold

office until the next annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Jiang Quanlong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA RARE EARTH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Rare Earth Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to 183, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2012, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2013

Ho Chun Shing
Practising Certificate Number P04396
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

BE-ZE—_—F+=-A=1—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2012

g —ZE——%
2012 2011
B 7 FET FHET
Note HKS$' 000 HK$'000
FEICEER Continuing operations
EHEE Turnover 5 2,101,918 2,213,354
$HE KA Cost of sales (2,544,843) (1,159,922)
(£85)/EH Gross (loss)/profit (442,925) 1,053,432
H e Other revenue 6 9,882 7,008
HERDHEER Selling and distribution expenses (90,691) (214,900)
EREH Administrative expenses (82,256) (122,892)
Hipg AFE Other income, net (52,521) 11,377
KEER (BR), 5 (Loss)/Profit from operations (658,511) 734,025
B 7 B AN Finance costs 7(a) (2,821) (5,698)
HEEHIEREIEZH#  Share of losses of jointly controlled
entities (25,826) (12,244)
BEL R (BER),EF (Loss)/Profit before taxation 7 (687,158) 716,083
FriS R Income tax 8 (12,361) (176,285)
AEERBELEED (Loss)/Profit for the year from continuing
(E#8),/&F operations (699,519) 539,798
BRI EER Discontinued operation 12
REEBRIEEEER Profit for the year from discontinued
bl operation = 15,661
AEE (BE),/HF (Loss)/Profit for the year (699,519) 555,459
FEAh Attributable to:
ZAN/NGIEZ DN Owners of the Company 13
—REBBELCEER — From continuing operations (679,702) 508,598
—REBRIEEEEK — From discontinued operation = 14,878
(679,702) 523,476
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

BZE-ZF——-F+=-A=1+—HIHFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

=F-=F —F——F
2012 2011
(i FHET FAT
Note HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FEERR M AR Non-controlling interests
—REFELLED — From continuing operations (19,817) 31,200
—REERIEEEER ~ From discontinued operation - 783
(19,817) 31,983
RNEE (BIE) /&5 (Loss)/Profit for the year (699,519) 555,459
=1 AL
HK cents HK cents
SR (ER), BF (Loss)/Earnings per share 15
YN Basic
RERFECEER From continuing operations (40.64) 30.41
REERIEEEET From discontinued operation = 0.89
(40.64) 31.30
b Diluted
REBELEER From continuing operations (40.64) 30.41
REBRIEKEEHER From discontinued operation - 0.89
(40.64) 31.30

FE55AF 1838 Z MR R Hrh — &b -

The notes

statements.

on pages 55 to 183 form part of these financial
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE-ZE—_—F+=-A=1—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E-—F —T——F
2012 2011
il THER FiBT
Note HKS$' 000 HK$" 000
AEE (BR),EF (Loss)/Profit for the year (699,519) 555,459
KEEHMR2E (FE) Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Wi (HBRFLE) for the year (net of tax)
BREBINEBIT B RE Exchange differences on translation of
ZERER financial statements of foreign
operations (339) 168,481
HREHEEEMD Share of other comprehensive income of
2HEHNE D E# jointly controlled entities 88 4,659
TR BRI Deferred tax arising from change
in tax rate 32(b) 1,333 -
AEHERRES Fair value gain/(loss) on available-for-sale
NEEYS (BE) equity securities 23 2,800 (7,520)
BRI ERRES Reclassification adjustments relating to
BEBERSNRERE impairment loss on available-for-sale
WmERAzEHDEAE equity securities included in the
consolidated income statement 23 - 23,280
ERARKEHEWBE A A Release of translation reserve relating
ZE R EE to disposal of a subsidiary
during the year - (21,063)
AEEZABR) Total comprehensive (loss)/income
W E for the year (695,637) 723,296
B Attributable to:
IN/NCIEZZ DN Owners of the Company (675,811) 689,773
IR R Non-controlling interests (19,826) 33,523
REEZ2E(BE) Total comprehensive (loss)/income
WM E for the year (695,637) 723,296
KATHEA AEMS Total comprehensive (loss)/income
2E (F8) attributable to owners of the
W 48 1E Company arises from:
—FREEEER - Continuing operations (675,811) 674,895
—BRIEEEE - Discontinued operation = 14,878
(675,811) 689,773

FE55AF 1838 Z MR R Hh — &b -

‘—ij

statements.

The notes on pages 55 to 183 form part of these financial
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R=-ZB——F+=-HA=+—H As at 31 December 2012

—2-=F —T——F
2012 2011
Bt 5% THER FAT
Note HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
ERBEE Non-current assets
Bk Goodwill 17 - 21,776
ME - BERRE Property, plant and equipment 18(a) 405,411 469,568
KERHNTENS THES Prepaid lease payments on land under
operating leases 19 182,709 205,885
BVAE Intangible assets 20 43,963 88,198
HEEHIEE 2 EwS Interests in jointly controlled entities 22 109,930 110,940
A SRR Available-for-sale equity securities 23 9,520 6,720
BHEBRITER Pledged bank deposits 28 - 52,547
BERIEEE Deferred tax assets 32(b) 6,321 8,223
HtFERBDEE Other non-current asset 24 18,703 =
776,557 963,857
RBEE Current assets
KEMOTEN I HES Prepaid lease payments on land under
operating leases 19 4,448 4,874
TE Inventories 25 975,218 1,296,256
JFE AT B % % Lt FE MR Trade and other receivables 26 478,577 603,405
B RERES Prepayments and deposits 26 116,098 101,961
EEEE Tax recoverable 32(a) 943 1,450
EHEARITIER Pledged bank deposits 28 52,541 52,177
X IR ]8R 17 45 2 Restricted bank balances 28 494 =
ReEkBEEFEER Cash and cash equivalents 29 1,236,290 1,530,123
2,864,609 3,590,246
REEE Current liabilities
JE 15 BR 3R Trade payables 30 94,664 94,964
AR B A K& H fth & 3K Accruals and other payables 30 28,439 106,713
fEREE IR Amounts due to directors 27 1,074 519
R—FREIEMIRITTER  Bank borrowings due within one year 31 49,334 98,680
e HiTE Tax payable 32(a) 5,932 56,721
179,443 357,597
RBEEFE Net current assets 2,685,166 3,232,649
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R=F—=—F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2012

g —ZE——%

2012 2011

B & FTER FET

Note HKS$' 000 HK$" 000

EERERADAERE Total assets less current liabilities 3,461,723 4,196,506

FRBEE Non-current liabilities

RERBAE Deferred tax liabilities 32(b) 25,812 31,505

EEFE NET ASSETS 3,435,911 4,165,001
EXRHE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

[N Share capital 33(b) 167,264 167,264

fE Reserves 3,218,388 3,927,652
KRBERANEML Total Equity attributable to

HmiE owners of the Company 3,385,652 4,094,916

e IR = Non-controlling interests 50,259 70,085

EZBE TOTAL EQUITY 3,435,911 4,165,001

ExeN T =F="A-t+ N \BHEREET Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28

734

o

R
EF

FE55AF183A Z MBI R E A —Jf ) -
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March 2013.

statements.

Jiang Quanlong

Director

Qian Yuanying
Director

The notes on pages 55 to 183 form part of these financial
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R=-ZB——F+=-HA=+—H As at 31 December 2012

—B-Cf —ZET——%
2012 2011
Bt 5% THERT FET
Note HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
ERBEE Non-current assets
Mm% - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 18(b) 19 18
BB AR ZEKE Investments in subsidiaries 21 151,707 151,707
A SRR S Available-for-sale equity securities 23 9,520 6,720
161,246 158,445
REEE Current assets
B FIBRES Prepayments and deposits 26 781 774
R Uk BT /8 2 B SR IR Amounts due from subsidiaries 27 1,928,600 1,828,746
RehREFMEIAEE Cash and cash equivalents 29 5,820 16,860
1,935,201 1,846,380
hREEE Current liabilities
AR B A K E MR K Accruals and other payables 30 4,481 4,471
FEEEHIA Amounts due to directors 27 260 260
4,741 4,731
RBEEFE Net current assets 1,930,460 1,841,649
EEFE NET ASSETS 2,091,706 2,000,094
XA CAPITAL AND RESERVES
AN Share capital 33(b) 167,264 167,264
&5 Reserves 33(a) 1,924,442 1,832,830
BEEE TOTAL EQUITY 2,091,706 2,000,094
EEeN _E—="F=-A-t+/\BHEREET Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
B o March 2013.

BREE F P Jiang Quanlong Qian Yuanying
BEE EE Director Director

ES5HE183B 2 BRI B REER —31H - The notes on pages 55 to 183 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-ZF——F+=-H=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

KAARRARGRE
Attributable to owners of the Company
i RiEE EXfE  BTERER HERE EiRE  ATERR REEH 88 ERER L1
Buildings Fair Non-
Share Share Capital ~ revaluation Statutory Translation value Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve Teserves reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
ThL ThL ThL ThnL Tin Tin Tin T Tin T Tin
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
W3--%-F-8 At 1 January 201 167,19 1,769,400 0348 40139 157,604 318,241 (15,760) 885,201 3404373 36,562 3440935
2EhE Comprehensive income
KEREH Profit for the year - - - - - - - 523476 523476 31983 555,459
Aft2EhE Other comprehensive income
BEBNERAHER Exchange diferences on tranlation
JERER of financia satements of
foreign operations - - - - - 165,888 - - 165,888 2593 168,481
AREHEE Share of other comprehensiie
Eh2EkE AR income of jointly controlled entites - - - - - 4659 - - 4659 - 4659
Bl 252w Falr vl loss o avalable-forsale
ATEER equiy securies - - - - - - (1520) - (1520) - (1520)
IEEEERRL Impairment loss on avaiable-for-sale
REFE equity securites - - - - - - 8,280 - 8,280 - 13,280
ERLERERTL Release of tranlaion esenve reating
35 1o disposal of a subsidry
during the year - - - - - (20,010) - - (20,010) (1,083) (21,063)
2EHESE Total comprehensive income - - - 150,537 15,760 523476 689,773 $53 123.2%
BEBREEERE Shates issued under share option
(H3s) scheme (note 35) 10 0 - - - - - m - m
AREERER Appropriations to statutory reserves - - - - 17681 - - (17,681) - = =
inkeRgR ERE Transfr to retsned profit in espect
BREREEH of depreciation on revaluation of
buildings held for own use - - - B - - - 311 - - -
it Transfer to retaned profits n respect
REEH - HRHE of disposal of buildings held for own
use, net of tax - - - (5.114) - - 5114 - - -
FLENBAAL B Release o resrves in respect of
&n disposalof a subsidary - - - (980) 7039) - - 8,018 - -
RIB-—F+ZAZF-B  At31 December 2011 and
Rk=3-2%-A-A 1 January 2012 167,264 1,770,100 0348 30934 168,247 528,784 - 1407.2%9 4094916 70,085 4,165,001
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B seezgax
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BZE-ZF——-F+=-A=1+—HIHFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

KDARAARERS
Attributable to owners of the Company
e RiEE BrdRE  BTERER b 1] EXdF  ATERE REEH B FERER 88
Buildings Fair Non-
Share Share Capital ~ revaluation Statutory Translation value Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserves reserve Teserve profits Total interests Total
Thn Thn Tan Tin Tin Tin T T T Tin Tin

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000

RZB-—E+ZA=1-8  At31 December 2011

R-F-—%-f-B and 1 January 2012 167,264 1,770,100 038 30934 168,247 528,784 - 140739 4094916 70,085 4,165,001
2EhE Comprehensive income
KERER Loss for the year - - - - - - - (679,702) (679,702) (19817) (699,519)
Afb2EhE Other comprehensive income
BERNZRIEER Exchange diferences on translation
JENER offinancia satemens of
foreign operations - - o - = (330) - - (330) ) (339)
AREHER Share of other comprehensiie
Ef2EkE AR income of ointly controlled entites - - - - - 8 - - 8 - 8
Bl aeo vl Fair value gain on avallable-for-sale
LYEYE equity securiies - - - - - - 2,800 - 2,800 - 2800
HEEgEL EERE Defered tax arsing on change n tax
(H33200)) rate (note 32(0) - - - 133 - - - - 1333 - 1333
ENEEE Total comprehensive income - - - 133 - (4) 2800 (679,70 (675811) (19,826) (695,637)
AREETRE Appropriations to statutory reserves - - - - 88,439 - - (88,439) - - -
HiFERET BNE Transfer to retained profits n respect
ERZRDET of depreciaton on revalution of
buldings held for own use = = = (3428) - - - 348 - -
GliERERRETEEE Transfer to retaned profts i respect
REEN AR of disposalof buidings held for own
use, net of tax - - - (1,481) - - - 1481 - - -
Bfifs Dividend paid = = = = = = = (33453) (33453) = (33453
WZF-§+-A=1-A At 31 December 2012 167,264 1,770,100 0318 21358 256,686 528,542 2800 610,554 3385652 50,259 3435911

S5 E183HE MBI BT EF—&H - The notes on pages 55 to 183 form part of these financial
statements. 51
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B EeREREX
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-ZE—_—F+=-A=1—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2012

= —T——F
2012 2011
il THER FAT
Note HKS$' 000 HK$" 000
RESTE Operating activities
REREERZ (Loss)/Profit before income tax
B A (BE) R F from continuing operations (687,158) 716,083
BERIEEEER Profit before income tax from
B %1 Al & ) discontinued operation = 25,255
(687,158) 741,338
ARIER - Adjustments for:
B 75 Bk AR Finance costs 7(a) 2,821 5,698
FEUWA Interest income 6 (9,882) (7,008)
ME BERREZITE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 7(c) 73,171 87,057
AN TIEN T Amortisation of prepaid lease
ez 8 payments on land under
operating leases 7(c) 4,873 5,806
| A EEH Amortisation of intangible assets 7(c) 12,598 24,555
JFE Ui B 3 % L i B W R Impairment loss on trade and
ZBEEE other receivables 7(c) 19,530 12,898
JFEE W32 B R % L A K K Write back of impairment loss
2R EE B R E on trade and other receivables 7(c) (7,644) (5,813)
HEME  KERRE Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
2R,/ (k) FE plant and equipment 7(c) 3,621 (705)
HELEMO BN Net gain on disposal of prepaid
T ez WEFE lease payments on land under
operating leases 7(c) - (8,389)
FEMEG Write down of inventories 25(b) 457,640 91,073
FEMEER Reversal of write down of inventories ~ 25(b) (87,439) (37,944)
HEHB QR 2 W= Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 12 - (20,823)
BEZRBEER Impairment loss on goodwill 17 21,773 =
BVEEZREERE Impairment loss on intangible assets 20 31,626 =
AHHERERESFZ Impairment loss on available-for-sale
E R equity securities 7(c) = 23,280
HEZEHERER Share of losses of jointly controlled
AR entities 25,826 12,244
52 AR 8E Bad debt written off 7(c) 9 441
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B cenansezx
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BZE-ZF——-F+=-A=1+—HIHFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

—B-CF —T——F
2012 2011
Bt 5% FHET FAT
Note HKS$' 000 HK$" 000
EEESRBANKE Operating cash flows before
HERE changes in working capital (138,635) 923,708
FEEM Increase in inventories (49,312) (754,141)
JiE s BR 5% K b E Uk 3R Decrease/(increase) in trade and
A (Ehn) other receivables 112,938 (343,241)
TE 5 5RIB R iR & 38 N Increase in prepayments and deposits (14,137) (63,894)
FERTBR 3R CR 4 /38 hn (Decrease)/increase in trade payables (301) 19,619
RIRE R KHEME (Decrease)/increase in accruals
R CRD) and other payables (78,273) 232,323
JE {2 B3R IEE N Increase in amounts due to directors 555 249
e (ER) FiBMESE  Cash (used in)/generated from
operations (167,165) 14,623
SRR E Tax paid
Ef P EPEMRER PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid 32 (64,950) (138,927)
RETBFERANELFE Net cash used in operating activities (232,115) (124,304)
RETE Investing activities
BEME BERRE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (27,785) (27,785)
HEME  BE REHE Proceeds from disposal of property,
Frf85k1A plant and equipment 15,093 59,296
HELEHO BN Proceeds from disposal of prepaid
T e 2 B RIE lease payments on land under
operating leases - 42,070
TELRZEHES Capital contributions to jointly
controlled entities (24,800) (46,500)
BHEARITE R R Z R & Decrease in pledged bank deposits and
RITEE SRR D restricted bank balances 51,690 2,868
B UF B Interest received 6 9,882 7,008
HEWB QR ZFEIA Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary 34 - 313,125

23
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B senansx
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-ZE—_—F+=-A=1—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E-—F —T——F
2012 2011
B & FTET FiBT
Note HKS$' 000 HK$'000
RETBMEBNELFE Net cash generated from
investing activities 24,080 350,082
mMEEE Financing activities
BEIRITER Repayment of bank borrowings (197,336) (149,939)
FERITERMERE Proceeds from new bank borrowings 148,002 144,439
EMRITERF A Interest paid on bank borrowings 7(a) (2,821) (5,698)
BB ARERT BTG Proceeds from shares issued under
pdiECE O share option scheme = 770
BT E Dividend paid 14 (33,453) =
METHFEANESFEE Net cash used in financing activities (85,608) (10,428)
iﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%’fﬁlﬁ B Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
W)/ EnEE cash equivalents (293,643) 215,350
FUReRASLEEER Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 1,530,123 1,192,774
SEERBB2HE Effect of changes in exchange rate (190) 121,999
FRESRASLEEER Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 29 1,236,290 1,530,123

FES5EZ 1838 MBI B RERE R —215 -
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W 735 3R % B 5E
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BZE-ZF——-F+=-A=1+—HIHFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

—RER
FREBIERERAA(ARA)KRHAS
HEAMKIA—HERENEREER
f - ERONREBMERSFBER AR ([H
RAET]) W ARRAMPEERFER?
ih 25 5> Bl ACricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands & 1 BT g5 & B & | HiE o

KRB BEERRARREERALRYY
Holdings Limited (['YY Holdings|) @ #Z 2 7]
REB R LS FTMAL © YY Holdingsit &
BEAHARALFERAZHBERE -

ARRREMBRAR (RBERIAEER]) R
ERERBREFERHER LER (BEK
KEM) KMAER (BRERRBEERNE
W) -

AEBZTEXBRHPEARKNE ([F
Bl1)ETT - Ap A M BHRRUABT (ET))
IR BIARAB ZIh e B - M B R
RIMBRARZHWEEERARKE (AR
%) EBERR HENRERAEEES
KB #5R50 A KR AYY Holdings (L In g & ¥
REBT)BEME - IWBTITEGRE M BR
RERBH-

GENERAL

China Rare Earth Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the Company’s registered office and principal
place of business are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Dingshu
Town, Yixing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC respectively.

The immediate parent and the ultimate controlling party of
the Company is YY Holdings Limited (“YY Holdings”), which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. YY Holdings does not

produce financial statements available for public use.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are engaged in investment holding and
manufacturing and sales of rare earth products (including
fluorescent products) and refractory products (including high

temperature ceramics products and magnesium grains).

The principal operations of the Group are conducted in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is the functional currency of the Company, while the
functional currency of the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC
is Renminbi (“RMB"). The directors consider that presenting
consolidated financial statements in HK$ is preferable when
controlling and monitoring the performance and financial
position of the Group and in reporting to YY Holdings whose

functional currency is HK$.

)
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| BB EL R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-ZE—_—F+=-A=1—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2012

2. FEGTTEHE
a) BIEH
HERBHRRERRMEBEREEY
BREEN((FEVBERSEL )R
2 ZRBEREMEREAENAE
(IBEEGTEAE]) B 5 E A
RC(EBMBEREEA) (BBETE
AN(TEEGER]) gk FERQ
REFT R REE(RAED) 2 B
BARE o 1o WERBERRTEER
ERABMARSMBRRAESFLTH
AITEMRAD PEROBERE -
AEERRZ TR EFRRBEHN
e

BRGSO EME T RE
BTz ERMBERELER  BEER
BAEERARRNAG T HE TR
R R RIZRTRA o B R4 R
RELENEHREHABRERNETH 2 &
BER M FE3A - HEAZZ RN LS
MBBERMRRZBAERBEETH
RMEAEEERERR -

b) HEHRREHUEE
HE-Z——F+-_A=+—HItFE
ZHREMBHREROERNER 2V BR
TARAEBRLRIEFI B 2 s o

BRTIXEABREABEHREEIN BE
MBBERMRAZFAEEERELK
K
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted

by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012 comprise the financial statements of
the Group and the Group's interests in jointly controlled

entities.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis, except
those disclosed otherwise in the accounting policies

below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BZE-ZF——-F+=-A=1+—HIHFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

2.

34 HE e e

b)

‘\f\’ it

u JH

MBHBRERE

RENENABTEMBRESER 2
BHREAFEEEEBHFLHE Btk
R&K - Mz FHE - Gt BERETE
BRZEAEAEBER EE  AfF W
ARFRXEHRE ZEhFAREER
ROBBBELRIEREBHENZ
FERTHBEEZ R AEMEARS
EEMEL  MEEREXEEEN
BRI RABEEEMRRMSHOEER
BEZEREEMELGEZEE-B
BEFRE RN EET -

AEBEFERAEET RERRRE
LAt - @A ZEHNEFEE
B AEMEst AT 2SN E Mg
RAMEREHFERITRAKRS
A RIEE e HE R R RAREER -

BEEERERBEE VRS LM
FRY BB BRRBERTE 2 HE
AR BB A] BEHE T F E K E A
BER 2 fE5 - FRRR A4 -

M A A R IR RS
MBLARRAEEEH 2 ERE - RA
SEAREEZERIUMBRELER
R NBAEEBERN G - AFEE
il o MAHE IR G - #5 5t RRK AT
EZBEREZRE -

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making judgements about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material

adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 4.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are

taken into account.

o7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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—F+=-HA=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

9]

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)
An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those

interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the

equity owners of the Company.

Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with notes

2(m), (n) or (r) depending on the nature of the liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BZE-ZF——-F+=-A=1+—HIHFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

2.

TESEEE

c)

d)

B D R & FE IR A R (48)
ARERMBRARES 228 IEE
BREESIE - AARIARARZ S
MR BEANEREGFERERS
AT A AR MR
BYTHEHE B TEIAEMNRE
HEE

2SR K 4 Y 1 B O R R A B
AFt AL EZMB AR 25 ER - Eit
ﬁEEWW*W%EMﬁQW%%E
B REEHIEE BRZANE L

mﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%i@ﬁ%(ﬁ%ﬁ
2(f))  FRERERNTERTHEE
BE N FE (HER) 2R

R B R8I A HOR AR (R HTRE2(d)) °

EARR ZHBHRRRA - RIEAE
ZRERRAEREEMBEER (R

B EE2G)()3 R (BRIFZIRB WD ER
BIEHLE) -

HEZEFER
ERZEHEBREREAE@MRAR
FIEEMTNENRHETEELE
B RBLESHR ﬁ $%@ﬁ$ﬂ
a8 —{E s % E

RS A KR %%ME :

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

9]

d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)
Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to

goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in consolidated income statement. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 2(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in a jointly controlled entity
(see note 2(d)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment loss (see note 2(j)(ii)), unless the investments

are classified as held for sale.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the Group
or Company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the Group or Company and
one or more of the other parties share joint control over

the economic activity of the entity.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale). Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess for the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 2(j)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group's

net investment in the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly controlled entity are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in consolidated income

statement.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

e)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a
jointly controlled entity, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in consolidated income
statement. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when joint control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on

initial recognition of a financial asset.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the

business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to

benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. If some or all of the goodwill allocated
to a cash-generating unit was acquired in a business
combination during the current annual period, that unit
shall be tested for impairment before the end of the
current annual period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated income
statement. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is

not reversed in subsequent periods.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

Goodwill (Continued)
On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of goodwill is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in equity securities
The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries

and jointly controlled entities, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair
value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,

depending on their classification:

Investments in equity securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction
costs are recognised in consolidated income statement
as incurred. At the end of each reporting period, the fair
value is remeasured with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in consolidated income statement. The net
gain or loss recognised in consolidated income statement
does not include any dividends or interest earned on

these investments.
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2. EESFHBEE %) 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
f) HttEREFREE) f)  Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

H At N8t (IR Rl a0 2 38 7 4R Investments in equity securities which do not fall into
BRBEANHLERRES - NEHE any of the above categories are classified as available-
RSMEAEER  eERAHEATE for-sale equity securities. At the end of each reporting
gz BEgRNEMEEREHER - period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
REBEEZHZIRERP 2 AT ERK gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
% EEIEE BN AR B MES income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair
ZONERBERIBRIN - UL FHRE S value reserve, except foreign exchange gains and losses
ZIREBWMAGRES WK AR resulting from changes in the amortised cost of monetary
Sl ERE BT S '*ﬁ?@ﬂé’ﬁ‘ﬁiﬁﬁ items. Dividend income from these investments is
B FBRIR I 55 2()(i) B S BRI 4 recognised in consolidated income statement and, where
ERERER ERIBERLFRE these investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated
S FRE R RE (R E20)) & using the effective interest method is recognised in
2 aAEEBERENOEE consolidated income statement in accordance with the
ReEkRERZE policy set out in note 2(s)(ii). When these investments are

derecognised or impaired (see note 2(j)), the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to consolidated

income statement.

$§§@EA$%@7¥K?+E}\/§E&§ Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
RIREFEE AR IR - Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.
g9 YE -RBRERZHE g) Property, plant and equipment
BIEBRAZEFHNIEERE BNER Buildings held for own use are stated at their
EHARCATE) REEBEMRET revalued amount, being their fair value at the date
FEIK - of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated

depreciation.

NABKEETER  UBRLEEER Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to
EEEERERNBRAMEZERA Y ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does not
AFETBRERESR o differ materially from that which would be determined

using fair values at the end of the reporting period.

REERRZBFIN HthE - BE Except for buildings held for own use, other property,
BERXANERRTINERRES plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
BARR (RMEE2()G0) © depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(j)(ii)).
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Changes arising on the revaluation of buildings held for
own use are generally dealt with in other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in the
building revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as

follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to the income statement to the extent
that it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to the

revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to the income statement to the extent that
a deficit on revaluation in respect of that same asset

had previously been charged to income statement.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note

2(u)).

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
as a finance or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lumpsum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the

lease.
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2. SEBUR (&) 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
g) 4@% BERZ®E(E) g) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments on land under operating leases”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is

amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may
also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases

of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in income
statement during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in the income statement on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not

reclassified to income statement.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-

line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings held for own use 20 years
-  Machinery and equipment 10 years
- Office equipment and fixtures 5 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

Construction-in-progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation
and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of construction
of buildings, the costs of machinery and equipment
and interest charges arising from borrowings used to
finance the acquisition of these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. No provision
for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and
are available for their intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to other property, plant and equipment and depreciated

in accordance with the policy as stated above.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable (see note 2(u)). Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(j)(ii)).
Other development expenditure is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see note 2(j)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following
intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised
from the date they are available for use and their

estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Exclusive right to purchase rare 16 years
earth minerals

- Technical know-how for preliminary 10 years
separation of rare earth minerals

- Technical know-how for rare earth 10 years

metal products

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i)

Lease assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating

leases.

ii)  Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to the income statement in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the income statement as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to the income
statement in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the

period of the lease term.



| BEEEELE:
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BZE-ZF——-F+=-A=1+—HIHFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

2. FEGREEE) 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
) EBEERE i) Impairment of assets
0 # SR E 1 JE Uf i) Impairment of investment in equity securities and

JRl 18 other receivables
TRAK AN B Bk 38 K AN BR sk 0 R Investments in equity securities and other current
BAHLEBSORERELRR and non-current receivables that are carried at cost
& N Hh 7t B B 3F 7 Bh 1R UL SR IE or amortised cost or are classified as available-
eRSEPHRBHEERETR for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
o RHEEE FERERMER reporting period to determine whether there
Be-REZREEEREASE is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
BRI T -IBRZEEEEE evidence of impairment includes observable data
ZBEEE that comes to the attention of the Group about one

or more of the following loss events:

- BEBABERUBEE - significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- ERED WEXEENS - a breach of contract, such as a default or
DN delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- BEBATERESETHEM - it becoming probable that the debtor will
BT ER enter into bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

- B W5 BBESEER - significant changes in the technological,
BEERNEMHEBAR market, economic or legal environment that
THTE: & have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- REREFIREZATE - a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
RERRATREEENEK value of an investment in an equity security
e below its cost.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

)

Impairment of investment in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

For investment in subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities (including those recognised
using the equity method (see note 2(d)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 2(j)
(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in

accordance with note 2(j)ii).

For trade receivables and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised cost
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Impairment of investment in equity securities and

other receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the
income statement. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to the income statement.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in the income statement is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
the asset previously recognised in the income

statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities are not reversed through the
income statement. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets is recognised in

other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances are

recognised in the income statement.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

ii)

Impairment of investment in equity securities and

other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade debtors, bills receivables and other
receivables included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade debtors, bills receivables and
other receivables directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in

the income statement.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:

- goodwill;

- property, plant and equipment (other than

buildings carried at revalued amounts);
- prepaid lease payments;
- intangible assets;
—  investments in subsidiaries;
—  interests in jointly controlled entities ; and
- other non-current asset.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable

amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,

intangible assets that are not yet available for

use and intangible assets that have indefinite

useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated

annually whether or not there is any indication of

impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
a cash-generating unit are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair values less

costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not

reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to the
consolidated income statement in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

ifi)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 2(j)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill and available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed in a subsequent period.
This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates. Consequently, if
the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increase in the remainder of the annual period, or
in any other period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income and not

profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost

formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of

conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k)

n)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the

reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(j)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for

impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(j)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees

payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(r)(i), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case

they are stated at cost.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

o)

p)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated

statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.

i) Share options granted to employee after 7
November 2002 and vested before 1 January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the consolidated financial statements
until such time as the options are exercised, and
no charge is recognised in the consolidated income
statement in respect of the value of options
granted. Upon the exercise of the share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares,
and the excess of the exercise price per share over
the nominal value of the shares is recorded as share
premium. Options which lapse or are cancelled prior
to their exercise date are deleted from the register

of outstanding options.

77

Annual Report 2012 43




| BB EL R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-ZE—_—F+=-A=1—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2012

2. FEEREEK®E)
p) EEFEH (A

i) ALy v/
RIEBAEEAEERERTE
RIHEANE B RER GBI
WEERAGEERE EXFE
S 8) T 1R 4478 RS 63 -

a FREH
REEREHEEAMBIALRTH
HEENAFBEZES - AHUHBAREL
HREEMABZEHIN KD RE
R MEENEM RS REE N SR
HRZEBBRE  AEBBED BN
Hip 2 EN AL E RN EENER -

AHMBIBRRAFEERTBWAZRA
REARAEEAEAEHTHEE LB
BTG ECHRRNHE N
M BEFERMBIA A EMFE -

EREMIFEEMAED B i A HIME
RANERZR  BEMBERERECE
ENBEZREEEARSEREZHZ
ZRMEL - BERERBEENAEAKE
ARBEBRERERREERMES

78

Annual Report 2012 %

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

p)

a)

Employee benefits (Continued)

iii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of

withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in the income statement except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary differences or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which

the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable

that they will reverse in the future.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

q)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not

discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits

will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the

related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the Group or
the Company has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or the Company intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g) Income tax (Continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax

liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.

r)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial

recognition of any deferred income.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

r

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 2(r)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

s)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue

is recognised in income statement as follows:

i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the Group has
transferred to the customer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods. Revenue
excludes value added and business taxes, and is
after deduction of any goods returns and trade

discounts.

i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

t)

u)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into
HK$ at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into HK$ at
the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the translation
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of

acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to income
statement when the profit or loss on disposal is

recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in

the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are

interrupted or complete.
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2. FEEHHEG4

A

) 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

v) CBRIEREHEK v) Discontinued operation

BERIESEEB D ANEBER 2 — 3 A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's

- HEEERRSRENHASEY business, the operations and cash flows of which can

Hih 2% EMmEE - BEAB2* be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and

EEBRIKKLZEE KALHES which represents a separate major line of business or

VFEXBRIKLE R ZE—1H geographical area of operations, or is part of a single

AT E 2 —2Hm  HARBEMEPIK co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line

BrzWEAT - of business or geographical area of operations, or is a

subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

DERERIEEEBRLERELE - Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon

EEBHENER  2BRERLEER disposal. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

ZERTMGHE -

EXBWOBRERIELLR  x Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a

REERI—B—HE ERBE: single amount is presented on the face of the income

statement, which comprises:

- BRIEEBZBESNIERS: - the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
P54 operation; and

- HERERIEEBZEERHE - the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
BRIz A TFERBEE I ERA measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
A EMBRIBERE - on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)

constituting the discontinued operation.
w) BEAL w) Related parties

(a) MEZEALBATER 8%
AL HZALZ R 88
REBEME -

) HAKEEAESEKER
1R

iy HAKBEEEAFEN:
2

i) MAAKERAEEZHRTF]
ZETEBEBABZKE -

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,

is related to the Group if that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Group;

i) has significant influence over the Group; or

iii) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group's parent.
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—F+=-HA=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

w)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

ii)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity.

v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group.

vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (a).

vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of

a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

X)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's various lines of business

and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share

a majority of these criteria.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
- Transfers of Financial
Assets; and

Deferred Tax: Recovery

of Underlying Assets
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain disclosures to be
included in the financial statements in respect of transferred
financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety and
for any continuing involvement in transferred financial assets
that are derecognised in their entirety, irrespective of when the
related transfer transaction occurred. However, an entity need
not provide the disclosures for the comparative period in the
first year of adoption. The Group did not have any significant
transfers of financial assets in previous periods or the current
period which require disclosure in the current accounting

period under the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes

Under HKAS 12 deferred tax is required to be measured
with reference to the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the entity expects to recover the
carrying amount of the assets in question. In this regard, the
amendments to HKAS 12 introduced a rebuttable presumption
that the carrying amount of investment property carried at fair
value under HKAS 40, Investment property, will be recovered
through sale. This presumption is rebutted on a property-
by-property basis if the investment property in question
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodies in the investment property over time, rather

than through sale.

The application of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.

Accordingly, no prior year adjustment is required.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HEMBHRERTIEAE FESTNAEE Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
BOETIRBE_ZE——F+-HA=+—H

EFERARERZERTAR LR R2E -

HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

REBEWERFER T2 BME B RER The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

AR MBI A - BRI AR standards, amendments or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

BN BREEZN SRTA HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

BEUBREENEI0R LeyBaRR HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements?

BEUBREEUENR RERHR HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

BENBREENZ125% BENAMER  ER HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?

BENBREENZ13% NYERE HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

ERMBHSERETR
PALHEN

BREEF19%
(ZF——FEE:D)
BREERFT
(ZF——FEE:D)
BREERF 285
(ZF——F8§H)

RESE-AHERAE
keRAR

EERH

BUBBHER

REERARAELR
BB

Amendments to HKFRS 7

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures?
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income'
Amendment to HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 7

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures?

Amendment to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Statements, joint

arrangements and Disclosure

of Interests in Other Entities:

Transition Guidance'

Amendment to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entities?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle except for

the amendments to HKAS 12

K (IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the

Production Phase of a Surface

Mine?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on

the Group's results of operations and financial position.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in note 2, management has made
certain key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimated uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as

discussed below.

i) Estimation of impairment of goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of
goodwill is HK$Nil (2011: HK$21,776,000). Details
of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed

in note 17.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

if)

iii)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment and prepaid lease payments on land
under operating leases

Management determines the estimated useful lives
and residual values for the Group's property, plant
and equipment and prepaid lease payments on
land under operating leases in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2(g) and note 2(i)
respectively. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge and the amortisation expense where useful
lives and residual values are different from previous
estimates, or will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been

abandoned or sold.

Estimation of impairment of property, plant and
equipment except buildings held for own use

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in
assessing whether an event has occurred that may
affect the asset value or such event affecting the

asset value has not been in existence.

Such assessment was based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might differ
materially from the actual results. In exercising
judgement, the Group considers information such
as the amounts of the replacement cost of the
property, plant and equipment except for buildings
held for own use and deductions to account for the
age, condition, economic or functional obsolescence
and environmental factors existing at the end of
each reporting period. As at 31 December 2012, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
except buildings held for own use is approximately
HK$216,557,000 (2011: HK$265,125,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

iv)

Estimation of fair value of buildings held for own
use

As described in note 18(a)(ii), the buildings held
for own use were revalued at 31 December 2012
using the depreciable replacement cost approach
by an independent professional qualified valuer.
Such valuations were based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainties and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making
the judgement, the Group considers information
such as the amounts of the replacement cost of the
buildings and deductions to account for the age,
condition, economic or functional obsolescence
and environmental factors existing at the end of
each reporting period. As at 31 December 2012,
the carrying amount of buildings held for own
use is approximately HK$188,854,000 (2011:
HK$204,443,000).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

v)

Estimation of impairment of intangible assets and
prepaid lease payments on land under operating
leases

The Group performs annual assessments on
whether there has been impairment of intangible
assets and prepaid lease payments on land
under operating leases in accordance with the
The

recoverable amounts of cash-generating units are

accounting policy stated in note 2(j)(ii).

determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates
and assumptions made by management on the
future operation of the business, pre-tax discount
rates, and other assumptions underlying the
value in use calculations. The directors are of
opinion that prepaid lease payments on land
under operating leases is not impaired as at 31
December 2012 and 2011. As at 31 December
2012, the carrying amounts of intangible assets and
prepaid lease payments on land under operating
leases are approximately HK$43,963,000 (2011:
HK$88,198,000) and HK$187,157,000 (2011:
HK$210,759,000) respectively. Details of the
impairment of intangible assets are disclosed in note
20.

Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note 2(h).
The determination of the useful lives involves
management’s estimation. The Group re-assesses
the useful life of the intangible assets and, if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such
a difference may impact the amortisation in the
year and the estimate will be changed in the future

period.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

vii)

viii)

Estimation of impairment of receivables

The policy for recognising impairment on receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectibility, ageing analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional impairment may be required.
As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount
of trade and other receivables is approximately
HK$478,577,000 (2011: HK$603,405,000). Details
of the impairment of receivables are disclosed in
note 26(c).

Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined
on the basis of the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market conditions and
the historical experience of manufacturing and
selling products of similar nature. The directors
estimate the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. As at 31 December 2012,
the directors performed a review on a product-
by-product basis and made a write down of its
inventories of approximately HK$457,640,000
(2011: HK$91,073,000) and a reversal of
write down of inventories of approximately
HK$87,439,000 (2011: HK$37,944,000).
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4, BRSTHERMATTIEREZETER 4
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies

In determining the carrying amounts of some assets and
liabilities, the Group makes assumptions for the effects of
uncertain future events on those assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period. These estimates involve
assumptions about such items as cash flows and discount
rates used. The Group’s estimates and assumptions
are based on historical experience and expectations of
future events and are reviewed periodically. In addition
to assumptions and estimations of future events,
judgements are also made during the process of applying

the Group's accounting policies.

i) Income taxes and deferred taxation
The Group is subject to income tax in Hong Kong
and various taxes in PRC. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for taxation.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in

which such determination is made.
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4. BREHHERMETTIREZETER 4

()
b) PR A R B R A A 2 Bk
41 2187 ()

BZRERBEEE  ITRERE
REBBUEENHAERN
EAEEERERESRIEBRE
BRTHTAER - WZIBEH
BRIRERMEE  ZEEEHT
LERB AN G AMEMER
ZEEHEEERBIESH o 3
HhE  AEEERZT—Z=F
TZA=+t-HRRELEHEE
EXBED R #6,321,000% 7T
(ZZF——1%:8,223,0008 L) &
25,812,000 (Z T —— 4 :
31,505,000/ 7T) °
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group’s accounting policies (Continued)

i)

ii)

Income taxes and deferred taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and certain tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and tax
charge in the periods in which such estimate is
changed. In this regard, the Group has recognised
deferred tax assets and liabilities in the amounts of
approximately HK$6,321,000 (2011: HK$8,223,000)
and HK$25,812,000 (2011: HK$31,505,000) as at
31 December 2012 respectively.

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of
dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue
for withholding taxes arising from the distributions
of dividends from certain subsidiaries according to
the relevant tax jurisdictions is subject to judgement
on the timing of the payment of the dividend.
The Group considered that if the profits will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future, then no

withholding taxes should be provided.

97

Annual Report 2012 43




| BB EL R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-ZF——F+=-H=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

5. ¥ 5.

EXERERETEFPZERBERE(TE
REERLEER)  LHREMRERE
S AERRNEXRBRFER RS2

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to

customers which excludes value-added and business taxes, and

is after deduction of any goods returns and trade discounts.

FERReBENAT The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised
in turnover during the year is as follows:
BELEXY BRLEEEH E)
Continuing operations  Discontinued operation Consolidated
“--f -3-——-Ff C-E--f Z-3-——F ZF-Zf ZF--F
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
TEn TR TiEn TAL TEn TR
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
BiEM Sales of rare earth products
(BE%XKER)HE (including fluorescent products) 1,626,524 1,765,308 - 82,434 1,626,524 1,848,242
HAER Sales of refractory products
(RERRBEER (including high temperature ceramics
RED) #E products and magnesium
grains) 475,394 447,546 - - 475,394 447,546
2101918 2,213,354 - 82434 201918 2,295,788
6. Hfttlz 6. OTHER REVENUE
BELSEER BRLBELH &84
Continuing operations  Discontinued operation Consolidated
“8--f -3--% ZB--f —Z--f ZB-“f C-T--%
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 201
TAn TAL TEn ThEr TEn TAT
HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HKS$" 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000
RITFARHBHA Interest income from bank
deposits 9,882 7,008 - - 9,882 7,008
MEE Note:

RITERFBRARL R R FEIABE S
BEBEENSRALEE -
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Interest income from bank deposits represents the total interest income
on financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss.
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7. BREA (BB R 7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BrALAl (B1R) CEFIB IR (GEA) T3 (Loss)/Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
I8 (crediting):
REGEEY BRLEEEH &4
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
“§--§ -F--% <CE--f§ -F-% <-E--f -3--F
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

TEn TiEL TEz TiEL TiEx TiEL
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000

a  HBEA a)  Finance costs
ERRENEHER Interest expenses on bank
LBAEFNE T borrowings wholly repayable
within five years 2,821 5,698 - = 2,81 5,698
UHRATENABRZ Total interest expense on financial
SRARNE T AR liabiities not at fair value through
profit or loss 2,821 5,698 - - 2,821 5,698

b)  BIFA(BEMTY b)  Staff costs (including directors’

fEzEEME) emoluments in note 9)
HeRIE Salaries and wages 56,358 51,783 - 572 56,358 52,355
RIERI AR Retirement benefits scheme

(HzE11) contributions (note 11) 4,329 3441 - = 4,329 3441

60,687 55,224 = 572 60,687 55,7%
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Nz

7. BR¥A(BR) ORF (@) 7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)
BELEER BRLEBEER &a
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
Z%--f -%-—-£ CZ%-2f <-E--£ <ZB-Zf “T--%&
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Thr Thn THT i TR Thn
HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
o  HftER Other items
Tk Auditor's remuneration 3,475 3,445 = = 3475 3445
FEIA (HE25(0) Cost of inventores (note 25(b)) 2544843 1,159,922 - 76643 25M88 1236565
g BRRZXELNE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 31N 85,529 - 1,528 1311 87,057
BERNTEN D Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

ik §= on land under operating leases 4,873 5,456 - 350 4,873 5,806
BYAEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 12,508 12,295 - 12,260 12,598 24,555
S o Bad debt written off 9 441 - - 9 441
MBS REME Impairment loss on trade and other

Wiz REER receivables 19,530 12,898 - - 19,530 12,898
RUERSRE R Reversal of impairment loss on trade

LAEERER and other receivables (7,644) (5,813) - - (7,644) (5813)
BiREHEES Impairment loss on prepayment 1,074 = - = 1,074 =
BRFECAEEEER Reversal of impairment loss on

prepayment 1,150 - - - 1,150 -
HEREROTRA L1 Net gain on disposal of prepaid lease
AezbaEE payments on land under operating
leases - (8,389) - - - (8,389)
LENE  HRERF Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property,

B8/ &) #E plant and equipment 3621 (705) - - 3,621 (705)
EREEEE Net exchange loss 531 9,600 = - 531 9,600
RENFEEREL L Operating lease charges on rented

premises 2,360 2,105 - 39 2,360 2,144
it Research and development

expenditure - 2,146 - - - 2,146
BELNESE (M) Impairment loss on goodwill (note 17) 1113 = - - 1713 =
BYEERE Impairment loss on intangible assets

B (Hz20) (note 20) 31,626 - - - 31,626 -
R ERRES Impairment loss on available-for-sale

LREEE equity securities - 23,280 - = - 23,280
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8. HEWBRAZMEH 8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT
a) HAERERANZFBRIE: a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents:
RERERH BRLBERE &4
Continuing operations  Discontinued operation Consolidated
“2--f -%--% CZ®-Zf -T--F Z®--f C-E--F
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

FiEn TR FiEn TR FiEn TER
HKS' 000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$' 000

RERE-pELE Current tax - PRC Enterprise
MR (LEMEHR]) Income Tax (“EIT")
EEEE (H:320) Provision for the year (note 32(a)) 12,261 179,839 = 12,143 12,261 191,982
RERE-ERAEH Current tax - HK Profits Tax
EEARE (H35326) Provision for the year (note 32(a))
-LEREIR ~ Under provision in prior year 2414 = - = 2,414 =
BERE Deferred taxation
ERUZRZES Origination and reversal of temporary
R (fE32(0)) differences (note 32(b)) (2,314) (3,554) - (2,549) (2,314) (6,103)
k=2t Income tax charge 12,361 176,285 - 9,594 12,361 185,879
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8. BAWEEAZFER

a) (4
i}

pry

ARBRERERSERENEHSEMMK
VAEREEREERA Bt BREX
NREFSREH -

EBEEREEBE A FE SRR
HEME16.5% (ZT——%F:16.5%) 514 -

RIS ERERAN ([REMERZE]D
REHES BT NF—A—B ' &
SEPEMBARZHER25% °

AKETREMNBARNERZREIFS B
BERARRESRFABRFKEERERARE
BE T\ FRIAMFERRPECEM
B - BEIR = ES0%RIE MR

AEEFHEMBRARNEETRFNKBLE
RAB(TFIRBL)R=_F——F+=A
“toRERANEREZ (R RME
X UAZFEEEMEREIS% -

752 (B o B TR 1 ) SR R R A A
BRARDR=ZZ—=ZFNA=+HBK AN
ERE [BMBMeE] WA ZHBEM
B EI5% °
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8.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (Continued)

a)

(Continued)
Note:

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Company
Law of the Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from

payment of the Cayman Islands income tax.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 16.5%

(2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law"”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the

Group's PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group, Yixing Wellfire Nonmetal
Materials Co., Ltd. and Hai Cheng Xinwei Leeshing Magnesium
Resources Co., Ltd. are entitled to the exemptions from PRC EIT
for two years starting from 2008, followed by a 50% tax relief

for the next three years.

The PRC subsidiary of the Group, Yixing Xinwei Leeshing Rare
Earth Company Limited (“Leeshing Rare Earth”) became a foreign
invested “encouraged hi-tech enterprise” with effective from 22
December 2011 and was entitled to a preferential income tax

rate of 15%.

The PRC subsidiary of the Group, Yixing Xinwei Leeshing
Refractory Materials Company Limited became a foreign invested
“encouraged hi-tech enterprise” with effective from 20 August

2012 and was entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15%.
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8. HAKRARAZMBHR (&) 8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (Continued)
b) FIBHSERE Az FiRERR b) Reconciliation between income tax charge and
RetBZHEMT accounting profit at applicable tax rates is as follows:
RERERH BRLBERE &4
Continuing operations  Discontinued operation Consolidated
“2--f -%--% CZ®-Zf -T--F Z®--f C-E--F
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
TAn TET ThR TAL ThAR TR
HKS' 000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$' 000
BBia (B5i8) /& H (Loss)/Profit before taxation (687,158) 716,083 - 4430 (687,158) 720,515
I PR 2 80 2 B B M Pre-tax gain on disposal of a subsidiary - - - 20,823 - 20,823
(687,158) 716,083 - 25255 (687,158) 741,338
BEH (BE) /#H Notional tax on (loss)/profit before
REBAAER taxation, calculated at the rates
BRREGHEZ applicable to the jurisdictions
RERE concerned (164477) 143,885 - 4231 (164477) 148,116
TN B2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 54,183 24,062 = 5,363 54,183 29,425
HARHERERNE Tax effect of share of losses of
HEFE jointly controlled entities 6,457 3,061 - = 6,457 3,061
BERHBAZRBY 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (658) (20) = = (658) (20)
ARANBEEZNBTE Tax effect of tax loss not recognised 119,537 5,674 - - 119,537 5,674
nENBADERHERE Tax effect of tax exemption granted
LHBY2 to a PRC subsidiary (2,681) (377) - - (2,681) (377)
FER i Income tax charge 12,361 176,285 - 9,594 12,361 185,879
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9. EEMe 9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
a) WBEBEBLRGAEIERENES a)  Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161
MEmT of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:
—B-CF —T——F
2012 2011
FER FAET
HK$’'000 HK$" 000
BITES Executive directors
— & ROERL — salaries and allowance 2,677 2,478
BUERITES Independent non-executive directors
ik - fees 200 167
2,877 2,645
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9.

BEEME (®)

9. DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION (Continued)

b) HEZZ—=—FR=ZZT—F+=A b)  Details of directors’ remuneration by individual director
=+—BLEFE  AREEZEEH for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 are as
SHEHAT : follows:

—E-C-F
2012
BEXFHE EE
EsZHe RENEF BemaE
Basic salaries,
Directors’ allowance and Total
fees benefits-in-kind emoluments
FER FTER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
HTES Executive directors
BRELE Mr. Jiang Quanlong - 1,430 1,430
BrEit Ms. Qian Yuanying - 1,099 1,099
Brmks Mr. Jiang Cainan - 148 148
BYFHTES Independent non-executive
directors
ZIRNEE (FTFE1) Mr. Liu Yujiu (note 1) 53 = 53
TEEZEE (H2) Mr. Wang Guozhen (note 2) 31 = 31
BREELLE Mr. Huang Chunhua 72 - 72
eELE Mr. Jin Zhong 44 - 44
200 2,677 2,877
MizE1: BERZZE—-FNA—HEE- Note 1: Resigned on 1 August 2012.
M2 : BRZZE—=-FNA—BEZRE- Note 2: Appointed on 1 August 2012.
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9. EESME(® 9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued)
b) (#&) b)  (Continued)
—T——F
2011
BER%S 2R
BERe R EYREF [l ot
Basic salaries,
Directors’ allowance and Total
fees benefits-in-kind emoluments
FHET FAT FHT
HK$' 000 HK$’000 HK$' 000
HITES Executive directors
BREEE Mr. Jiang Quanlong - 1,320 1,320
BILELT Ms. Qian Yuanying - 1,014 1,014
BAmrE Mr. Jiang Cainan = 144 144
BYKBTES Independent non-executive
directors
BRNEE Mr. Liu Yujiu 52 = 52
BEEELE Mr. Huang Chunhua 72 = 72
SELE Mr. Jin Zhong 43 = 43
167 2,478 2,645
BE—_E——-—ER-_E——F+=-A=1+— During the two years ended 31 December 2012
HIERMFEEA > BESEWRETMEE - & and 2011, no directors waived any emoluments. No
E-F——H#KR-FT——&F+-_A=+—H inducement payments to join or upon joining the Group
IFREER  BERERES ke or as compensation for loss of office was paid or payable
ANE B A KNE B 2 5B s B to any director for the two years ended 31 December
=i 2012 and 2011.
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10. &ZEHFAL
BE-_Z——F+-A=t+—HILFE"
AEBRAETRRFATH EF=%(=F
——F:ZR)AARARES S RK
HOWE EBME (CT——F WA &
SEATZHeBENT

10.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, out of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group, three (2011: three) are
directors of the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 9. The aggregate emoluments in respect of the remaining

two (2011: two) highest paid individuals are as follows:

—E-C-F —T——F

2012 2011

FHx FAT

HK$’000 HK$' 000

EXHS  ZMEREVEF Basic salaries, allowance and benefits-in-kind 1,105 1,157
RIRAEFIRT B4 5K Retirement benefits scheme contribution 55 58
1,160 1,215

BE_ TS+ _A=t+—HIEFE X

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the emoluments of the

B (ZE——F MB)&ZEFALTZH remaining two (2011: two) highest paid individuals are within
ENFRTINEE ! the following band:

—F-=F —F—F

2012 2011

Z —1,000,000/% 7T Nil — HK$1,000,000 2 2

RMEFER  AEELERALRDHA
T (BREZNEE) XNEAME  FRH
B EC A0 AR 07 52 58 iy £ 6 M o ot R
fz

o

Ik

No emoluments were paid to the five highest individuals
including directors and employees as inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office in

both years.

107

Annual Report 2012 43




108

| BB EL R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-ZE—_—F+=-A=1—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2012

11.

EEEKEF

R B AR B RAEBIRI AR TE - AR R
B EAREAEZEESRBE R
E(—BRATHRBARSITE) S #X
HARBEAFEMI5% 20% (=T ——
F 1 17%—20%) ° 1 BR K18 1) 4 F 2 Bh
HEER A E B E M o AR AR R B
BRAAKREFHETIIN BEAINERRNK
& NBABBEEBNEKERET HEZ
T——_F+-A=+—BLEFE BIRs
LR L 54,271,0008 T (ZE——4F:
3,383,000/ 7T) ° ZEt B RN EE o

ok

REBETERBEENRARBE_SSEF
TZA—BRE2HBESHE ([HEEET
2]) - A AT BEHETERKREE - %A
A AREEEAFT E5%MATEI K -
BHE-_Z——F+-A=t—BIFEE &K
S B MR E S B H 458,000 (=T
——% : 58,000/ 7TC) - BIESHEEHEAK
SENEENHRE  THBUIEESK
BER R BIHRREEE -
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11.

EMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As stipulated by the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to contribute
to a state-sponsored retirement plan, which is a defined
contribution pension scheme, for all of their employees based
on 15% to 20% (2011: 17% to 20%) of the employee’s basic
salary. The state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to retired employees
and the PRC subsidiaries of the Company have no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or other post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions. For
the year ended 31 December 2012, the retirement plan
contributions amounted to approximately HK$4,271,000
(2011: HK$3,383,000). Contributions to the plan vest

immediately.

A company in the Group operating in Hong Kong has
participated in Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”), which is a defined contribution pension scheme,
since 1 December 2000. The Company makes monthly
contributions to the scheme based on 5% of the employees’
basic salaries. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group's contributions to the MPF Scheme were approximately
HK$58,000 (2011: HK$58,000). The assets of the fund are
held separately from those of the Group and are managed by
independent professional fund managers. Contributions to the

plan vest progressively.
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

12. B& 1t

REEK
R=ZZF——FNANA  AEBKHERAF
Lt EMEBE = HET M REE R
# - ME S REARK257,000,0007T &
TERNIEEREAGRER T HMEAR
AEN([HER L) M2 HBER - WER T
ERPENEREREERTEE - ZLE
ERZZE—F/\A+ZBEK -

On 8 August 2011, a subsidiary of the Group, Leeshing Rare
Earth, entered into an equity transfer agreement with two
independent third parties to dispose of its entire interest
in Jianghua Yao Nationality Autonomous County Xinghua
Rare Earth Company Limited (“Xinghua Rare Earth”) at a
consideration of RMB257,000,000 for cash. Xinghua Rare Earth
is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of rare earth
salts in the PRC. The disposal was completed on 12 August
2011.

The results of the discontinued operation for the period from 1
January 2011 to 12 August 2011, which have been included in

the consolidated income statement, are as follows:

—E-CF —E——F
2012 2011
B & FExT FAET
Note HK$' 000 HK$' 000
B Turnover 5 = 82,434
izl Cost of sales 7(c) = (76,643)
EF Gross profit = 5,791
EREH Administrative expenses = (1,359)
B 76 AT 4 Profit before taxation - 4,432
Fris®t Income tax = (1,108)
- 3,324
HEMB AR ZFAT  Pre-tax gain on disposal of
Wz (P 7£34) a subsidiary (note 34) - 20,823
HEWBRRZFER Income tax on disposal of a subsidiary = (8,486)
HEMB AR ZH%E  Post-tax gain on disposal of
Wz a subsidiary - 12,337
REEBKIE Profit for the year from discontinued
48 2 7% | operation = 15,661
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12. BRIEREEK (8)
BARLEeEER—_T——F—A—HE=
TZ——FNA+-BEBREZRSREEH

12.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)
The net cash flows of the discontinued operation for the period

from 1 January 2011 to 12 August 2011 are as follows:

LN
—F-=F —F——%
2012 2011
TER FAT
HK$’'000 HK$" 000
KEEHMENREFE Net cash generated from operating activities - 432
REEHFANE e FE Net cash used in investing activities = (554)
Rent FE Net cash outflow = (122)

13. ZAFEE ARG (BE) &5A
ARBIEAANELGEEEEBEEENRART
B 7% ¥R 3% A R 3B M9 1 49122,265,0007%8 7T
(ZZ——1F : F184936,357,0008 L) °

14. BE
BE_Z-—FR-F——F+tZA=1+—
AIEMEFE ESFUTERLEIRTHR
S

EEfEERNBE - ——-F+=-A
=t+—HLEFEZRARB (ZZ——F :
281l - & $£#4933,453,000/8 7T) °

REBEEZZ——F+=-A=1+—BLEFE "

B R EFERRE FRR2B
4 $£4933,453,0008 L (T ——4F : £&) o
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13.

14.

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company
includes a profit of approximately HK$122,265,000 (2011: loss
of approximately HK$36,357,000) which has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend has been proposed or declared by the
directors for the two years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011.

No final dividend (2011: HK2 cents per share amounting to
approximately HK$33,453,000) was proposed by the directors
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

A final dividend for previous year at HK2 cents per share
amounting to approximately HK$33,453,000 was approved
and paid during the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).
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15. R (FE) BA 15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
a) BREX(FR) EF a)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

RERIFASZ R (i) For continuing and discontinued operations
BREAX (BB BFDHR

BARRHEBEAELEBRY
679,702,000 T (=T ——F :
i F 49523,476,000/8 7t) B A
FEBETTBRMETHE
1,672,643,000/% (=& —— % :
1,672,329,0000%) 51 & - AT -

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share
is based on the loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$679,702,000 (2011:
profit of approximately HK$523,476,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,672,643,000 (2011:
1,672,329,000) ordinary shares in issue during the

year, calculated as follows:

—E-——F —E——fF

2012 2011

TR T

000 "000

R—A—BE%TLER Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 1,672,643 1,671,943

RIBERETE B 8T Effect of shares issued under share

52 (FiT5E33(b)) option scheme (note 33(b)) - 386
R+ZA=+—HB&BR Weighted average number of ordinary

Z INHE T 15 B shares at 31 December 1,672,643 1,672,329
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15. B8R (B18) B (®) 15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
a) BREX(ERE) BFE) a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (Continued)

(i) KEFFEEEEFE (i) From continuing operations
ARRBEEAEEREFELE The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share
¥B o REN(EE) /BFTS from continuing operations attributable to owners
BETINEETE : of the Company is based on the following data:
(BR) /BFHTHENT (Loss)/Earnings figures are calculated as follows:

—E-C-F —E——4
2012 2011
THER FAT
HK$’' 000 HK$" 000
RAGIHEE AEMN (Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to
KEE (BE),/EF owners of the Company (679,702) 523,476
B ADE B AEN Less: Profit for the year from discontinued
REBKRIEEZEET operation attributable to owners of
2N F B A the Company = (14,878)
MREABHELCLERSN  (Loss)/Earnings for the purpose of
HEA(B#E) /BNmE basic (loss)/earnings per share from
2 (B8 BF continuing operations (679,702) 508,598

RREFELEEBRERIEL
BEBMAZ ST A @)
(VETEFaLE FE A o
(i) KEERIAZEZF

REERIEEEEBTRENE
BAESRTBWL(ZZ—F &
70.8978 L) TyIRIE R B B &R IEAE
BEBZAFEBRTEL(ZF
——F 5 #914,878,0007 1)

.
iTE -

HAREBFELEEBRERLER
EEBA.C 8 XK Q)
112 (Ve &R -
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(ifi)

The denominators used are the same as those
detailed in note (a)(i) above for continuing and

discontinued operations.

From discontinued operation

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operation
is HKNil cent (2011: earnings of HK0.89 cents)
per share based on the loss for the year from the
discontinued operation of HKS$Nil (2011: profit of
approximately HK$14,878,000).

The denominators used are the same as those
detailed in note (a)(i) above for continuing and

discontinued operations.
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15. R (&#E) BF (&) 15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
b) SR#EE(EHE) BF b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

(i) FELERERERIEERE (i)  For continuing and discontinued operations

HE T—_¢+ A=+—H The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share

LHFEZSREE (FB) /BF for the year ended 31 December 2012 is based on

TBBEARNBHEE AEEBELY the loss attributable to owners of the Company

679,702,000 T (=& ——4F : of approximately HK$679,702,000 (2011: profit

i ) 49523,476,0007%8 7T) KX L@ of approximately HK$523,476,000) and the

& o0 #E 35 $41,672,643,000/% weighted average number of 1,672,643,000 (2011:

(ZZF——%:1,672,541,0008%) 1,672,541,000) ordinary shares, calculated as
TE T follows:

—2-—=F —T——F

2012 2011

TR T A%

‘000 "000

R+ZA=+—BEBR Weighted average number of ordinary

2 INFEF & shares at 31 December 1,672,643 1,672,329
RIEAR R B ERERT S Effect of deemed issue of shares under
RIELNTEREBITRG the Company’s share option scheme

&2 (Mr3E35) for nil consideration (note 35) - 212
Rt+tZA=+—HA%LER Weighted average number of ordinary

(f858) 2 hniE 198 shares (diluted) at 31 December 1,672,643 1,672,541
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15. B8R (E8) BF (&) 15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

b) SREXR(EE) BF(E) b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (Continued)
(i) KEFFEEEEFE (i) From continuing operations

(i)
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AREHEAARIERETFELE
X%z skEE(BR) BN
RIBE TN EIEFE

(BH) / BAEFHENT

The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share
from continuing operations attributable to owners

of the Company is based on the following data:

(Loss)/Earnings figures are calculated as follows:

—2-=f —E——%
2012 2011
TR T
HK$'000 HK$' 000
KAEHAE AESL (Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to
REE (BB, /R owners of the Company (679,702) 523,476
s NYNGIE 2 =D L Less: Profit for the year from discontinued
RADKRIEEEER operation attributable to owners of
ZAREZEF the Company = (14,878)
RRABELEEBER (Loss)/Earnings for the purpose of
5 (BB BRmNs diluted (loss)/earnings per share from
2 (EE) /&7 continuing operations (679,702) 508,598

RREFELEEBRERIEL
BEISEHTHA 25 88 EXHiFDb)
(VETEFaE MR o

REERIEEEBTRESE
BAESRTBW(ZE——F &
70.8978 L) TyRIE R B B &R LA
BEBIZAFEBBRTETL(ZT
——% @ 414,878,000 7T)

s
iE o

(ifi)

HAEBFELEEBRERLR
EEBMA 27 & X ED)
(Ve & AR -

The denominators used are the same as those
detailed in note (b)(i) above for continuing and

discontinued operations.

From discontinued operation

Diluted loss per share for the discontinued operation
is HKNil cent (2011: earnings of HK0.89 cents)
per share based on the loss for the year from the
discontinued operation of HK$Nil (2011: profit of
approximately HK$14,878,000).

The denominators used are the same as those
detailed in note (b)(i) above for continuing and

discontinued operations.
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING

AR
AEBREBEEE D DB RETER - 1
RMBAMBRERANFSR[RENHI R
RAKERR/IEEEFLEERRAZITR
RENB2BANERDERKRRFEZE
B—2 A&EE25 TMEZHI#MT :

Bt HERHEBRIER (BRERAE

an)

A : BHERHEMAER (BERREE
Em&kEY)

a) DBEE BEREE
RIBE BTG EERIEH -
ﬁﬂ%#&i\%ﬁﬁxz“*ﬁéﬂﬁiﬂ”zﬁﬁ
BiTHRAHRFEDIBRRELD
BB 2 B IR P ER A ﬁﬂ*@(Zﬁi&%ﬁ
Hopitms - ARETHARRET
FIEEEREHE RN ABEIAZEE
BENARE:

HEESR %ﬁﬁ*ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ&ﬁiﬁﬁ?&
EE BIERRAOEEEMNZ

Az BB EEE /‘*Bﬁﬁa?ﬂ
M HERHERDEEZIEN
CERERMEMEMAR - KRS
MEKEREZRITER - BABEKR
CEERZBO Mz ELEEAE

% 9
@

Dkr

SN

50

= a# >

5

SN
I 1D

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines. On adoption of HKFRS 8,
Operating segments, and in a manner consistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Chief
Executive Officer, who has been identified as the Group's
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has

presented two reportable segments as follows:

Rare earth: The manufacturing and sales of rare earth

products (including fluorescent products)

Refractory: The manufacturing and sales of refractory
products (including high temperature ceramics

products and magnesium grains)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
In accordance with HKFRS 8, segment information
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
has been prepared in a manner consistent with the
information used by the Group’s Chief Executive Officer
for the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments. In this regard,
the Group's Chief Executive Officer monitors the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable

segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible and intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of other
corporate assets which are unallocated to an individual
reportable segment. Segment liabilities include trade
payables, accruals and other payables attributable to
the manufacturing and sales activities of the individual
segments and bank borrowings managed directly by the
segments with the exception of other corporate liabilities
which are unallocated to an individual reportable

segment.
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H&ﬁ?’i&ﬁﬂiﬁ%&@% iﬁﬁ%ﬁZiﬁ%%ﬁﬁ
FRAXEIZEDHEREBEZTESL
BEPoI B - DEE

ERDBEFAER 2T ETERE
ARMBRF 2 RBIERDRF ] ([EHE
EBIT]) o Ret ELREMBRF 2 RIHIE
AER - AEEZEF e FEE
BRI 2®D BEGZBEEELE—F
FHE - MABRAREMARS B E
Fsz o

au

BRESERCRABBITZDHERS -
RNEBITBABE TER‘AR K (2
FEOHMEHEE) BOMBEEERZR
CHERBRERZFERARFE 47
E BERBREEEUARBREE
FREAZIERDHEERLE 2D

BER - HHEHELERARITE
WSV = T 2 (AR 2T E -
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or

amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
("Adjusted

EBIT”). To arrive at adjusted profit before interest and

“adjusted profit before interest and taxes”

taxes, the Group's profits are further adjusted for items
not specifically attributed to an individual reportable
segment, such as interest income and other unallocated

corporate expenses.

In addition to the receiving of segment information
concerning adjusted EBIT, the Group’'s Chief Executive
Officer is provided with segment information concerning
revenue (including inter-segment sales), interest income
and expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference

to prices charged to external parties for similar orders.
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16. 2 HW|E (8) 16. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a) PHEF BERERE(HE) a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
FA- BREHETAEETREZBE Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
DEEREAGEHHARBECALEEZ as provided to the Group's Chief Executive Officer for
HoOMERETN AT the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of

segment performance for the year is as follows:
RESEER BALEEEK &4
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
it fitk It #it
Rare earth Refractory Sub-total Rare earth
Z§-F “F--F-8--F “5--F "§-ZF “F--F §-2F “T--F§-2F 5-F
2012 2011 212 2011 212 2011 212 2011 2012 2011
TExr TEr TEn TEr TEx  TEr  TEn  TEr  THn  TEn
HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000

REHNER s Revenue from external customers 1,626,524 1765808 475394 447546 2,101,918 221335 - 82434 2,101,918 2295788

ABEIE Inter-segment revenue 8 - - - 8 - - : 8 _

2R PR Reportable segment revenue 1,626,606 1765808 475394 447546 2,102,000 2213354 - 82434 2,102,000 2,295,788

SENB(EE) /BH  Reportable segment (loss)profit

(mBZe) (adjusted EBIT) (631754) 697,014 33,002 56274 (598,752 753288 - 443 (598752 757,720
HEKA Interest income 3198 3875 36 303 6439 6968 - - 6439 6968
HRBRA Finance costs (1499) (4135 (1322)  (1563)  (821)  (56%) - -8 (56%)
hx BERR Depreciation of property, plant

LhE and equipment (25,868) (34862) (47,094) (50,657) (73,162)  (85,519) - (158 (13162) (87,047)
BERHTRMLY Amortisation of prepaid lease

fezEy payments on land under

operating leases (2382) (2325  (2491)  (3131)  (4873)  (5,456) - (350)  (4,873)  (5,806)

EVEEBY Amortisation of intangible assets (12,598)  (12,295) - - (12598)  (12.299) - (122600 (12598) (24,555
HENE BMERZE  Net(oss)gain on disposal of property,

(BB /hasE plant and equipment (4123) 488 502 W7 @) 05 - - e 05

HEREROTEN Net gain on disposal of prepaid lease
TR hEFE payment on land under operating

|eases - - - 8,389 - 8,389 - - - 8,389

EREZREMELS  Impairment loss on trade and

LBEER other receivables (1846)  (4478) (17,684)  (8.420) (19530) (12,89) - - (19530)  (12,8%)
EUEHRAMERT  Reversal of impairment loss on trade

LREEEEE and other receivables 4312 207 33 35% 764 5813 - - T6M 5813
BEIHEER Impairment loss on goodwil 1,713 - - - = - - nm -
EYEEREFE Impairment loss on intangible assets 31,626 s - - 3162 = = - 3162 =
2HAPEE Reportable seqment asses 2223834 2,926,600 1,972,260 1,959,029 4,196,094 4,885,629 = - 4,196,004 4885629
2RIPEE Reportable segment liabilities 631,636 711438 170,187 193716 801,823 905204 - - 801823 905,204
REERNY Additions to non-current

HE: segment assets:

E A E - Property, plant and equipment 17475 19404 10601 787 276 31 - 554 0716 2178 117
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16. 2P| E (&) 16. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
b) Z2HH/PEF -EEREEBZHE b) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit, assets
and liabilities
BELEEN BRLEEEE 58
Continuing operations  Discontinued operation Consolidated
~%--fF %% Z%-fF -T--F ZB-fF “T--%
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 201

TER TET TER TERL TR Tk
HKS$' 000 HK$" 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000

i Revenue
2HH PR Reportable segment revenue 2,102,000 2,213,354 - 82434 2,102,000 2,295,788
Es BHYE Elimination of inter-segment revenue (82) = = = (82) =
GREXE Consolidated turnover 2,101,918 2,213,354 - 82434 2,101,918 2,295,788
bl Profit
ERHH(EE) /KF  Reportable segment (lossyprofit (598,752) 753,288 = 4432 (598,752) 757,720
WA BHER Elimination of inter-segment profit - = - = = =
RATEBHNEP Reportable segment (loss)/profit derived

ZERNWER) /EH  from Group's external customers (598,752) 753,288 = 4432 (598,752) 757,720
At Other revenue 9,882 7,008 - = 9,882 7,008
FAREMUAFE Unallocated other income, net (3,662) 5,188 - = (3,662) 5,188
BB AR Finance costs (2.821) (5,698) - - (2.821) (5,698)

HFERHEEEEZAE  Share of losses of jointly controlled entities  (25,826) (12,244) = (25,826) (12,244)

HENBAEZHAME  Pre-tax on disposal of a subsidiary - - = 20,823 - 20,823
BEIRERE Impairment loss on goodwill (21,173) = = = (21,773) =
BYEEZRERR Impairment loss on intangible assets (31,626) = - = (31,626) =
FORGEHT Unallocated corporate expenses (12,580) (31,459) - S (12,580) (31,459)
SARHE (E8) /%H  Consolidated (loss)/profit before taxation ~ (687,158) 716,083 = 25255 (687,158) 741,338
&M Income tax (12,361)  (176,285) - (17108 (12,361)  (177,393)
HEMBAANZAER  Income tax on disposal of a subsidiary = = s (8,486) = (8,486)
LARHKE (BB) /HF Consolidated (loss)profit after taxation (699,519) 539,798 - 15661 (699,519) 555459
EE ‘ Assets
SRHNEE Reportable segment assets 4,196,004 4,885,629 - - 4,196,094 43885629
s n PEENTE Elimination of inter-segment receivables (633,053)  (609,058) = - (633,053) (609,058
3,563,041 4,276,571 - - 3,563,041 4,276,571
FPREERBEEEEE Unallocated cash and cash equivalents 60,539 71,272 = = 60,539 71,212
RORGEEE Unallocated corporate assets 10,322 196,587 - = 10,322 196,587
BEHEEE Deferred tax assets 6,321 8,223 - = 6,321 8,223
AR EFE Tax recoverable 943 1,450 = = 943 1,450
HRAESE Consolidated total assets 3,641,166 4,554,103 - - 3,641,166 4,554,103
af& Liabilities
ERnHaE Reportable segment liabilities 801,823 905,204 = = 801,823 905,204
HiE» PEEAFE Elimination of inter-segment payables (633,053)  (609,058) - - (633,053) (609,058
168,770 296,146 - - 168,770 296,146
AOECEEE Unallocated corporate liabilities 4,74 4,730 - - 4,741 4,730
BEHERR Deferred tax liabilities 25,812 31,505 - = 25,812 31,505
B Tax payable 5,932 56,721 - - 5,932 56,721
LEREBE Consolidated total liabilities 205,255 389,102 - - 205,255 389,102
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
¢) Geographical information

i) ; Y=t &= ) Revenues from external customers
TEHINEBAEER KA HINE The following table sets out information about the
PzWEmERNER - BF geographical location of the Group’s revenues from
e IR IR L RIS s & M8 external customers. The geographical location of
HEE 5 o customers is based on the location at which the

services were provided or the goods delivered.

—E——f —T——%F
2012 2011
TR FAET
HK$’' 000 HK$’ 000

FEREXEYR Continuing operations
A (G Eh) The PRC (place of domicile) 1,616,145 1,449,758
=[N Japan 254,051 229,100
M Europe 163,315 355,428
EJe The United States of America 48,513 164,164
HAth Others 19,894 14,904
485,773 763,596
2,101,918 2,213,354

BRIEREER Discontinued operation
PR (GEf i Eh) The PRC (place of domicile) = 82,434
2,101,918 2,295,788

i) ik ii)  Specified non-current assets
REBzZ KHEDEEERDE The majority of the Group’s specified non-current
E BRERYUE BELRE & assets including property, plant and equipment,
BIBMTIEMLES  mE prepaid lease payments on land under operating
E HELREREHER s leases, intangible assets, goodwill and interests in
BRI E o jointly controlled entities are located in the PRC.
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16. D EH|E (&)

d BBRIXEEXEFzEH
AEBZEFEBR N REBEE=T
——F+-A=1+—HLLFE  TEFT
MEFZHERBRBAEEEEEY
10% - HE2-_TE—F+_A=+—
BEFE A 2RI BREFLZHE
&5 4945237,307,000/8 70 - BBBALE
BMEEFE210% °

16. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

d) Information about major customers

The Group's customer base is diversified and there is no

customer with whom sales exceeded 10% of the Group's

turnover for the year ended 31 December 2012. For the

year ended 31 December 2011, there was one customer

in rare earth segment with whom sales amounted to
approximately HK$237,307,000 that exceeded 10% of

the Group's turnover.

17. 5 17. GOODWILL
AEH The Group
FAT
HK$' 000
2% Cost
RZE——F—H—H At 1 January 2011 302,726
HEWB AR (KiE34) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) (70,734)
EHERE Exchange differences 7,368
RZTE——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 239,360
F—_ZT——F—HA—H
ERER Exchange differences (13)
R-ZE——#+-A=+—H At 31 December 2012 239,347
23R E Accumulated impairment
RZT——F—A—H At 1 January 2011 213,755
ERER Exchange differences 3,829
RZT——F+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 217,584
NZ_ZT——%—H—H
RERNER 2 REERE Impairment loss recognised in the year 21,773
EHER Exchange differences (10)
RZZE——_F+=-HA=+—8 At 31 December 2012 239,347
IREE Carrying amount
R—_TE——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2012 -
RZT——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2011 21,776
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17.

BE (&)
REREEN (BEHE) 2BEMNR

HRENANS  BEDIEEAEEZT
PIE AR ERR & B (REGR & BAL) -

17.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating unit containing
goodwill

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to

the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs) identified as follows:

rEH
The Group
—E-C-F —T——F
2012 2011
TERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BREE S BN i Cash-generating unit Segment
MmTeBEM wmt Rare earth metal products Rare earth = 21,776
M EE Note:

BEEEAN_TZN\FT_A-TABERENT
BRAW LI HERIR ([RIAHL]) 100%
BEMELZWEKABEASBERGERAHL
AEANEERBRBEZATE RaBEITIENS
NERHERTSBER  BH LD -

RZZE——F+ZA=+—H AEELEHRK
SETEBEZEISERBEGEMRENE
EFHBERERAR ([BEH]) ELZFGE
HreBERZEIIRS BN 2 RENRETR
HeBmteBERMCBREBESBEM 2 KBS
TIREBEFEREEFSET - ZSHEERRES
BEEMEBERTHMZVHESE (ERHLeB
ERZBEDESEMNNTHERRCEFHAE)
FEZRERERAN - BEAFHZEERED
FERATXl 2 Get b RS - REWEBH
BreBERCRIRCEMMELELR2EH
REPFHERE -

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of 100% equity interest in
Heping County Dongye Rare Earth Company Limited (“Dongye Rare
Earth”) on 29 December 2008 represented the excess of the cost of
acquisition of Dongye Rare Earth over the Group's interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Dongye Rare Earth.
Dongye Rare Earth is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of
rare earth metal products within the rare earth segment.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group performed an impairment
review for the CGU of rare earth metal products with reference to
the valuation carried out by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited
(“Vigers”), independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group. The recoverable amount of CGU of rare earth metal
products is determined based on value in use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period, which is based
on the average business and operation life over the CGU of rare
earth metal products. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated rates stated below. The growth rates
do not exceed the respective long-term average growth rates for the
business in which the CGU of rare earth metal products operates.
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17. BE (&) 17. GOODWILL (Continued)
RORSEN (BEEE) 2RENR (&) Impairment test for cash-generating unit containing
goodwill (Continued)

MizE - (8&) Note: (Continued)

EREEFEMBZEIERR

Key assumptions used for value in use calculations:

REE
The Group
—E-——F —T——F
2012 2011
EFE Gross margin 19%-29% 28%
BRE Growth rate 3%-11% 3%-11%
PR & Discount rate 21% 20%

122

EEBREBBERELEMEERRZBHNETER
BEMNERFHEER -ZHBREBBANE - I
RBEBS BB ERAR - ERENAE B
EBEMZ MRS B AT E KB RA
SREBEFNRERE  BTIEERHLEBE
2 BRERE & B 2 BRI (B R 4B E P MR B 3R AR -

BEEHEENE HLeBERZIRIESE
A RELEEN (ZE——F: 5 EEFEA
BBt ARBLEtCHIHLIEBZEERY
B FARTI B HERRREERR ZEH
SRERERH LB LHERAREENR
TECYEER LB 2R RO MEEEES -
HRBE-_Z——&+-_A=+-BLEEZHK
ERHEFERLEBER A ERRREBED
21,773,000 L (ZT——F : &) °
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Management determined the budgeted gross margin and the average
growth rate based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. This discount rate used is pre-tax rate and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant segment. Management also believes
that any reasonably change in assumptions on which the recoverable
amount of the CGU of rare earth metal products is based would not
cause the carrying amount of the CGU of rare earth metal products to
exceed recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of rare earth metal products
is lower (2011: higher) than the carrying amount based on value
in use calculations. Accordingly, impairment loss of approximately
HK$21,773,000 (2011: Nil) on goodwill of rare earth metal products is
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2012 since rare earth oxides are a key raw material of rare
earth metals, sales of rare earth metals faced with gross loss during the
year due to accumulated price rises of rare earth metals lagged behind
that of rare earth oxides and low demand of rare earth metals caused
by slow recovery of global economic recession.
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18. W% - BMERRKRE 18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

a) A&KH a) The Group
B BOERE
BRET  RERERE k%8 RE ERIR T
Buildings ~ Machinery Office
held for and  equipment Motor ~ Construction-
ownuse  equipment  and fixtures vehicles  in-progress Total
TiEn T ThL ThL TR ThL
HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000
HAZfHE Cost or valuation
R-F——%-f-A At 1 January 2011 246,549 963,629 7,805 6,974 25,451 1,250,408
AE Additions = 5451 600 7,731 14,003 27,785
mERIREN Transfer from construction-in-
progress n 5,291 - - (5,362) =
RE Disposals (16,097) (235,348) - (1,162) - (252,607)
HEMBLA Disposal of a subsidiary
(HsE3d) (note 34) (18,010) (12,501) (112) (1,102) (13,038) (44,763)
ZiNERY Elimination of accumulated
depreciation (19,677) - - - - (19,677)
Eiz8 Exchange differences 11,607 42,060 382 497 1315 55,861
RZE-—-F+ZFA=1+-H  At31 December 2011 and
k=5-—%F-f-H 1 January 2012 204,443 768,582 8,675 12,938 22,369 1,017,007
AE Additions - 10,531 333 1,831 15,090 21,785
mERIREA Transfer from construction-in-
progress 8,523 17,833 - - (26,356) -
RE Disposals (5,776) (56,891) (61) (436) - (63,164)
ZHTERE Elimination of accumulated
depreciation (18311) - - - - (18311)
EiZE Exchange differences (29 (95) n (1) () (125)
RZE-Z#+ZA=+-R At 31 December 2012 188,854 739,960 8,946 14,332 11,100 963,192
i Comprising:
WZE—ZFF+-A=1+—H  At31 December 2012
fE A At cost - 739,960 8,946 14332 11,100 774,338
ffhE At valuation 188,854 = = = = 188,854
188,854 739,960 8,946 14,332 11,100 963,192
RZE-—%+ZA=+—A  At31 December 2011
fREA At cost - 768,582 8,675 12,938 22,369 812,564
&iEE At valuation 204,443 - - - - 204,443
204,443 768,582 8,675 12,938 22,369 1,017,007

123

Annual Report 2012 43




124

| BB EL R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-ZF——F+=-H=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

18. 1% - MERR®E (&) 18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
a) AKEE(E) a) The Group (Continued)
5113 BLERE
CEL E - E R%E hE EEIR 3
Buildings ~ Machinery Office
held for and  equipment Motor ~ Construction-
ownuse  equipment  and fixtures vehicles  in-progress Total
Thn Thn TR iR ThEn ThR
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HKS" 000 HK$" 000
ZHFERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
RZE-——F-A-A At 1 January 2011 - 636,386 7,269 5,088 = 649,243
AEEHR Charge for the year 2045 65,261 265 1,079 - 87,057
REEM Written back on disposals (646) (192,325) - (1,045) - (194,016)
LERBARRE Written back on disposal of
(Bf3£34) a subsidiary (note 34) (612) (3.412) (87) (529) - (4,636)
ELugine Elimination on revaluation (19,677) = = = = (19,677)
EiEE Exchange differences 483 28,389 349 17 = 29,468
RZZ-—F+ZA=T-H  At31December 2011
k-E--%-f-H and 1 January 2012 - 534,799 7,1% 4844 - 547,439
RERGR Charge for the year 18,968 51,541 348 2314 - BT
RERE Written back on disposals (657) (43,297) (60) (436) - (44,450)
BfhEH Elimination on revaluation (18,311) - = = = (18,311)
EizE Exchange differences - (66) (1) 0] = (68)
RZZ-ZHT-A=F—H  At31December 2012 - 542,977 8,083 6,721 - 557,781
REE Carrying amount
RZE——F+-A=1+—-H  At31 December 2012 188,854 196,983 863 7,61 11,100 405,411
RZE-—FF+ZA=F—H  At31 December 2011 204,443 233,783 879 8,094 22,369 469,568
) FEEREFHURFTBRREF i) The buildings held for own use are situated on land
HENFE 2L - held under medium-term leases in the PRC.
iy AEESEFRAEFR-ZT—= i) The revaluation of the Group’s buildings held for

F+-A=t—RZEREDIR
BEBHNZAETZHERE
ER - BRGHEDNEERAR
EZET REBFHRTEE
RANGRZBFEZEER  ®
N BERDERERRERER
AE -
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own use as at 31 December 2012 has been arrived
at on the basis of valuations carried out on that date
by Vigers. The valuation is based on a depreciable
replacement cost approach and is arrived at by
taking into consideration of the replacement cost of
the buildings and deductions to account for the age,
condition, economic or functional obsolescence and

environmental factors existing at that date.



| BEEEELE:
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BZE-ZF——-F+=-A=1+—HIHFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

18. ¥ - WERRZE (B
a) A&KHE(E)
W_ZE-——F+=-A=+—8"
WZEREEAEFREIAREZ
SAMERRBESRER  AIREAES
#)5149,461,0008 T (Z 2 ——
4 : 158,500,000 L) °

i) FA - ARNARZHE A R F K
TWE T HEARBM ([T HEK
FF1) B AT B ERE -
EEHA BN EERE AT
BeHEELTH WS —ELH
RETHSEREE - TEBM
BEEEBUIHEMTEER LN
ME - BEREENETEES
8 {H14,406,000/8 7T - & E 5 1B
494,122,000 T B B L FER ©
BRHETHHE - T HEAGE
EE—REELFRIKRL -
HEMBRERTELE  TEHR
FEREHTHZME RV
WAREEER T EmE - Bt
REBIER it A (BT s
19) o

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

a)

The Group (Continued)

iii)

As at 31 December 2012, had these buildings held
for own use been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, the carrying amount
would have been approximately HK$149,461,000
(2011: HK$158,500,000).

During the year, the Company’'s subsidiary,
Leeshing Rare Earth received an order from
Dingshu Town People’s Government (“Dingshu
Government”) to confiscate a piece of leasehold
land, on which a factory for polishing powder
production located, due to a new government
town plan with compensation for another piece
of land and certain amount of cash. Dingshu
Government had appointed an independent valuer
to value the property, plant and equipment located
on it, for deciding the compensation amount at
HK$14,406,000. A loss on disposal of approximately
HK$4,122,000 was recognised in this respect.
Regarding the leasehold land, Dingshu Government
is going to compensate another piece of leasehold
land to Leeshing Rare Earth. Up to the date of issue
of these financial statements, the location for the
new piece of land has been ascertained by Dingshu
Government but the formal land use right certificate
has not been obtained due to exact size of the land

area has not been ascertained (note 19).
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18. W%~ BB R&RE (5

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

b) ZA&AF b) The Company
BAZEREREE
Office
equipment
and fixtures
FET
HK$' 000
FRA Cost
WRZT——F—HF—H At 1 January 2011 367
NE Additions 3
RZZ——F+=ZHA=+—H At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 370
RZZT——%—HA—H
NE Additions 10
R-—_BE——F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2012 380
2 E Accumulated depreciation
RZE——F—H—H At 1 January 2011 342
REZER Charge for the year 10
R-ZE——F+=-A=+—8H At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 352
RZZT——%—HA—H
REEEIR Charge for the year 9
R-—_BE——F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2012 361
SR E Carrying amount
W-ZE——F+=-A=+—81 At 31 December 2012 19
RZZE——%+-A=+—H At 31 December 2011 18
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19.

REFHTREASTHES 19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND UNDER
OPERATING LEASES
rEH
The Group
=F-=F —F——5
2012 2011
FER FAET
HK$'000 HK$" 000
R—RA—RZEEE Carrying amount at 1 January 210,759 266,050
BE Disposals (18,703) (33,681)
HER B R A (M534) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) = (27,675)
NEEHGH Amortisation for the year (4,873) (5,806)
EHER Exchange differences (26) 11,871
W+Z—A=+—BZKHEE Carrying amount at 31 December 187,157 210,759
RABZHEE i Leasehold land in the PRC:
TR 4 Medium-term leases 187,157 210,759
RREENMELZTWT : Analysed for reporting purposes as:
mEEE Current asset 4,448 4,874
FERBEE Non-current asset 182,709 205,885
187,157 210,759

AEE#HET 748,000 (ZF ——
F 11,142,000% 1) &4,125,0008 70 (ZF
——% : 4,664,000 7T) 9 AlEE ALRE W
RPHEERAREEERA -

TN BT RERE - TEHRAFEA—
RS - BRI B EE18(a) i) B EE

The amortisation charges of approximately HK$748,000 (2011:
HK$1,142,000) and HK$4,125,000 (2011: HK$4,664,000)
for the year are included in cost of sales and administrative

expenses respectively in the consolidated income statement.

During the year, a piece of leasehold land was confiscated by
Dingshu Government due to a new government town plan,

relevant disclosures are detailed in note 18(a)(iii).
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20. ML EE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

rE The Group
RrBUas
HLIEN THZER BLeBEMZ
BRyBE EXA#  BWEXAH #E
Technical
Exclusive  know-how for
right to preliminary Technical
purchase  separation of know-how
rare earth rare earth  for rare earth
minerals minerals metal products Total
FEL FAT FET THT
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
ﬁiZF Cost
—F——%-f-H At 1 January 2011 208,843 63,934 120,045 392,822
m%m% Nl (PiEE34) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) (216,528) (66,287) = (282,815)
ERER Exchange differences 7,685 2,353 5,952 15,990
RZB-——£+-A=1—-H At 31 December 2011
k22— and 1 January 2012 - - 125,997 125,997
ERER Exchange differences - = (15) (15)
——%+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2012 = = 125,982 125,982
R BERAE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
—E——%-F-H At 1 January 2011 26,105 12,787 24,009 62,901
zmr;f?ﬁ%ﬁ Amortisation for the year 8,229 4,031 12,295 24,555
HEHBARER Written back on disposal of
(Fi7E34) a subsidiary (note 34) (35,397) (17,338) = (52,735)
EizR Exchange differences 1,063 520 1,495 3,078
RZT——% At 31 December 2011
k= and 1 January 2012 - - 37,799 37,799
AEEHH Amortisation for the year = = 12,598 12,598
KEERE Impairment for the year = = 31,626 31,626
EHzE Exchange differences - - 4) (4)
——#+-A=+-H At 31 December 2012 - - 82,019 82,019
FEE Carrying amount
——#+-fA=1-H At 31 December 2012 - - 43,963 43,963
128 RZE——F+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2011 - - 88,198 88,198
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20. B EE (&)

a)

BTBEMBRREE
R-ZFTLF+—-A+HA BEHL
B — SO 3 U R T B SRR R
FEMEE TER B IERBRMAR
2w LIEyEER ((ZHrm)) (—
REFBEMKL 2 AR]) SR ER L
BMBERRBET LT BE ((RER
&) - REFKBWZ - ZHEARER
TE_AF+-RA=tHERZ20F
HEAMEER LT BRLERLEY
RZ20F8FE - BEBRLFAMKHE
EREZHIEVERREE -

MIBENBREREEESNBE-F
ENFET_A=1T—RHIFERNKE
R+ 2 X5 GHARERD °

MIBEMBRXBRAAERERF
B - YUERE2ERLIBEHEI6F
MEETE R F T H -

AT EI2A T  BRAKEER
—E-—FN\A+-AHEERERL
2EHED AR =_ZT——FBH
EUWIBBRER o

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

a)

Exclusive right to purchase rare earth minerals

On 15 November 2007, Xinghua Rare Earth entered into
an Agreement for the acquisition of the exclusive right
to purchase rare earth minerals (“Purchase Agreement”)
from a rare earth minerals supplier (the “Supplier”),
a company established in the PRC with exclusive rare
earth mining rights granted by the local government for
exploiting rare earth minerals from a mine located to
Jianghua County of Hunan Province, the PRC. Pursuant
to the Purchase Agreement, the Supplier agreed to
exclusively sell rare earth minerals to Xinghua Rare Earth
throughout a period of 20 years expiring on 30 November
2027. During the 20-year period, Xinghua Rare Earth
is entitled to the exclusive right to purchase rare earth

minerals from the Supplier.

The exclusive right to purchase rare earth minerals was
acquired as part of the business combination of Xinghua
Rare Earth during the year ended 31 December 2008.

The exclusive right to purchase rare earth minerals has
finite useful life and is amortised on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful live of 16 years with reference

to the minerals reserves of the rare earth mine.

As detailed in note 12, this exclusive right has been
disposed in 2011 because the Group disposed its entire

interest in Xinghua Rare Earth on 12 August 2011.
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20. BEEE (H)
by BIBUASIBZHMELNRE

ABRMEEMBEREBES T NITRE
FFREMEERZHLBEYNL 08
RitER LERRBE_TTNF
TZA=Zt - HIEFERKBEER
TEBAMZERED -

BINEEMBAEARERER &
BGRB8 P 4 IR 1O4F 7
B -

A 12 AR AKEE R
2N \ATZRHERERL
ZERES AR -_ZT——FC2H
SUIEM LY ) 0 B B 2 Bl
B -

0 BrIEBERZBRWEXAR
ZEMEXNBELESBTER L
Em BMAR YUERRBE-F
ENEFTA=+—HIFENKE
RaWm LXK A G AR

RMERANBABERERAFH I
BREREREE _ZZNF—HA—H
AT EAFI0FETEE -
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

b)

@)

Technical know-how for preliminary separation of
rare earth minerals

The technical know-how relates to the technology on
the preliminary separation of rare earth minerals which
will reduce certain processing and raw materials usage
and was acquired as part of the business combination of
Xinghua Rare Earth during the year ended 31 December
2008.

The technical know-how has finite useful and is amortised
on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful live of 10

years.

As detailed in note 12, this technical know-how for
preliminary separation of rare earth minerals has been
disposed in 2011 because the Group disposed its entire

interest in Xinghua Rare Earth on 12 August 2011.

Technical know-how for rare earth metal products
The technical know-how relates to the technology on
manufacturing of rare earth products in metal form and
was acquired as part of the business combination of
Dongye Rare Earth during the year ended 31 December
2008.

The technical know-how has finite useful live and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful

live of 10 years commencing on 1 January 2009.
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20. B EE (&) 20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
0 WIeBERZBMEE£ME(E) ¢) Technical know-how for rare earth metal products
(Continued)
BRECHEENE H1eBERZ The recoverable amount of the CGU of rare earth metal
AR @B 2 AIESBER(ZF products is lower (2011: higher) than the carrying
——F:mR)EREE - At - AR amount based on value in use calculations. Accordingly,
wmIetmhmLeB 2z EEREME - impairment loss of approximately HK$31,626,000
FART 2B 2 HERERKRERR (2011: Nil) on the technical know-how for rare earth
ZEHSEBEEERR T B L RER metal products is recognised in the consolidated income
BAEBEEZEABRIECCOEEH LS statement for the year ended 31 December 2012 since
BeHERRIMEEEE -RBEE=ZF rare earth oxides are a key raw material of rare earth
—ZF+ZA=+—HLEFEZLEE metals, sales of rare earth metals faced with gross loss
BREOEBTEBER 2RMEEA during the year due to accumulated price rises of rare
H R EEE#31,626,000% T (= earth metals lagged behind that of rare earth oxides
T——F: ) FHMHECREER and low demand of rare earth metals caused by slow
RRZEZREFBEHAMEIT7 - recovery of global economic recession. Details of the key

assumptions used for value in use calculation are set out

in note 17.

RNEE 78 HMAE 412,598,000 T (ZF The amortisation charge of approximately HK$12,598,000

——%F : 24,555,000/ 70) Bt AR A M (2011: HK$24,555,000) for the year is included in cost of sales
RZHEEKAR - in the consolidated income statement.
21. RMBARIZRE 21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AT
The Company

—F-=F —F——%

2012 2011

FExT FET

HK$'000 HK$' 000

FEEM R - RAAE Unlisted shares, at cost 151,707 151,707
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21. RIMBAT 2RE (4) 21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
R-E——F+-_A=+—8 " KB As at 31 December 2012, the details of subsidiaries are as
BT follows:

B3LITANE 1] KERH EE B¥HR ARREGES/
il PEER ZHHRAH g BARRA BHRRE ARERRAEREAL TEXH
Effective percentage
Place and date Registered Issued of equity interests/
of incorporation/ (Class of and fully and fully voting rights held
Name of subsidiary operations shares held paid capital  paid capital by the Company Principal activities
E% [
Directly  Indirectly
% %
ARERERAR EBRAES LER - %7 100 - REBR
—MANETZAZR
Lee Shing Holdings Limited British Virgin Ordinary - Us$20 100 - Investment holding
Islands
3 December 1998
EMEREZ (LB BRAR hEl NV 200,000%7C - 100 - g5
(B3(a)) “FEFE-J-4[F
Wellfire (Shanghai) Company The PRC Contributed 15$200,000 - 100 - Trading
Limited (note (a)) 24 February 2000 capital
Dynamic Goal Worldwide Inc. ERRREE Lk - VEYr - 100 RERR
L e
Dynamic Goal Worldwide Inc. British Virgin Ordinary - Us$2 - 100 Investment holding
Islands
31 May 2000
ERFRARBLERART i AR 15,660,005 - - % REREE
(HtiE D) —hAZELATEA BratnEn
Yixing Xinwei Leeshing The PRC Contributed ~ US$15,660,000 - - 95 Manufacturing and
Rare Earth Company 17 July 1993 capital sales of rare earth

Limited (note (b))
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21. RMBAT 2 RE (4)

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

AR/ EE KERH BRI BEfR ARAEEER/
il PEER ZHHRAH g3 BAERE  BHRRA EREERAERESM ITERH
Effective percentage
Place and date Registered Issued of equity interests/
of incorporation/ Class of and fully and fully voting rights held
Name of subsidiary operations shares held paid capital  paid capital by the Company Principal activities
Bk [F
Directly  Indirectly
% %
ERFHARHAMHERAD i BAER  17,000,000%7 - - 100 BEREE
(M3kG) —hANEER=TA AER
Yixing Xinwei Leeshing The PRC Contributed ~ US$17,000,000 - - 100 Manufacturing and
Refractory Materials 30 July 1999 capital sales of refractory
Co., Ltd. (note (a)) products
ERMAICEITHERAT hE BAER  8520,000%T - - 100 HEREE
(M) = gl REER
Wuxi Xinwei Fluorescent The PRC Contributed 158,520,000 - - 100 Manufacturing and
Materials Co., Ltd. (note (a)) 20 December 2001 capital sales of fluorescent
products
HMERERAT B £k - W - 00 &%
“AANETRZT=H
Microtech Resources Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 - 100 Trading
23 October 1998
TERLESERAT Bk ERR - BT - 100 ERXH
33352/ 108
China Rare Earth Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 - 100 Dormant
Trading Limited 24 March 2000
AR ABEERAA i BAER  30,000,000%T - - 100 BEREE
(B3 (a)) -“F2-£MA-A RRREER
Wuxi Xinwei High The PRC Contributed ~ HK$30,000,000 - - 100 Manufacturing and
Temperature Ceramics 1 April 2002 capital sales of high
Co., Ltd. (note (a)) temperature ceramics
products

133

Annual Report 2012 43




| BB EL R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-ZF——F+=-H=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

21. RMBARZRE (&) 21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

AR/ EE KERH BRI BEfR ARAELER/
il PEER: ZHHRAH Ly BAERE  BHRRA EREERAERESML TERY
Effective percentage
Place and date Registered Issued of equity interests/
of incorporation/ (Class of and fully and fully voting rights held
Name of subsidiary operations shares held paid capital  paid capital by the Company Principal activities
E% B
Directly  Indirectly
% %
BETHEERERAT iléi BAER AR - - 100 HERHEE
(Rr&0) ZRECEMACTLE 25,000,000 BDER
Haicheng City Suhai The PRC Contributed ~ RMB25,000,000 - - 100 Manufacturing and
Magnesium Ore Co., 27 April 2002 capital sales of magnesium
Ltd. (note (¢)) products
ERFRRFCBIHERARD hE BAER  3000,000%7 - - 100 REREE
(M3H) ZE5RFNRC LA A RBER
Yixing Wellfire The PRC Contributed US$3,000,000 - - 100 Manufacturing and
Nonmetal Materials 27 September 2006 capital sales of refractory
Co., Ltd. (note (3)) related products
BIREHKEERERAA hE SAEE  3500000%7 - - 100 BEREE
(B 3(a)) ZEENEAAZTIE BVER
Hai Cheng Xinwei The PRC Contributed US93,500,000 - - 100 Manufacturing and
Leeshing Magnesium 28 September 2006 capital sales of magnesium
Resources Co., Ltd. (note (a)) products
ATER AR LA HERAR alei IN-T ARE - - % RERHE
(K& kS Sik 3 iRl 20,000,0007C HieRER
Heping County Dongye Rare Earth The PRC Contributed ~ RMB20,000,000 - - 95 Manufacturing and
Company Limited (note (c)) 15 November 2005 capital sales of rare earth
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21. RRB AT 2RE (8) 21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
HMAL/ &8 KERH BRI BEfR ARAEEER/
il PEER ZHHRAH g3 BAERE  BHRRA EREERAERESM ITERH
Effective percentage
Place and date Registered Issued of equity interests/
of incorporation/ Class of and fully and fully voting rights held
Name of subsidiary operations shares held paid capital  paid capital by the Company Principal activities

Bk [F
Directly  Indirectly

% %
RRERERAT Bk 2R - 1B - 100 %EER
“2F)\E-A-TZH
Silver Mile Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK§1 - 100 Investment holding
23 January 2008
HERREZERERLA hEl BAEE  200,000,0005T - - 100 E%
(i) Z2-BFt-RITiE
Yixing Changrong Trading The PRC Contributed ~ HK$200,000,000 - - 100 Trading
Development Co,, Ltd. (note (a)) 26 November 2010 capital
SRBRERAT Bk pil - 13T - 100 #®AER
SB-RETIAR
Golden Mile Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK§1 - 100 Investment holding
6 December 2010
MEE Note:
a) WBREREEAIFMRIAIEBEERSE - a)  Registered under the laws of the PRC as a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise.
b) WREBEPEVEFIFMKIAFIINEGERE - b)  Registered under the laws of the PRC as a sino-foreign equity
enterprise.
o BEHBEVEGFIFMKZABREEAT - ¢ Registered under the laws of the PRC as a limited liability
enterprise.
BT 2 BB (IR 45 B S AR None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
REREA R EBES the end of the year or within any time during the year.
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. RAREHER 2 BE 22. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
AEE
The Group
—E--F —T——F
2012 2011
THERT FET
HK$’'000 HK$’ 000
LMD - BHEEFE Unlisted shares, share of net assets 109,930 110,940
REERLRZEGEE 2 ERTIERIIT Details of the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are
T as follows:
SR/ AEEHE
ERAR EBRRYA EENY  FEROEN AREREE LA FEREE LA TEEH
Form of Place of Proportion of nominal Proportion
business incorporation/ (Class of value of registered of voting
Name of entity structure operations shares held capital held by the Group power held Principal activities
“§--fF % Z§-fF “I--F
2012 201 2012 2011
BmE (hE) foeatk  EMAA i BAER 099%  49.9% 50% 0%  BERHEREER

ARAR (i)

OSRAM (China) Incorporated The PRC Contributed 49.9% 49.9% 50% 50%  Manufacturing and sales of
Fluorescent Materials capital fluorescent products
Co., Ltd. {note (@)

ERMETIZRE AT ket HAER 40% 40% 40% 0%  HEREERMAER
BRAA (Hb)
Yixing AGC Ceramics ~ Incorporated The PRC Contributed 40% 40% 40% 40%  Manufacturing and sales of
Co., Ltd. (note (b)) capital refractory products
BT Note:
(a) E’\\ T-TFERA -+ HFMEY  HEZ (@) Incorporated on 20 May 2010, its total registered capital of
—ZEF+A=+—HLEFE  HFfME EURO14,500,000 has been fully paid during the year ended 31
7M #14,500,000B LA E 2 8% f o December 2010.
(b) MZTE——F ALBFMKL HE=ZT (b) Incorporated on 7 June 2011, its total registered capital of
——F+-A=+—HBLLFE  HFMEX US$23,000,000 has been fully paid during the year ended 31
#%23,000,000E LA E R EL AT o December 2012.
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22. RAREVER 2ERS (&)

AEBERAFRFE R 2 R M BERBE
ZFBHIIWMT ¢

22.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(Continued)
Details of the summarised financial information on the Group’s

equity interests in jointly controlled entities are as follows:

—E--F —T——F
2012 2011
FTExT FHET
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
mEEE Current assets 88,425 61,663
FRBDEE Non-current assets 170,157 139,940
mEA & Current liabilities (80,536) (56,810)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities (68,116) (33,853)
BEFE Net assets 109,930 110,940
WA Income 97,091 10,456
¥ Expenses (122,917) (22,700)
23. AIHHEERES 23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY SECURITIES
AEBRADT
The Group and the Company
—E-C-F —T——F
2012 2011
FHExT FHT
HK$' 000 HK$'000
BRATVEIGEzERE LT Listed equity securities at fair value
EmEH in Hong Kong 9,520 6,720

REEBRFAEEMBE2EARZIARZER
HHEERERESFERAFEYZ2,800,000
BT (ZE——F : AFEEE7,520,0007

o

&

The Group recognised fair value gain on these available-for-
sale equity securities of HK$2,800,000 (2011: fair value loss
of HK$7,520,000) in other comprehensive income during the

year.
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23.

24.

25.

AHEERERRES (8)

R-TE——F+-A=+—8 AV EHE
TR R T B8 8 %023,280,000/8 7T &
EERAEBRRTEEBERN MATE
TR RAE R ARRERE - Bt - BBERD
TEREEERNEERERERRERBRE
23,280,0007& 7T °

B ARABUFNTESEFTERERZ
FRDEF L EMRABZEIERE -

HttkRBEE

Hin3Eme EEIR T BRI ANBUT AR
ElFT A — IR AR (E A18,703,000%8 T 2
St FEEZS—EEELH - F15
FABR 5 18(a) (i) B2 Pt 51 194 55 o

a) HmEMBRAXRZEERRE:

23.

24.

25.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY SECURITIES
(Continued)
As at 31
loss recognised in the fair value reserve amounted to
HK$23,280,000 in which the directors considered that such

accumulated loss has become significant and the decline in

December 2011, the accumulated gross

the market price might not be recovered in the foreseeable
future. Therefore, an impairment loss of HK$23,280,000 has
been recognised in the consolidated income statement by

transferring from the fair value reserve.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, Mr. Huang Chunhua, an
independent non-executive director of the Company, was the
deputy chairman of the listed company for these listed equity

securities.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET

Other non-current asset represents a piece of leasehold land
to be compensated by Dingshu Government for confiscating
another piece of leasehold land with carrying amount at
HK$18,703,000 due to a new government town plan. Details

are disclosed in note 18(a)(iii) and note 19.

INVENTORIES
a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

TEH

The Group
—E—-C—F —E——%F
2012 2011
FTHET FET
HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000
R Raw materials 166,567 245,668
8 Work in progress 168,353 218,573
E Finished goods 640,298 832,015
975,218 1,296,256

Annual Report 2012 %




| BEEEELE:
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BZE-ZF——-F+=-A=1+—HIHFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

25. #E& (&) 25.

b) BRRRIXZFEEEBEZINMMOT :

INVENTORIES (Continued)
b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as

an expense is as follows:

rEH

The Group
—E-=F —E——F
2012 2011
FHxT FHET
HK$’000 HK$' 000
EEGFEZEREE Carrying amount of inventories sold 2,174,642 1,183,436
&Mk Write down of inventories 457,640 91,073
GFEMBRED Reversal of write down of inventories (87,439) (37,944)
2,544,843 1,236,565

T FEAh Attributable to:

SFEBCEET Continuing operations 2,544,843 1,159,922
ERIEREER Discontinued operation - 76,643
2,544,843 1,236,565

EAFERGREE R TREDRANE
FERNEFHBETZRFE L HEEH
BT ERZEHTRRFEEN -

FARRFEMGEIEMR T ——FH L
B RBRAANE LRERFN 2B L E
AR AR A N A e 6+ E a0 A ) I R SR AR
ZBREEFTE

The reversal of write down of inventories arose due to an
increase in the estimated net realisable value of certain
products as a result of change in market conditions and sales
of certain products which had been written down to net

realisable value in prior years.

The write down of inventories recognised during the year was
mainly due to higher cost of rare earth products at beginning
of the year caused by the substantial rise in purchase cost of
rare earth minerals in 2011 and the price correction of rare
earth products during the year and subsequent to the end of
the reporting period.
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26. EWBRFRHEMEKRR - BARER 26.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS

e AND DEPOSITS
rEE b N
The Group The Company
—®-=F —FT—F% =%-=F Z—FT—F
2012 2011 2012 2011
FHx FHET FHET FEx
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$’000
X EF R EREE Trade debtors and bills receivables 420,251 405,898 = =
B REEE (MiEE(C)  Less: Impairment loss (note (c)) (46,288) (35,544) = =
FEUEBE A N EURZE4% » Trade debtors and bills
F 58 (BT E(b)) receivables, net (note (b)) 373,963 370,354 = =
H WK Other receivables 55,065 46,644 = =
B ORERE (Bf5E()  Less: Impairment loss (note (c)) (2,429) (1,291) = =
52,636 45,353 - -
[EEREHEE Amounts due from jointly
A (M 3E27) controlled entities (note 27) 51,978 21,318 = =
JE U AT BT /BB A R FRIB Amount due from a former
subsidiary - 166,380 - -
ER K EWHE Loans and receivables 478,577 603,405 = =
BNFRERES Prepayments and deposits 116,098 101,961 781 774
594,675 705,366 781 774
B EE Note:

a)  FMERUIRRREMEYK  BAFERE
SARERATIE R R FORAHATR —FA

W ek R AR -

b) EURKRELREREZAHMED 2RE

DM
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a)  All of the trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits
and amount due from a former subsidiary are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

b)  The ageing analysis of the trade debtors and bills receivables
presented based on the invoice date is as follows:
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26. EWERA R HthEW S - X EE  26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS
S AC ) AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
Mz : (&) Note: (Continued)
b) () b)  (Continued)
AEME
The Group
ZE-CF —T——F
2012 2011
FER FHET
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
BVERZ=6fE A AR Current to less than 6 months 341,050 332,690
6lEAE1EUR 6 months to less than 1 year 29,083 33,507
(EYEIA 1 to less than 2 years 21,695 15,924
2F A E Over 2 years 28,423 23,777
420,251 405,898
B PR R R B R R Less: Impairment loss on trade debtors and
B 1R bills receivables (46,288) (35,544)
373,963 370,354

REBETFEESEF30E180A 2 FHE
=§:

AREERERFETP OB BN AR
ERERY - ARESMEEFPHEEER
B EEARERRABZIET AR
FERE - BRPETHERELEERR
ZEBRERSEEET ERELEER
B2 e W BR R e MR AR I R W

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 180 days to
its trade customers.

Credit is offered to customers following an assessment of their
financial abilities and payment track record. Credit limits are
set out for all customers and these can be exceeded only with
the approval of senior officers of the Group. Business with
customers considered to have a credit risk is conducted on a cash
basis. Management monitors overdue trade debtors and bills
receivables and follows up collections.
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26. BUIRFR R EMEBHRRK AARER

BE (&)
sk : (8)
o EUERFR R EAEKFRE

W AR R B At R R 2 B BN T

26.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS

AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

9] Impairment of trade and other receivables

The movement of allowance on trade and other receivables are as

follows:
rEE
The Group
—E-——F —T——%F
2012 2011
FER FHT
HK$’'000 HK$' 000
R—A—H At 1 January 36,835 29,882
REFRBBERREM Reversal of impairment loss on trade and other
FE W SRR B B 18 o) receivables during the year (7,644) (5,813)
REF E R 2 FE AR Impairment loss on trade and other receivables
R E A WA EER recognised during the year 19,530 12,898
HEHB AT Disposal of a subsidiary = (1,745)
EHER Exchange differences 4) 1,613
R+=—RA=+—~H At 31 December 48,717 36,835

JE LS BR AR e At PR MR 3R 2 BB S R R PR
BRIIER - RIFARRERRZ R KB M
FEM - EZERT  RERBESERYKE
AR A JE R E R (BB RE2()0)) -

TR M R A I A B MK O L 7S 4R 98 [0 45 5
R T IARME 2 7% % FE AR AR 70 K L At 8 AR
ZEEBY - BEFERZERKTIELZ
EERETARD -

R-Z—=—F+-A=+—0 A&E
5 H 448,717,000 T (=T —— F ¢
36,835,000/ 7T ) i U BR 3R I H A & U 31 (@
FNETARELC/EL2HEE ZEHE
ARERKRANARAMEEBREF
HMAEERBERKBATEREARDZR
18 o At - FERIRZ%E# 919,530,000/ 70
(ZZ——4 :12,898,000/& L) EAF A HE
R REBYERZEE BT HTIEKF

=}
on °
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Impairment loss in respect of trade and other receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade and other receivables directly (see note 2(j)(i)).

Reversal of impairment loss on trade and other receivables represents
the recovery of debts due from these trade and other receivables
previously considered to be impaired. An allowance for these receivable
amounts that had been made in previous years was written back
accordingly.

As at 31 December 2012, trade and other receivables of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$48,717,000 (2011: HK$36,835,000)
were individually determined to be impaired and full provision had been
made. These individually impaired receivables had been outstanding
for over 1 year as at the end of the reporting period or were due
from companies with financial difficulties. Accordingly, specific
allowances for doubtful debts of approximately HK$19,530,000 (2011:
HK$12,898,000) were recognised during the year. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.
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26. EWBRF R EMEWR - BARER 26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS
AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

BE (@)
GERNC)

Q  REMERFRE iR FORE ()

AL ENMEREEZERYCRA R E LR
FEBHABEBZERZARBENTE
B

- BEBAABREAHBERE
- BERFEREXRETHE

- EBARKEICAEREAME S M
RS AEEREBARDREAM
BRETEZEZER

- EBATERBEREIETEMYS
548 R

- BYRERE BERSBBEARE
RERBEEPRERNEREE &
BEBREBERTIREEBEAZMGR
REEREHRAEZRS  FH
BEei:

- AKEEBAZAREREE
FHED R

- BEAREREARIRSREMER
HEBRERA B BEMRI

o]

Impairment of trade and other receivables (Continued)

The factors which the Group considered in determining whether
these trade and other receivables were individually impaired
include the following:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- receivables that have been outstanding for a certain period;

- the Group granting to the debtor, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty, a

concession that the Group would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the
debtor since their initial recognition, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets
in the group, including:

- adverse changes in the payment status of debtors of
the Group; and

- economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the trade and other receivables of the Group.
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144

26. BUIRFR R EMEBHRRK AARER

&%’/m
PiteE : ()

d)  WERMEZERIER

b 8 A8 51 2% Ak [FIAR A4 6 Hh R IR B 2 FE MR AR 3R
ERBERZREDITIT

. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS

AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

d)  Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are

as follows:
rEE
The Group
—E-C—F —T——F
2012 2011
FER FHT
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
KEH B RRE Neither past due nor impaired 341,050 332,690
BH D refE A Less than 6 months past due 29,083 33,507
B R6E A ELF More than 6 months but less than 1 year past due 3,830 3,377
BEEBRIFEDR2E More than 1 year but less than 2 years past due = 780
32,913 37,664
373,963 370,354

RBHARBEZ BRFIBTI RS ZEHE
BRRGEHZEFPEH -

EAMERNEZBEFIARS R EAEE
RERFEBRCE I BURFERH - KRB
HER ERERRE ARGRERYES
RED  BZEEHKDBEE AT 2EKRE
B A A A AR E LR E RS - REEY
BRZERESBEEMERR -

27. Bl (A AR - AR
L
Uk, (B MBAR  ARZEHEEBR

ﬂﬂﬂ}

EEZE I‘Eﬁﬁ*#ﬁ#ﬁ ﬁaE&/A&EIH f&
jﬁo

Annual Report 2012 %

27.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND DIRECTORS
Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities
and directors are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.
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28. EHEPARTERRZIRBIBITER 28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED BANK
BALANCES
RZE—Z—F+-A=+—8  BIEPET As at 31 December 2012, the pledged bank deposits and
TREZBHRITEHOT ¢ restricted bank balances are as follows:
KEE
The Group
—E-—F T ——4F
2012 2011
FERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
B R RITF 5 (M 5EG@)) Pledged bank deposits (note (a)) 52,541 104,724
X R #8817 45 8 (BT #E(b)) Restricted bank balances (note (b)) 494 -
53,035 104,724
B BVHEAER 9 Less: Current portion (53,035) (52,177)
SEBNEAER 1D Non-current portion — 52,547

a) DBEMRITEFEHLS2,541,00087w (= F
——% :104,724,000/87T) 5 AR T A
SEZHTERMERFRITZER - 2157
IR EEF K3 85% (ZB——F : N F
3.25%%3.85%) 5T B °

b) RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—8 ZRHIET
FEHIERITRAE THERRITEAIMA
T R PR 2 17 57494,0008 7T © A B2 BR #
RITEBRENS B ZR P THIE T AR -
SIREIRITEBRIETISFIE035%E ©

o AEEEEERA FTHRIEHEREAT
[ERiEE=

Note:

o

Pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$52,541,000
(2011: HK$104,724,000) are pledged to a bank to secure bank
borrowings granted to the Group. The deposits carry variable-rate
at 3.85% (2011: ranging from 3.25% to 3.85%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2012, restricted bank balances represent
deposits required and restricted by banks in respect of the
issue of letters of credit to certain suppliers at HK$494,000 The
restricted bank balances had been released upon the completion
of the respective transactions. The restricted bank balances carry
interest at market rate of 0.35%.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of deposits approximate their fair values.
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29. e RBEEEHEHE

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

rEE N
The Group The Company
—2-——-F —E——% ZEBE--—f —IZT——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
TR TET THET TET
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITRFELRS Cash at bank and on hand 1,236,290 1,530,123 5,820 16,860

RekBeEEHEREASEAREZR
EREBERITHIENFEZE038% (=ZF
——%:0.01%%F0.05%):;t B2 EHA A
=EARA T ZRBRITER - AEEER
EBRA BRekAeEEBAZEOERER

RFERE -

equivalents approximate their fair values.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with a maturity of three months
or less at prevailing market interest rates ranging from Nil to
0.38% (2011: 0.01% to 0.05%). The management of the

Group considers that the carrying amounts of cash and cash

30 ERNERR - EREAREMEN 30. TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER
PAYABLES
rEE PN
The Group The Company
—8--Ff —F—% =%B-=fF ZT—F
2012 2011 2012 2011
THER FHT FTHT FHT
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
JEE 1 BR 5K Trade payables 94,664 94,964 = =
TERFEE REAM Accrued expenses and other
R~ RIE payables 21,195 62,806 4,481 4,471
RN ANGTE Financial liabilities measured at
Zemas amortised cost 115,859 157,770 4,481 4,471
TE W RIA Receipt in advance 3,161 6,999 = =
H b T IR Other tax payables 4,083 36,908 = =
123,103 201,677 4,481 4,471
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30 ENRF - AREAREMEMSK

30.

TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER

(&) PAYABLES (Continued)
EREFIREZARZIN ZRRTNAT The ageing analysis of trade payables presented based on the
invoice date is as follows:
rEE
The Group
—E-—CF —T——%
2012 2011
FTER FAET
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
BNERZ=6ME A AR Current to less than 6 months 83,096 81,152
6ME A E1F AR 6 months to less than 1 year 6,766 8,455
122F AR 1 to less than 2 years 2,070 4,161
26 A E Over 2 years 2,732 1,196
94,664 94,964
31. RITER 31. BANK BORROWINGS
R-_E——F+-_A=+—8 FFALETE As at 31 December 2012, all bank loans are secured and are

REEEMAREAEERNAT

repayable as follows:

rEH

The Group
—B-=fF —ZE——%F
2012 2011
TERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$" 000
1FEARIEERK Within 1 year or on demand 49,334 98,680
TEREHE Total bank loans 49,334 98,680

B EE Note

a) N EBE——FR-_FE——-F+-A=+-— a)  As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, all of the Group’s bank

B AEEMBRITERGNARKEE -

$R1TE 7 #949,334,0008 T (Z T ——4 :
49,340,000 7T) AR REE RS & - BE
—2——¢+:H +—BHLFE  BITE

3 #949,340,0008 LA ZBEHN  IRBRITE
%IJTe 41%35H 8 -

RITERTY AR E I RITF 452,541,000
BT (=B ——& : 104,724,000 7T) £ 5
AR o

AEEERERA RITERZEHER
NFEBE

d)

borrowings are denominated in RMB.

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$49,334,000 (2011:
HK$49,340,000) are bills of exchange and interest-free. For
the year ended 31 December 2011, bank borrowings of
approximately HK$49,340,000 were variable-rate borrowings
which carried prevailing interest rate at 6.41% per annum.

The bank borrowings were secured by the pledged bank deposits
of approximately HK$52,541,000 (2011: HK$104,724,000).

The management of the Group considers that the carrying 147
amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair values.
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32.

R BRI K Z G

32. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION

a) NEAUBHRARERZAEHOT a) Income tax recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position are as follows:

rEH
The Group
ZE—-F —T——F
2012 2011
FTHERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$" 000
»n—A—H At 1 January 55,271 1,207
FERE (HiEs@)) Provision for the year (note 8(a))
—FEDEMRER — PRC EIT 12,261 191,982
—BEBRER - Hong Kong Profits Tax 2,414 =
FREM Paid for the year
—HECEMER - PRCEIT (64,950) (138,927)
4,996 54,262
HEH B AR (FE34) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) = (361)
EHER Exchange differences (7) 1,370
R+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 4,989 55,271
RiRa BRI R IER Income tax recoverable recognised in the
Z AW B ER S B consolidated statement of financial position (943) (1,450)
RNRE B R ER Income tax payable recognised in the
ZERFSH consolidated statement of financial position 5,932 56,721
&R R 1B F B Net tax payable 4,989 55,271
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32. RFEMBRR R ZHABH (8) 32. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

b) ERRZEZEHEEERAR b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
RERBRAEERREEZBLEE The major components of the deferred tax assets/
SHRCZEBEERBEE,/ (AR 2 E (liabilities) provided for at the end of the reporting period
EREHMT - and for the year then ended are as follows:
rEH The Group

g

B N%BE  BNTEM
BRgF R#fEz  t#EEr  EREEL
2B LVERE AVERE ATESE BERX BE
Fair value
Fair value  adjustment on

Revaluation adjustment  prepaid lease Fair value
of buildings  on property,  payments on adjustment
held for plant and land under  on intangible Deferred
own use equipment operating leases assets  expenditure Total
TR TR ThER TR ThER TEx
HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HKS$' 000
ATHAREEEZEERE:  Deferred tax arising from:
RZE—%-f-H At 1 January 2011 (11,466) (1,163) 15,020 (82,331) 8,856 (71,084)
HERBAR (H334) Disposal of a subsidiary
(note 34) 338 658 (13,010) 57,520 (981) 44,525
WEFHA/ (GI%) Credited/(Charged) to income
(P z8(a)) statement (note 8(a)) 2,520 75 (218) 6,115 (2,389) 6,103
EZE Exchange differences (502) (47) 578 (3.222) 367 (2,826)
RZE——FFZF=1+—H At31December 2011 and
k-%--%#-8-H 1 January 2012 (9,110) (477) 2,310 (21918) 5,853 (23,282
WHERHA/ (G1%) Credited/(Charged) to income
(M3ts(a) statement (note 8(a)) 1,050 41 (53) 3125 (1,849) 2314
EizR Exchange differences 142 - - 2 = 144
Riixgg oz Credited to other comprehensive
FAEMREYE income for effect on change
in tax rate 1333 - - - - 1333
RZF-ZF+ZB=+-H At31 December 2012 (6,585) (436) 2317 (18,791) 4,004 (19,491)
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32. REREMBRRRZAEB (B 32. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
b) ERRAZEZEHEEERERE(E) b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
(Continued)

AR mEBRmE 2 BEER The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

REESB DT for financial reporting purposes:
—E-—fF —E——%F
2012 2011
FTHER FAT
HK$' 000 HK$'000

fra Mg & Deferred tax assets recognised in the
ﬁEE’JZ EERIEEE consolidated statement of financial position 6,321 8,223
NGRS RUP YR Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
RZEEREAE consolidated statement of financial position (25,812) (31,505)
(19,491) (23,282)
0 MHMABRCZELZHEEE c¢) Deferred tax assets not recognised

BB 2 & 2 25T ESK - A5E In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
WERAR-_E——F+_A=+—H82 2(q), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
25T 7 7% 5 18 47688,832,000/5 7T (= in respect of cumulative tax losses of approximately
T——4F 11,141,000/ 7T ) BERIELRL HK$688,832,000 (2011: HK$1,141,000) as at 31
HEE HARNBEHREI EER R December 2012 as it is not probable that future taxable
BRI RO 8EH R R IER R 0] HK profits against which the tax losses can be utilised will be
MBEEE - RIBBEBBKEN - 25 available under the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
MEEBEATRNAEREER - These tax losses are available for a period of five years

under the current tax legislation.
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32. REFEMBRRR BB (&)

d)

il

ABRRETHEAE

BRER-_ZTNF-—A—HBERZ
PR EMERE - WERP BRI
BREEBZITREEEIRPEK L
oA EBERBWRALIETRER
REIRSRBEEBER RIS ER
EEHEPHRA (MREFEZEE) &
10%HEHENBNAGHR RZTZT
NEZAZF+=-A BERPRERH
548 B i A B B1(2008)15% © L - R
ZET+F+ZA=F+—HMANE
1 E R B s FIE L 2 IR B 2 Ik ¥ 7 34
REMEMFEH

R-ZB——F+-A=+—H B@MH
BRAIA_EENFZADEEN T

= —

Rl
it
hic
a

£941,714,000% 7T (=
F 1 356,559,000;%75) o ARAAF
B HIZEMB AR ZREHE - BE
TR RATEER A R RAIE - 3
8 R B DR % F R B s 2 e R IE
RIETEH B E(E94,171,0005 7T (=
T ——4 : 135,656,000 7T) °

32. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

d)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the EIT Law of the PRC with effect from 1 January
2008 onwards, non-resident enterprises without an
establishment or place of business in the PRC or which
have an establishment or place of business but the
relevant income is not effectively connected with the
establishment or a place of business in the PRC, will be
subject to withholding income tax at the rate of 10%
on various types of passive income such as dividends
derived from sources in the PRC. On 22 February 2008,
the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Tax approved Caishui (2008) No.
dividend distributions out of retained profits of foreign

1, pursuant to which

investment enterprises prior to 31 December 2007 will be

exempted from withholding income tax.

At 31 December 2012,
relating to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries
since 2008 amounted to HK$941,714,000 (2011:
HK$1,356,559,000).
HK$94,171,000 (2011: HK$135,656,000) have not been

recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable on

temporary differences

Deferred tax liabilities of

the distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it
has been determined that it is probable that profits will

not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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33. RARRHE

a)

152
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ARERAES

BRI REN R

33.

FRZHBRENGARSEHRA -
BRARREZZBARNBORFNE
FREBzE8HHE - #HWT -

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
a) The reconciliation between the opening and closing

balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated

equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s

individual components of equity between the beginning

and the end of the year are set out below:

(BirER)/
RERF
(Accumulated
KRG %E DYERE losses)/
Share Fair value Retained aE
premium reserve profits Total
ThEL TAL ThAL TAL
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
R-E——%-f-H At 1 January 2011 1,919,350 (15,760) (50,863) 1,852,727
2EkE Comprehensive income
AEERR Loss for the year - - (36,357) (36,357)
HtzEhE Other comprehensive income
AR EREEFL Fair value loss on available-for-sale
NTEBE (M:23) equity securities (note 23) - (7,520) - (7,520)
ARHERRES Impairment loss on available-for-sale
HEEE (ME23) equity securities (note 23) = 23,280 = 23,280
2ENELE Total comprehensive income - 15,760 (36,357) (20,597)
BEERETEIET Issue of new shares under share
iR (r5E35) option scheme (note 35) 700 = = 700
RZE——F+-A=F—H At31 December 2011 and
kZE-—%-A—-H 1 January 2012 1,920,050 - (87,220) 1,832,830
2EkE Comprehensive income
KEERH Profit for the year - - 122,265 122,265
Htt2EhE Other comprehensive income
MHERREF Fair value gain on available-for-sale
NFERF (HFH23) equity securities (note 23) - 2,800 = 2,800
2EkEEE Total comprehensive income = 2,800 122,265 125,065
ERRE Dividend paid - - (33,453) (33,453)
WZE——F+-F=1—H At 31 December 2012 1,920,050 2,800 1,592 1,924,442
£ ER
T FX
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33. RER@EE (&) 33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
b) ZEEREBITEAE b) Authorised and issued share capital
REERFAR
The Group and the Company
—E--F “E—-f
2012 2011
R # A 8 Rip%A &8
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Th ThR TR TEL
'000 HKS' 000 "000 HK$'000

EE-BREE10ET Authorised - Ordinary shares of
LERR HK$0.10 each
R=B—ARTZA=F+—A8 At1January and 31 December 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000 200,000

BETRAR-BRER Issued and fully paid - Ordinary shares

0.10BTZ B&MK of HK$0.10 each
R-B-H A1 January 1,672,643 167,264 1,671,943 167,194
BEERETBITHRG  lssue of new shares under share
(Fr3E35) option scheme (note 35) - - 700 70
M+-A=t+-H At 31 December 1,672,643 167,264 1,672,643 167,264
RZE——FRAT=R ' KNAFIRE On 13 June 2011, the Company allotted and issued
HENRERT BT R E MR SR 1078 700,000 ordinary shares by way of share options
TR B & E17700,0000% X @AR 1D o exercised under share option scheme at HK$1.10 per
share.
TERFEAGREGSTREIR 2K The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
BERARAGRZLLZEER—FZ dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
REE - AL BREADF ZFIER to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
BEHNZARERER - All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Company'’s residual assets.
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33. RARHME (&)
o] ﬁ%Z&E&EW

1)

1ir)
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$E%Fﬁﬁx§¥% R (RIERT) -
P 13 (B BR 7T 61 20 R T AR 2 R AR
R-EREBEEEN KRS ZA
g ARABEEARBEE
BREREEELDNMER -

ARBIZBROHEREERAH
149,950,000/ 7T + BIZARA AR
M ERBRARZHEETR
MBI’ 2 EE - BARE
R—AAARFEABR=+ B IKE
FIRIEZERBRARMBENB D
AEANEZEEFEERBEL
EF o

ézlﬂuﬁﬁ?azliﬁllf‘iliiﬂ
MEERMEZ DEEEEERE
M -

BTEMFHRERKIFERET
ZEEBHSE(MBRELEHRE) &
REEMECER BFEMGMR
EBE T RILILRIEH E2(g) T 8
BRAFFERBTZEFBERT
ERIE - BFEEHEBR A
K

—F+=-HA=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

33.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

9]

Nature and purpose of reserves

)

ii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account is distributable
to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall

due in the ordinary course of business.

The share premium of the Company included the
contribution surplus of HK$149,950,000 which
represented the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the Company issued in
exchange for the entire issued share capital of
Lee Shing Holdings Limited and the value of the
underlying net assets of the subsidiaries held by
Lee Shing Holdings Limited at the date they were
acquired by the Company on 29 September 1999.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the capitalised
aggregate appropriations to the statutory
reserves made by the Group as a result of Group

reorganisation.

Buildings revaluation reserve

The buildings revaluation reserve comprises the
difference between the revalued amount, net of
deferred tax, and the carrying amount of buildings
held for own use. The buildings revaluation reserve
has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for buildings held
for own use as set out in note 2(g). The buildings

revaluation reserve is not distributable.
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33. RER#E @)
0 REZMERBMNE)

v) AT
BERERFBEZETRHBES IR
BA R 2 B B 8 I A R AR
RAIRHBEK L 2HBARZ A
AIERMEL  TEEEEZE
=g o

FAERBEUARBRABEFE
ZEBRMA) T EAREYHE
A ERETREBRRZEAER
HER/RBIELINEREMER
225% ©

ARRETRHBEZHEAREA
REREREEFEERZD
BgstRARROIEE 2/AEFZ
10% - EE %R HEAEREEEM
BARZ50% &1L o fFh 2 EEZA
REEEAD KBS Z BIEST o

EXFEERERRERMEEE
BeHBEREMELE ZAAER
EH - ABTIRBH 20T
ZEFBERTARE -

vi)  ZF ,
AT EFEESERARAREE
HFEERftlERaEsFs 2D
FEZZAEHFHE  UREMH
2N E 2 g EHBCR TIAREE ©

33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

9]

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

iv)

v)

Statutory reserves

Transfers from retained earnings to statutory
reserve fund were made in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations and the articles
of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC and were approved by the
respective boards of directors.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to make good
previous years' losses, if any, and may be converted
into paid-up capital provided that the balance of the
statutory reserve fund after such conversion is not

less than 25% of the entity’s registered capital.

The Company’s certain subsidiaries in the PRC are
required to transfer a minimum of 10% of their net
profits, as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations to the statutory
reserves until the reserve balances reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer must be made

before distribution of dividends to owners.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policy set out in note 2(t).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in fair value of available-for-sale equity
securities held at the end of the reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies in note 2(f).
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EE2 AR IRER
R-ZE——FE+-A=+—8 " 7#
DPETFHEEAZADAFBERED
£1,924,442,0008 L (Z 2 ——F :
1,832,830,0008 7t)  EFBEAR
a) J% 17 3% {8 491,920,050,0007%5 7T (=
T ——4F :1,920,050,000/8 L) + AF
B f#1#2,800,0008 L (Z T ——F :
) RAREE M 491,592,000 7T (=
T—— % R B 1E#87,220,000%
‘)~ﬁ%%@%5ﬁ% 2B AR

VBRENEERABEST I
Mfﬁ FREMEL DR

EXRERE
AEBEEREAZIEZABRNREAR
SERBEREZRNARBRERE
BEEEMBEREANES LR
BILZERRBARDBEEKAE

AEEeRERENENRERES
ERE NERAUERSBERE®RE
REEAKRAEAZ ZRBEFKF
ﬁ%mﬂﬁ&%EZﬁWE$@'”

BN BB ERRBEL
ﬁm RERIRBERRE - A5H
MEBRAEMRRERNZRE SR
BITHBR REBEATHRRILEER
EARIE

HEREH -} AEENEEAEBR
REIRE ARG - FLLEUAEKE 7R
ﬁ'gmfx/)ﬂiﬁi&ﬁ TEIEE M$
@T%ﬁA%M%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ K&
BR T ——FRk=_F——F+=H
T+ HAYEFER -BHEZT—=
F+_A=Z+—BLFEEHM K&
BErRBEE-_T——FHR -

AR R EAEMMB AR EBER
REBZEAHE °
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33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

d)

e)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of
the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to owners was approximately HK$1,924,442,000
(2011: HK$1,832,830,000).
share premium of approximately HK$1,920,050,000
(2011: HK$1,920,050,000),
HK$2,800,000 (2011: Nil) and retained profits of
approximately HK$1,592,000 (2011: accumulated losses
of approximately HK$87,220,000) and is available for
distribution provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed, the Company will be
able to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

It includes the Company's

fair value reserve of

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher stakeholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as the Group’s bank borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents over its total equity attributable
to owners of the Company. There is no net debts for the
Group as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.
year ended 31 December 2012, the Group's strategy was
unchanged from 2011.

During the

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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34, HEMB AT
A2 AEEER - —4F
NA+-BHERER L~ 280N - R

34. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
As detailed in note 12, the Group disposed its entire interest

SHBMZHEEEFERIIMAT

in Xinghua Rare Earth on 12 August 2011. The net assets

disposed of at the date of disposal were as follows:

FHET
HK$' 000
E1 & E (H7520) Intangible assets (note 20) 230,080
W - BB &R (FiEE18(a) Property, plant and equipment (note 18(a)) 40,127
KEMOTEN T HES Prepaid lease payments for land under operating
(PFF7E19) leases (note 19) 27,675
GE Inventories 8,191
B RIE RIS Prepayment and deposits 51,684
JE LT B R R L FE U R Trade and other receivables 100,668
RekBFEEFEER Cash and cash equivalents 22
458,447
JEfFBR X Trade payables (5,378)
TEiR B A R E o A K Accruals and other payables (165,530)
EER B AR (H5E32(b)) Deferred tax liabilities (note 32(b)) (44,525)
FE 8578 (FTRE32(a)) Tax payable (note 32(a)) (361)
242,653
& (fFEE17) Goodwill (note 17) 70,734
LEEEFE Net assets disposed of 313,387
&5 #EE Release of translation reserve (21,063)
& B8 A R 2 B AT as (i EE12) Pre-tax gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 12) 20,823
RE Consideration 313,147
ATF AR Satisfied by:
Be Cash 313,147
HEMBARZRSRAFEE Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary:
& 2 P15 308 Proceeds on disposal 313,147
tECZHEeRASEMEIEAR Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (22)
313,125
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35. BRESE
RZZZNFENANBRTZERBEFAS
E - ARARARERELKER-AANETA
M B RA 2 BB ([E5E1]) RIRM
FEERERTEI ([FhatEl]) -

BEHFE EEANERFEAEREFR
RSB EERZAREZBES (BEX
RAIREMBARIZESE) - KRR - #
B BF - EREMR  BRNMAEBES
EREHBEFAEGRRGHZRRTER
BRERBADTRD - G EBSHEEHRH
BRBEEZEREINRBANRE - BRiE
TREFERLBARMETREE TS
AR A Z BEREEERETE - T EE8B
EERERLBRTHEZHE  EER
MET BT ARER L - RERIEEREIE - I
BIRILE—SREERE  BRAEEMA
| BB ZESUDERT - MR LR
Rz B RS A R AT R I T A
I REBEEZTE—Z—R-F——F+_H
=+—HIEMBEFE  ARARWEKHER
-

AFEERHEAARESEE AU LRE
NEBANRRMDAKTE BEENER
AT (A% 2 A ADQ R RD KU E - A
RARBRNEEZER Z2&E=E ° 50%E
BHEA-ZZTTNF— A -+ BERET
- FNERERTFTERBEARNIRERD
A—REBERG AR ERLEE -
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4
June 2004, the shareholders of the Company approved the
termination of the Company’s share option scheme adopted
on 14 October 1999 (the “Old Scheme”) and the adoption of a

new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”).

Under the New Scheme, the directors may, at their discretion,
invite full-time employees of the Group, including directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries, any of its shareholders,
suppliers, customers, consultants, advisers and joint venture
partners or business alliance who have contributed or will
contribute to the Group to take up options to subscribe for
shares in the Company subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated therein. A nominal consideration will be paid by
the eligible participants for each lot of share options granted.
An option may be exercised at any time during a period to be
determined and identified by the directors to each grantee at
the time of making the offer, but in any event, shall not exceed
the period of ten years from the date of grant of the particular
option, subject to the early termination of the New Scheme.
Upon the termination of the Old Scheme, no further share
options were granted thereunder, but in all other respects, the
provisions of the Old Scheme remained in force and all share
options granted prior to such termination continued to be
valid and exercisable in accordance therewith. No option has
been granted by the Company during the two years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011.

The exercise price is to be determined by the directors of the
Company, and should not be less than the highest of the
closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of offer,
the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares. 50% of the options
shall not be exercised prior to 20 January 2004. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in

the Company and is settled gross in shares.
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35. BRRER & () 35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
HE-_Z——F+-_A=1+—HLFEHH There was no share option outstanding throughout the year
WEEARITEERE BE_T——F+= ended 31 December 2012. Movements of share options for the
A=+—HALFEEREZ2ZHOT : year ended 31 December 2011 are as follows:

REBRETNTRAZRAHE
Number of shares issuable under options

Rog--% R=g--%

-fA-A t-A=+-A

RAAH E8  AKE AT ERR R FRRK HATE

Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding at

Exercise  at 1 January during the during the during the 31 December

Date of grant Exercisable period price 2011 year year year 2011
& 2= ZERZE-AttE
-B=1=H ER-ZE-AZ15H

Employee 23 January 2003 27 January 2003-26 January 2013 110 700,000 - (700,000) - -

RZTE——F+-A=+—"H BELMARK As at 31 December 2012, no shares in respect of which

D RAIRIEF AT BB R B A ®RTTE 2 BR options had been granted and remained outstanding under

R o iZENET 8 - REARHRREER A RIRR the New Scheme. The total number of shares in respect of

R AREZEREL A ABBAR R which options may be granted under the New Scheme is not

BEITRHZ10% - permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in

issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the

Company'’s shareholders.
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36. BE

a)

160
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ALTRZF 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
HBEEALTZRS a) Transactions with related parties
BREBHRREMIIBEECRIR In addition to the transaction and balances disclosed
HEERh  BERE  THAFALREE elsewhere in these financial statements, the directors
ZERBEATRS : consider that the followings are the significant related
party transactions of the Group during the year:
—2-CF —E——F
2012 2011
TERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
HEALER BASEZHE XEHE
Name of related party Relationship with Nature of transaction
the Group
BREELE ARRARNTEES AEEXNESER 888 636
Mr. Jiang Quanlong Executive director Payment of rental expenses
of the Company by the Group
B A1SA (B 2% 41 AEEHRAEHER AEEHERE 120,237 32,716
BRAR(TERAIATE])
OSRAM (China) Fluorescent Jointly controlled Sales of inventory
Materials Co., Ltd. ("OFM") entity of the Group by the Group
AEEBERE 411 =
Purchases of inventory
by the Group
AEBEHERE RXE - 1,402
Sales of plant and
equipment by the Group
HEMBEFIERE AEBARZEHER AEEHERE 21,415 10,781
BRAR(TEEBHET])
Yixing AGC Ceramics Jointly controlled Sales of inventory
Co., Ltd. ("AGCC") entity of the Group by the Group
AEBHEELERNT - 10,150
B LA E
Sales of prepaid lease
payment on land under
operating leases
by the Group
AEEHERE LR 986 -
Sales of plant and
equipment by the Group
EHR
™ FX
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36. BEALRE (8) 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

a) HBEEATZXRS(E) a) Transactions with related parties (Continued)

i}

—E-CF —E——F
2012 2011
TERT TERT
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
BEALTAR BAEEZHE XAME
Name of related party Relationship with Nature of transaction
the Group
EHZDIRARHMBAERAR ARRERRRELE FEEXNEESER 65 64
(3220 TREESE
Wuxi Pan-Asia Environmental A company of which Payment of rental expenses
Protection Technologies Mr. Jiang Quanlong, by the Group
Limited (" Wuxi Pan-Asia”) a director of the

Company, is also a

director

BRI BRI S A - 23
Receipt of rental income
by OFM

HEBHEFRERLS - 12,844
BHTEMLBHES

Purchase of prepaid lease
payments on land under

operating leases by AGCC

HEBEFEERE - 7,342
BERET

Purchase of buildings held
for own use by AGCC

AT EELEEANT 2,075 =
BN LwAe

Sales of prepaid lease
payments on land under

operating leases by OFM
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36. BEALRE (B 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

a) HBEEALZXRZ(E) a) Transactions with related parties (Continued)
EERR LRRGTDR—MEHB The directors are of the opinion that the above
RAREFHEGREILARERE transactions were entered into under the normal
ZERGZ MBI L WE BB I course of business and on normal commercial terms
HITESHR - or in accordance with the agreements governing such

transactions, and this has been confirmed by independent

non-executive directors.

b) HFXrEEBABZXRS b) Transactions with key management personnel
FEEBAB 2 (BEINTHEE Emoluments for key management personnel, including
B ANBIEE R0 E amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
ZEREHMALTZEB) AT note 9 and the highest paid employees as disclosed in

note 10 are as follows:

rEE
The Group
—E-—fF —E——%F
2012
FTHER
HK$' 000 HK$'000
HEARFHE 2B REYWREM  Basic salaries, allowance and benefits-in-kind 3,982
RIREEF Post-employment benefits 55
4,037
0 HEEBEALZERR ¢) Balances with related parties
RZE——ZFR-_T——F+=H Details of the balances with related parties as at 31
S+ —HHBEATZEBRZFER December 2012 and 2011 are set out in note 27.
NP
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BZE-ZF——-F+=-A=1+—HIHFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

37. &IE

a)

37. COMMITMENTS
REPHRMABEER  NEERGEHY a) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
BREANEGEDE BERZH W authorised capital commitments in respect of acquisition
B RREE 2 RBHE A R & A and construction of property, plant and equipment
BOT contracted but not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements as follows:
TEH

The Group
—E-CF —E——F
2012 2011
FTHER FAT
HK$'000 HK$' 000

ME - WEREE Acquisition and construction of property,

Z U A plant and equipment 56,107 8,531
RERABEER  NEERETA b) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
B T REFEEHENBREM operating lease commitments for future minimum lease
BHEMMRERSREAEZRBHA payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
N respect of land and buildings which fall due as follows:

AEE

The Group
—Z2-—fF —E——%F
2012 2011
FTHER FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
1R Within one year 1,940 2,326
F2EFSF (BEBEREME)  In the second to fifth year inclusive 592 2,532
2,532 4,858
KEHENTEAEEREETHRA Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
EXBEMERMN2EE - HAHKM Group for certain of its office and factory premises. Leases and
ETRBEEET  RP_FE0F - § rentals are negotiated and fixed for a period of two to five

BHEESLHAEE - years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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il

I

37. A (®) 37.
b) (#&) b)
A EDE TR 36T H B 2
BATERELEREBZEZRRK
4 341,502,000 L (Z T ——
4 12,456,000/ L) © BIHAAMT ¢

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(Continued)

The above commitments included future lease payments
to Mr. Jiang Quanlong and Wuxi Pan-Asia, related parties
as disclosed in note 36, of approximately HK$1,502,000
(2011: HK$2,456,000) which fall due as follows:

rEE
The Group
=F-=F —F——%
2012 2011
THER FAT
HK$'000 HK$" 000
BREXE Mr. Jiang Quanlong
15 A Within one year 888 888
F2EFSF (BEEEME)  In the second to fifth year inclusive 592 1,480
1,480 2,368
#8572 55 Wuxi Pan-Asia
1R Within one year 22 66
FE2EFSF (BIEEEMT)  In the second to fifth year inclusive = 22
22 88
1,502 2,456

o RERBEMEER AEEAFRZH ]
T B8 X B B o B R0 Y S 364 B 2 B
BALTEBRTITLRARBRENA
Bz L EHERN B RAASN
ZEERSFRALINBEWMT

At the end of the reporting period, OFM, a jointly
controlled entity of the Group had contracted with Wuxi
Pan-Asia, a related party as disclosed in note 36, for
future minimum lease payment receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of land which fall
due as follows:

—E-C—F —ET——%F

2012 2011

FTHER FAT

HK$'000 HK$' 000

15 A Within one year - 23
F2EFSF (BEEREME)  In the second to fifth year inclusive = 108
HiBhF More than five years - 993
- 1,124
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37.

38.

AIE (E)

o (&)
e EERE N FIER AP ERE
Atz ERERz2AE - ALY
& TBBERETE - RE49F -
BMERESRIARSE -

FR BRECEANTENIHLAS
BHEFESZE - K{EA2,075,000
BT (Ki5E36(a)) °

MHEREERERBE

AEEZTESRTABEREIREEE
RE - BERRTER  RRERITES
AHHERERES  BERRREMEK
K BARRREMENRARRITER
EMTRAZHBREREME -ZEEWMT
B7RRERASEEREEBBRETES
ZEERR  RBEERR  FXER B
BRRRROERRR

a) fFEERME

) EEEBEXZHFEEIETA
NEFEBAEENBEEEZE
B o AEBERTIKAMEE AER
EERIZRGHFHETES
WEIG R SRR @ (EA) - A
REEEBTANEEEHMY
EiEZER

37.

38.

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

)  (Continued)
Operating lease payment receivables represent rental
receivables by OFM for the right to use a piece of land.
Leases and rentals are negotiated and fixed for 49 years.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The related prepaid lease payments on land under
operating leases was disposed to Wuxi Pan-Asia during
the year at a consideration of HK$2,075,000 (note 36(a)).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank balances,
available-for-sale equity securities, trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables and bank borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk and equity

price risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

a) Credit risk
i) Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the Group. The Group has
adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk

of financial loss from defaults.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
a) Credit risk (Continued)

ii)

BZEZ-Z——F+=-H=1—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2012
. BERREEEEREBEK(B)
a) fERR(E)
ii) 2 R R AR R R E At FE LR
Rz Bk %IEEETI—IE%
ERER CHEBRCEERRET
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iii)

‘—ij

REER - AKEE Eﬁﬁﬂx)}
BT ERP 2 HBMRR K&
ETEENG - ZEFEHER
FPBEXNIMKEAZELRA
AZXREN  UEBEFHEE
BHEREPREMBIEERRZZ
BEft - AEEYERESREE
BREFER M - EF— KRB H
BHEELI80E NEIH -

4}

SEAAX 2FERBRTIE
SEBREPZERHATE -
I ETRRERZIERE
BITEHEERREMTE '1
RERK NERBEEE
$%7¥Kﬁ5§§ﬁﬁik%ﬁ&ﬁ
KE)E'JT%‘H&EE%\%@%EZ%?%EP
EERRA B R255% (ZF——

F10%)K51% (ZE——F
36%) °

|

I
\I]\

>

EAAEBEREEWETRREA
FBlFzEERBRZE—FSL
B EFNKI 26 -

RehFRREE QR REmE
WASEEFRZERBEE K
KB FAEM E — S BB AT RIE

RRER - ERREAESE
B BREBY NEBEMZ

ECTRBBEELIBITHERE

iii)

In respect of trade and other receivables, in order to
minimise risk, the management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations
of its customers’ financial position and condition
are performed on each and every major customer
periodically. These evaluations focus on the
customers’ past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customers as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customers operate. The Group does not require
collateral in respect of its financial assets. Debts are

usually due within 180 days from the date of billing.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 25% (2011: 10%)
and 51% (2011: 36%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the

five largest customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade

and other receivables are set out in note 26.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with
high credit ratings that are located where the
Group companies are operated and the Group has
exposure limit to any single financial institution.
Given their high credit ratings, management does
not expect any of these financial institutions will fail

to meet their obligations.
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38. IBEKREERERHEK (&) 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

a) fERK(E) a) Credit risk (Continued)

iv) b FEUH R R B R RE R IR iv)  For amounts due from jointly controlled entities
AIBARIHENS  AEEE and amount due from a former subsidiary, the
= ) B R A A 4 ) B B8 I AT B B Group would closely monitor the financial positions
RAIZHBRR - BEFEER including the net assets backing of the jointly
oo fbih REEGHEHEIAME controlled entities and the former subsidiary.
AIMEIE 2 FTUL[E 8158 - AR Bt In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
AT W B EEE 1R TR R B amounts of the individual debts to ensure that
Boplt EFRA AEEHZ adequate impairment losses are made for the
EERRE R - irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors

consider that the Group’s credit risk is mitigated.
PR IEU AR N Eo A R - B & Other than concentration of credit risk on trade
kREEEER  SEHRITH and other receivables as well as cash and cash
B FE WAL AT I B B IR R equivalents, pledged bank deposits, amounts due
WA B RRRIBMELEZEF from jointly controlled entities and amount due
EERREI  NEELBEEME from a former subsidiary, the Group does not have
fhEREREERR - any other significant concentration of credit risk.

V) ARFIZEERBEEREEK v)  The Company's credit risk is primarily attributable
B R FIRRIE - ARAIRE R to amounts due from subsidiaries. The Company
HHE&EReEMERNEE A reviews the recoverable amounts of individual
W Bl 518 - LA BE LR B8 7 A] U [l 50 debts at the end of each reporting period to ensure
BEH R M RHERE - that adequate impairment losses are made for

irrecoverable amounts.
b) RBEEER b) Liquidity risk

AEERETZBYEEERARR
EEZESER BERLAKZE
HRENEBHEEFURRERRES
Ko EEREESIER - TAEER -
AEBZBRRBERERE I LR
ZRBELFR  URETERR -
BRASEEESTHNRAS RIEE
EL RIS EANAGHEERE -
INRRERAREARDESTEER

KEKBRITERE/SRBES TR

\

<

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to board approval. The Group's policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants to ensure that
it maintains sufficient amount of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term. The Group relies on bank borrowings as

a source of liquidity.
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38. KEMREREBFERBUR (&)

b)
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REBE SRR (E)

TR AEERARFAZERAE
RERMESEER  ERAHRITE
Ren (BREERSNNEFFTZME
IR RE R AR RAREEE
RERZFEH) RAEERARAT
BEREEZRFEHMABZHTA
#H

b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

The following table set out the remaining contractual

maturities at the end of the reporting period of the

Group's and the Company’s financial liabilities based

on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including

interest payments computed using contractual rates

or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the

reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and the

Company can be required to pay:

r5E
The Group
—E-CF
2012
—FAd —FH0E MENLE  BORFR
REREE MEUR IFNR RERELH REE
More than More than Total
Within 1year but 2 yearsbut contractual
1 year or less than less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
TR TR TR TR TR
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
FiTESRAR Non-derivative financial
liabilities
BT BR R Trade payables 94,664 - - 94,664 94,664
BIREMREMEMI Accruals and other payables 21,195 - - 21,195 21,195
EREERE Amounts due to directors 1,074 - - 1,074 1,074
BITER Bank borrowings 49,334 - - 49,334 49,334
166,267 - - 166,267 166,267
d AR BER Financial guarantees issued
ERsaeE Maximum amount
(FtzE39) guaranteed (note 39) 102,715 - - 102,715 102,715
54
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38. IKEMREEEERBXR (&) 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
by REBELER(E) b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
K&EE
The Group
—T——F
2011
—ERF — B b REAE  ABAFE
REREER EEINN RENR BeRELH REE
More than More than Total

Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
THT TET THT T THT
HK$"000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000

FITESRMEE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
ERER Trade payables 94,964 - = 94,964 94,964
BIREBEREMENF Accruals and other payables 62,806 = = 62,806 62,806
ENEERE Amounts due to directors 519 - = 519 519
RITER Bank borrowings 100,222 - - 100,222 98,680
258,511 - - 258,511 256,969

HAFBER Financial guarantees issued
EREELE Maximum amount

(F5E39) guaranteed (note 39) 49,340 - - 49,340 49,340
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38. iIKAMEEBZEREE (&) 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
b) REBELER(E) b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
LN
The Company
—BE-—F
2012
—ERH —FHUE MENL  AHRFR
REREE ME AR IFUR REeRELE FHE
More than More than Total
Within 1year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTESRAR Non-derivative financial
liabilities
BIREBAREMEMZR Accruals and other payables 4,481 = = 4,481 4,481
ERNEERE Amounts due to directors 260 - - 260 260
4,741 - - 4,741 4,741
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BZE-ZF——-F+=-A=1+—HIHFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

38. IKEMREEEERBXR (&) 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
b) REBELEK(E) b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
/NG|
The Company
—T——F
2011
—ERF — B b REAE  ABAFE
REREER EEINN RENR BeRELH REE
More than More than Total

Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
THT TET THT T THT
HK$"000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000

FITESRMEE Non-derivative financial

liabilities
BIREAREMEMI Accruals and other payables 4,471 = = 4,471 4,471
ERNEEREA Amounts due to directors 260 - = 260 260

4,731 - - 4,731 4,731
BMECARTERREEE (BREB)E None of bank borrowings contain a repayment on
SIS HRRMES —EEAHBE demand clause in relation to HK Interpretation 5,
REXBREERNEHETNSEIE Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by

BAIR ESRE RGN the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment

on Demand Clause.
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38. MIBEKMEERERHEK (&) 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

o FEAE

POLICIES (Continued)

c¢) Interest rate risk

REBRKNNFBEZGBNZEF The Group and the Company are exposed to cash flow
XFENREeERFeEEER K& interest rate risk in relation to cash and cash equivalents,
WEBTHER  XRHRITAELRRRTT pledged bank deposits, restricted bank balances and bank

EFMBRS RN R

172
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borrowings at floating interest rate.

FIE# & i) Interest rate profile
TRAMBEINAER RAA AR The following table details the interest rate profile
FERRRREEAE RN X of the Group’s and the Company’s net deposits at
FEEE the end of reporting period:
r&E
The Group
—5--% —E——%
2012 2011
ERAE BRI %
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% TER % TR
% HK$' 000 % HK$' 000
BERFIER Pledged bank deposits 3.85 52,541 3.25-3.85 104,724
XBHRTES Restricted bank balances 0.35 494 = =
BekBReSHEER Cash and cash equivalents 0-0.38 1,236,290 0.01-0.05 1,530,123
RITER Bank borrowings - (49,334) 0-6.41 (98,680)
FERAE

Total net deposits 1,239,991 1,536,167
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. BERREEREEREBEK(B) 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
o F=E ¢) Interest rate risk (Continued)
i) 2 (#8) i) Interest rate profile (Continued)
NN
The Company
—g--F —Z——f
2012 2011
ERA= BB X
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% TER % TER
% HK$' 000 % HK$' 000
RekBHE&EBEER Cash and cash equivalents 0-0.05 5,820 0.01 16,860
RERER Total net deposits 5,820 16,860
i) HEES i) Sensitivity analysis
RZE—Z—F+=-_A=+—82" At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general

EAMEEMESRFBIZNE)
\'ﬁﬂﬂ$¥%t%ﬁme
18] 25 B8 15 0% > 303 NS & B R
F[EF518493,136,0008 L (= F
——4F - nskoR A & E i F
#94,201,000 7T) ° Fl R &g +
F TR G ERNEMmEH
W -

increase or decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease or increase the Group's loss for the year
by approximately HK$3,136,000 (2011:
or decrease the Group's profit by approximately
HK$4,201,000). Other components of consolidated

increase

equity would not change in response to the general

increase or decrease in interest rates.
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38. MIBEKMEERERHEK (&) 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
o RN=REK(E) c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

/i)

= A (4
BN

HRE 7 (&

FRGURRE S AT TR IR B SR A
EEBRAE 2R ERERME
E o BN REZN B RIAL
ERZAERSRIAREBESF
ErAREEmMAGER - SOEESR
AL TRARNLMEEZEEAE
R EmRAER s R I
REBEBHANENSIERE D
Wt e —E——FENERE
REEH DT -

AD R AR H B LR
EEAFEER -

d E¥EkE
AEETEANEEBERNIGHE
AT ETEBPTE LR -
BNREREEHMEHERERR - &
BuERR B ETERITRET
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ii)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
based on the exposure to interests rates at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. The 50 basis points increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible changes in interest rates. The

analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.

The Company was not exposed to significant

interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through

sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,

payables and cash balances that are denominated in a

currency other than the functional currency of the entity

to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk

are primarily United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
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38. IBEKREERERHEK (&) 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
d E¥RK(E) d) Currency risk (Continued)

D) TREZ BEERE i) Exposure to currency risk
TRANAEERAARSKE The following table details the Group’s and the
NEEBEB 2N EEUIINE Company’s exposure to currency risk arising from
BAtEZERREEXABME recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
XEBER - currency other than the functional currency of the

entity to which they relate.

A58
The Group
e e EBER AT ETSIE)

Exposure to currency risk (expressed in HKS'000)

~B--f —FT—-F
2012 2011

in BT e BT

United Hong United Hong

States Kong States Kong

Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars

YRR R EMEYRE  Trade and other receivables 74,281 = 42,551 =
ReRReFEEE Cash and cash equivalents 15,352 2,608 34,664 18,483
ENEFREMEMSZ  Trade and other payables (2,623) = (1,172) =
RXEEERER Overall exposure to currency risk 86,970 2,608 76,043 18,483
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38. MIBEKREREBERBE#E) 38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

d) Currency risk (Continued)

i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued)
NN
The Company
FAEzE¥ER
(LA F 8 T5E)
Exposure to currency risk
(expressed in HK$’000)

—E-CF —T——F

2012 2011

E eIy

United United

States States

Dollars Dollars

RekR&FHEEA Cash and cash equivalents 3,681 4,116
FBIRBA L EMBENI  Accruals and other payables (1,172) (1,172)
AR EREEER Overall exposure to currency risk 2,509 2,944

AREERE AL EFAINE B ERR
SNEEEIRBR - AR BRI E
FHONERR  WKERFERE
BEHEAERRAR -

i) HEEDYT
TRIFAEBEZHRE (BR)
/M) B AR B g R AN R
RMSRATAEEEREXRA
BZIMNEERKRZAR LR
REZPMBANEL 2 I
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The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect its of foreign
currency debts. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging

significant currency exposure should the need arises.

i) Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's (loss)/profit after taxation and
retained profits that would arise if foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant in response to reasonably possible changes
in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting

period.
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38. IBEKREERERHEK (&) 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

d) Currency risk (Continued)

d) EEWER(E)

i) BRI () i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
rEE
The Group
BB EBR PR 1 M &
NEER  HP /(BN REE M [ REEMZ
2,/ (A5) wAEM/ (HD) #mn,/ (i L) #m/ (Rd)
Decrease/(increase)
Increase/ in loss after Increase/ Increase/(decrease)
(decrease) taxation and (decrease) in profit after
in foreign  increase/(decrease) in foreign taxation and

exchange rates

in retained profits

exchange rates

retained profits

—E2--f “T——F

2012 2011

TR FAET

HK$'000 HK$' 000

%7t United States Dollars 5% 3,744 5% 3,354
(5%) (3,744) (5%) (3,354)

%L Hong Kong Dollars 5% 110 5% 693
(5%) (110) (5%) (693)
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38. HKEMEERBERBK (&

d E¥EkE(E

38.

SEE =
2,/ (FD)
Increase/
(decrease)

in foreign

exchange rates

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

d) Currency risk (Continued)

i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

N

The Company
BB & ERR BBiR B R
REER S RE X ZEEZ
#m,/ (HD) #m/ (hd) (R4) /%
Increase/(decrease) Increase/ (Decrease)/Increase
in profit after (decrease) in loss after
taxation and in foreign taxation and

retained profits

exchange rates

accumulated losses

“Z2--f —T——F

2012 2011

THEx THT

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

%7 United States Dollars 5% 125 5% 147
(5%) (125) (5%) (147)

178

Annual Report 2012 %

ERARZOMERKKRE A E
EETSERRDEERIEYL
EHRRYHAEAZERTRER
BILARES 2 RO BRH % (&
1B)aM Rk AR
o

S UK E 5 AT TR BR 1 T R
ZEHCAREFFEARER
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AEMEE - AN K =_F——
FZ AR EAEETT o

Results of the analysis is presented in the above
table represent an aggregate of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ (loss)/profit
after taxation and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the

reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates
had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the

same basis for 2011.
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. BEEREEEERBEEH) 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

e) RKRHOEERAR e) Equity price risk
REBRARNBEARAFHEFEZE The Group and the Company are exposed to equity price
TR EREmAERGBERE - risk through certain available-for-sale investments that are
HRAFERZREBEES il?zHEFEJ #ERAZ measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period
MZHREFE - AEEEFIERA with reference to the quoted market prices. The Group
BERE &%%&éF@ZEW‘“@&m manages its exposure by closely monitoring the price
TR E TR o movements and the changes in market conditions that

may affect the value of these investments.

RZE——ZF+=ZA=+—8 " s At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that an increase or
REEE LEAKTREI10% - FTE HAb decrease of 10% in equity prices, with all other variables
""""" PHEHERITE SEAEERAAT held constant, would have increased or decreased
Z A ARG MR 2 #)952,000% the Group’s and the Company's fair value reserve by
TL(ZF——%F : 672,000 L) ° approximately HK$952,000 (2011: HK$672,000).

f) 2¥E f)  Fair value

BRERMBEERABNEREREN -
E——FRZB-——F+ZA=+—
AMATEMES -

i) 3?*/7%
REBHEEENRITE

Tﬂﬂiﬁ‘f CHRITER

HENFERE

/TAEET:I
B AR E(E

The carrying amounts of significant financial assets and
liabilities approximate their respective fair values as at 31
December 2012 and 2011.

i) Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other

receivables, trade and other payables

The carrying amounts approximate their fair values

because of the short maturity of these items.

i) Bank borrowings
The carrying amounts of bank borrowings
approximate their fair values based on the
borrowing rates currently available for bank

borrowings with similar terms and maturities.
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38. KEMREREBFERBUR (&)

) 2QDFEE)

1if)
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

f)  Fair value (Continued)

iii)

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying amount
of financial instruments measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS
7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair
value of each financial instrument categorised in
its entirety based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to that fair value measurement. The

levels are defined as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical financial instruments;

-  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data;

and

- Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable

market data.
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38. IKEAMEREBZEREBE (&) 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
) 2AFEE) f)  Fair value (Continued)
i) iii)  Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)
AEBRADT
The Group and the Company
—E-=F —E——fF
2012 2011
FER FET
HK$' 000 HK$'000
& Bl Level BE Asset
E1R Level 1 AEHE Available-for-sale
T H equity securities 9,520 6,720
E2R Level 2 - = - -
FE3M Level 3 = - - _
9,520 6,720
RERBEHEER  E2B R E3 There were no financial instruments in Level 2 and
BUETMEBMITA - Level 3 at the end of the reporting period.
RFEH 2N TFE TR H R 4 Fair value of equity securities is based on quoted market
BAZMESHREET BVERRS prices at the end of the reporting period without any
B A VEAE (T R, © deduction for transactions costs.
g ¥KERERE g) Business risk
REBZRAOKEEERBHER Substantial portion of the Group's revenue is generated
TEEYVER HEHRLERILLMES mainly from the sales of rare earth oxide products. The
Z W B AR TP B BT S B R R revenue from the sales of rare earth oxide products is
BRREHTEREORE 2R - dependent on the Chinese government restriction on
REEDRKFREE N B+ E(Y mining of rare earth mines and granting of export quotas
EmZERERD RER LR - ENAX of rare earth products. The supply and price of rare earth
SEIZABERLITE AEEZW oxide products decreases and increases respectively with
HBARGXEPFEABEESRLTEZ increasing in the Chinese government restriction. Given
BREETE - the Group's substantial reliance on rare earth industry,

the Group’s revenue could be highly sensitive to changes

in the Chinese government policy on the rare earth

industry. 181
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38.

39.

40.

MBREREREEREREER (&)

hy RERR

F - FEBFHERRER L EER
ETTRRENRRELE - HAREN
RHEEEENDET ARG BEER-
AEEHRERE-—BETEHRD R
BEIMERRELE - BRERRE
BNEERGTHANEE 2 EE R
MERTE -

HAREE

BB ER
RZB——F+-A=1+—8 "EEHMA
THERIANEEN B QB RETHEER
F H BT %14333,004,0008 T (=T ——
% :271,370,0008 ) 2 EEEE - A5H
REEERZE=EE  IZSHERZEHE
BERBROEERE - 8102,715,000% T
(ZZ——1:49,340,00087T) - ARZE
HBERBEBEZAFEYTERBEERE
RZERMAEERENKE S @ RIS
BRZSERz2EE -

HiA

FANAEE-HAZGNESBHERE=Z
BrEERANFEAELE-—EERFLES
Fo— THZBRERRZLRZEHEEM
EREZHERER T AN ZARBRIEAL
33,912,000 - Z—FEZ LR ZEHE
BOZREERREEERESRERTA
FHAREEERERBE N Z2ARFIELN
60,739,000/ 7T - RIFEEER - EFUL A
R A IEBT S 7 L R I B 8B AR A
R o
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38.

39.

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

h) Environmental risk
Recently, the Chinese government has conducted large
scale environmental protection inspections on all rare
earth enterprises in the country. Enterprises which failed
to meet the relevant standards would be forced to
suspend operations. The Group has constantly promoted
environmental protection and has complied with these
environmental protection standards. Further stringent
restrictions on the environmental protection standards

could affect the Group's operations and the profits.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Financial guarantees issued

As at 31 December 2012, the jointly controlled entities of the
Group were covered by guarantees issued by subsidiaries of
the Group to banks in respect of bank facilities granted to the
jointly controlled entities to the extent of HK$333,004,000
(2011: HK$271,370,000). The maximum liabilities of the Group
under the guarantees were the amounts of the facilities drawn
down by the jointly controlled entities, being HK$102,715,000
(2011: HK$49,340,000). No recognition of the liabilities
underlying the guarantees was made because the fair values of
them were insignificant and that the directors did not consider
it probable that a claim will be made against the Group under

the guarantees.

LITIGATIONS

During the year, a jointly controlled entity of the Group was in
dispute with a contractor about the quality and settlement of
its plant constructed. On one hand, the contractor claimed the
jointly controlled entity for settling the remaining contract fee
unpaid at HK$33,912,000 for the plant constructed. On the
other hand, the jointly controlled entity claimed the contractor
for returning the contract fee paid at HK$60,739,000 for poor
construction quality that cannot meet the relevant construction
standards. Based on legal advice, the directors do not believe it
probable that the court will find against the jointly controlled

entity.
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4. T ERERF 41. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION
FRN - TEBRRBA-—BEBEEA During the year, a piece of leasehold land with carrying
18,703,000 L2 HE T - WIA S — &7 amount at HK$18,703,000 was confiscated by Dingshu
ETEREE - ZBHM Lz EX L HE Government with compensation for another piece of leasehold
FREZRI B RE B BIRRE - 715 land. The formal land use right certificate of the new piece of
R FE18(a) (i) ~ P FE19 R P SH24 52 B8 o land has not been obtained yet as at the date of issue of these

financial statements. Details are disclosed in note 18(a)(iii),
note 19 and note 24.
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BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—E--f —ZT——F ZZE-TF ZITTNF ZTIENF
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
FEx FHET FET FET FHET
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
S Turnover 2,101,918 2,213,354 1,116,755 1,112,401 1,364,890
$HE AR Cost of sales (2,544,843) (1,159,922) (863,718) (910,991)  (1,015,603)
(E8B)/E7 Gross (loss)/profit (442,925) 1,053,432 253,037 201,410 349,287
R AT (B5E) ~  (Loss)/Profit before
S ) taxation (687,158) 716,083 146,197 109,414 (118,551)
g% Income tax (12,361) (176,285) (30,824) (50,927) (53,856)
S B REEE (Loss)/Profit for
REE (F18) /  the year from
il continuing operations (699,519) 539,798 115,373 58,487 (172,407)
D FEEEFE  Profit from discontinued
il operation = 15,661 23,668 26,196 =
REE (BE),  (Loss)/Profit
i ) for the year (699,519) 555,459 139,041 84,683 (172,407)
FEAE - Attributable to:
ViN/NCTEZ RSN Owners of the Company (679,702) 523,476 133,359 84,593 (170,972)
RS Non-controlling interests (19,817) 31,983 5,682 90 (1,435)
(699,519) 555,459 139,041 84,683 (172,407)
R+=—B=+-—8H
As at 31 December
—E-—-f —T——% ZZT-TF ZIZTTNF ZZTIENF
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
FEx FHET FET FET FET
HK$’' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
MENEE Current assets 2,864,609 3,590,246 2,275,920 1,866,841 1,713,801
FERBEE Non-current assets 776,557 963,857 1,490,070 1,372,740 1,500,535
BERBE Total assets 3,641,166 4,554,103 3,765,990 3,239,581 3,214,336
mEBEE Current liabilities 179,443 357,597 230,095 257,959 479,470
FERBEE Non-current liabilities 25,812 31,505 94,960 233,503 261,337
BERBE Total liabilities 205,255 389,102 325,055 491,462 740,807
BEFE Net assets 3,435,911 4,165,001 3,440,935 2,748,119 2,473,529
N Share capital 167,264 167,264 167,194 155,114 142,114
s Reserves 3,218,388 3,927,652 3,237,179 2,563,706 2,302,253
ZN/NSIET DN Equity attributable to
A = owners of the Company 3,385,652 4,094,916 3,404,373 2,718,820 2,444,367
FEIE IR Non-controlling interests 50,259 70,085 36,562 29,299 29,162
EEeE Total equity 3,435,911 4,165,001 3,440,935 2,748,119 2,473,529
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